












































THE STORY OF
A CELEBRATED
HERITAGE AND
THE DYNAMIC
PURSUIT OF
PROFITABLE
GROWTH.

Hudson’s Bay Company has been delighting our customers with
innovative products for more than 340 years. Founded in 1670
as “A Company of Adventurers,” we continue this tradition
today with our innovative strategy of operating diverse retail

banners combined with a portfolio of valuable real estate.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following management s discussion and analysis (“MD&A ") is intended to assist readers in understanding
the business environment, strategies and performance and risk factors of Hudson's Bay Company and its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and predecessors or other entities controlled or jointly controlled by them, referred to herein as
“HBC”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our.” It should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2016. Unless otherwise indicated,
all amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the contents of this MD&A.
This MD&A reflects information as of April 4, 2016.

Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

General Information

Hudson’s Bay Company is a Canadian corporation amalgamated under the Canada Business Corporations
Act. In January 2012, through an internal reorganization, Lord & Taylor LLC (“Lord & Taylor”) became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HBC. On November 26, 2012, the Company completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of
its common shares (the “Common Shares”), which trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “HBC”.

On November 4, 2013, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of Saks
Incorporated (“Saks”), in an all-cash transaction valued at U.S.$2,973 million, including assumed debt (the “Saks
Acquisition”).

On July 9, 2015, the Company and RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust (“RioCan”) closed the first tranche
of their joint venture, RioCan-HBC Limited Partnership (the “RioCan-HBC JV”), which focuses on real estate growth
opportunities in Canada. The second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV closed on November 25, 2015. As of January 30,
2016, HBC had an 89.7% ownership interest in the RioCan-HBC JV.

On July 22, 2015, the Company and Simon Property Group Inc. (“Simon”) closed their joint venture, Simon
HBC Opportunities LLC (the “HBC-Simon JV”). On September 30, 2015, prior to the Kaufhof Acquisition discussed
below, the HBC-Simon JV became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HBS Global Properties LLC (the “HBS Joint Venture”),
which focuses on credit tenant, net-leased and multi-tenant retail buildings in the United States and internationally. As
of January 30, 2016, HBC had a 67.4% ownership interest in the HBS Joint Venture.

As further described herein, on September 30, 2015 (the “Kaufhof Acquisition Date”), the Company completed
the acquisition (the “Kaufhof Acquisition”) of GALERIA Holding, the parent company of Germany’s leading
department store GALERIA Kauthof and Belgium’s only department store Galeria Inno, for a purchase price of €2.3
billion. In conjunction with the Kaufhof Acquisition, the HBS Joint Venture acquired 41 Kaufhof properties. For further
details regarding the Kauthof Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s business acquisition report dated December
22,2015, which is available on the Company’s website at www.hbc.com and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Also see
“Kauthof Transaction” below.

References in this MD&A to Department Store Group (“DSG”) refer , collectively, to the Hudson’s Bay, Lord
& Taylor and Home Outfitters banners. Home Outfitters merged into the home business at Hudson’s Bay during the
second quarter of Fiscal 2014. As such, Home Outfitters is reported within DSG effective as of the third quarter of
Fiscal 2014.

References in this MD&A to HBC Europe refer, collectively, to GALERIA Kauthof, Galeria Inno and
Sportarena.

References in this MD&A to Legacy HBC refer to the Company as structured prior to the acquisition of HBC
Europe (i.e. excluding HBC Europe).



References in this MD&A to the Queen Street Sale refer to the sale of the Company’s downtown Toronto
flagship store and adjacent Simpson’s Tower office complex in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 (see note 26 of the audited
consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015).

Unless otherwise specified, the Company’s financial information outlined herein includes HBC Europe’s
operating results from the Kaufhof Acquisition Date.

Accounting Periods

This MD&A is based on the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes thereto for
Fiscal 2015, Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this MD&A, including, but not limited to, the benefits that are expected to result
from the acquisitions of HBC Europe and Gilt, the impact on the Company’s reported gross profit and expense margins
as aresult of the acquisition of HBC Europe, the benefits that are expected to result from the North American operations
realignment initiative, the Company’s prospects for future growth opportunities, including targeting acquisitions, the
Company’s growth strategies of improving retail operations and unlocking the value of real estate, and the Company’s
outlook in respect of Sales, Adjusted EBITDAR, Adjusted EBITDA and capital investments (net of landlord incentives)
for Fiscal 2016, and other statements that are not historical facts, are forward-looking. Often but not always, forward-
looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may”, “will”, “expect”,

“believe”, “estimate”, “plan”, “could”, “should”, “would”, “outlook”, “forecast”, “anticipate”, “foresee”, “continue”
or the negative of these terms or variations of them or similar terminology.

Forward-looking statements are based on current estimates and assumptions made by us in light of our
experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other
factors that we believe are appropriate and reasonable in the circumstances. However, there can be no assurance that
such estimates and assumptions will prove to be correct.

Implicit in forward-looking statements in respect of Sales, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR and capital
investments (net of landlord incentives) for Fiscal 2016, are certain current assumptions, including, among others, the
Company achieving overall low single digit comparable store sales growth on a constant currency basis in Fiscal 2016,
the Company realizing annualized cost savings and synergies during Fiscal 2016 totaling $75 million from the previously
announced North American operations realignment program, the Company achieving $100 million in synergies from
the continued integration of Saks, the Company opening new stores in North America, the Company maintaining a
significant ownership interest in the HBS Joint Venture and the RioCan-HBC JV, and assumptions regarding currency
exchange rates for Fiscal 2016. Specifically, we have assumed the following exchange rates for Fiscal 2016: USD:CAD
=1:1.32 and EUR:CAD = 1:1.50. These current assumptions, although considered reasonable by the Company at the
time of preparation, may prove to be incorrect. Readers are cautioned that actual future operating results and economic
performance of the Company, including with respect to our anticipated Sales, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR
and capital investments (net of landlord incentives) for Fiscal 2016, are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including, among others described below, general economic, geo-political, market and business conditions, changes in
foreign currency rates from those assumed, the risk that the Company may not achieve comparable store sales growth
on a constant currency basis and the risk that the Company may not achieve the contemplated cost savings and synergies
as described above, and could differ materially from what is currently expected as set out above.

Many factors could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements or future events
or developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including,
without limitation, the following factors, which are discussed in greater detail in the “Risk Factors” section of this
MD&A: ability to execute retailing growth strategies, ability to continue comparable store sales growth, changing
consumer preferences, marketing and advertising program success, damage to brands and dependence on vendors,
ability to realize synergies and growth from strategic acquisitions, ability to make successful acquisitions and
investments, successful inventory management, loss or disruption in centralized distribution centres, ability to upgrade
and maintain our information systems to support the organization and protect against cyber-security threats, privacy
breach, risks relating to our size and scale, loss of key personnel, ability to retain key personnel of HBC Europe, ability
to attract and retain qualified employees, deterioration in labour relations, ability to maintain pension plan surplus,
funding requirement of Saks’ pension plan, funding requirement of the HBC Europe pension plan, limits on insurance
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policies, loss of intellectual property rights, insolvency risk of parties which we do business with or their unwillingness
to perform their obligations, exposure to changes in the real estate market, loss of flexibility with respect to properties
in the joint ventures, successful operation of the joint ventures to allow us to realize the anticipated benefits, exposure
to environmental liabilities, liabilities associated with Target Corporation and its affiliates (“Target”) and other third
parties who have assumed leases from the Company, changes in demand for current real estate assets, increased
competition, change in spending of consumers, international operational risks, fluctuations in the U.S. dollar, Canadian
dollar, Euro and other foreign currencies, increase in raw material costs, seasonality of business, extreme weather
conditions, geo-political events or natural disasters, ability to manage indebtedness and cash flow, risks related with
increasing indebtedness, restrictions of existing credit facilities reducing flexibility, ability to maintain adequate
financial processes and controls, ability to maintain dividends, ability of a small number of shareholders to influence
the business, uncontrollable sale of the Company’s Common Shares by significant shareholders could affect share price,
constating documents discouraging favorable takeover attempts, increase in regulatory liability, increase in product
liability or recalls, increase in litigation, developments in the credit card and financial services industries, changes in
accounting standards, other risks inherent to our business and/or factors beyond our control which could have a material
adverse effect on us. Additional risks and uncertainties are discussed in the Company’s materials filed with the Canadian
securities regulatory authorities from time to time. These factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the
factors that could affect us; however, these factors should be considered carefully.

The purpose of the forward-looking statements is to provide the reader with a description of management’s
current expectations regarding the Company’s financial performance and may not be appropriate for other purposes;
readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements made herein. To the extent any forward-looking
information in this MD&A constitutes future-oriented financial information or financial outlook, within the meaning
of applicable securities laws, such information is being provided to demonstrate the potential of the Company and
readers are cautioned that this information may not be appropriate for any other purpose. Future-oriented financial
information and financial outlook, as with forward-looking information generally, are based on current assumptions
and subjecttorisks, uncertainties and other factors. Furthermore, unless otherwise stated, the forward-looking statements
contained in this MD&A are made as of the date of this MD&A, and we have no intention and undertake no obligation
to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise,
except as required by applicable securities law. The forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are expressly
qualified by this cautionary statement.

Non-IFRS Measures

This MD&A makes reference to certain non-IFRS measures. These measures are not recognized measures
under IFRS, do not have a standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to
similar measures presented by other companies. Rather, these measures are provided as additional information to
complement IFRS measures by providing further understanding of the Company’s results of operations from
management’s perspective. Accordingly, they should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of
our financial information reported under IFRS. We use non-IFRS measures including gross profit, EBITDA, EBITDAR,
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized Selling, General & Administrative
Expenses to provide investors with supplemental measures of our operating performance and thus highlight trends in
our core business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying solely on IFRS financial measures. We also believe
that securities analysts, investors, rating agencies and other interested parties frequently use non-IFRS measures in the
evaluation of issuers. Our management also uses non-IFRS measures in order to facilitate operating performance
comparisons from period to period, prepare annual operating budgets and assess our ability to meet our future debt
service, capital expenditure and working capital requirements.

Following the creation of the real estate joint ventures, management believes that Adjusted EBITDAR best
reflects the performance of the retail business. This metric provides the most consistent view of the Company’s retail
performance, as it is not impacted by, among other things, HBC’s ownership levels of the joint ventures and resulting
impact on net rents. The Company believes that Adjusted EBITDA is less useful when evaluating the performance of
the retail business, but will continue to disclose Adjusted EBITDA for reference purposes.

For additional detail, refer to our tables outlining the relevant definitions and reconciliations of Net Earnings
to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAR, Selling General & Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”) to
Normalized SG&A and Net Earnings to Normalized Net Earnings.



This MD&A also makes reference to certain comparable financial results expressed on a constant currency
basis, including comparable store sales, comparable digital sales and comparable gross profit rate. In calculating the
sales change including digital sales on a constant currency basis, prior year foreign exchange rates are applied to both
current year and prior year comparable sales. Additionally, where an acquisition closed in the previous twelve months,
comparable store sales change on a constant currency basis incorporate results from the pre-acquisition period. This
enhances the ability to compare underlying sales trends by excluding the impact of foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations as well as by reflecting new acquisitions. Definitions and calculations of comparable store sales differ
among companies in the retail industry. The Company notes that results from acquisitions are only incorporated in the
Company’s reported consolidated financial results from and after the acquisition date. In calculating comparable gross
profit rate, the current and prior year gross profit rates are adjusted for the negative impacts associated with the
amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments.

Fourth Quarter Events

*  On November 17,2015, the Company sold for a total of U.S.$533 million, a portion of its equity in the HBS
Joint Venture (including a related entity), to three new third party investors. Proceeds from the equity sale,
together with cash on hand, were used to reduce the Company’s outstanding U.S. Term Loan B incurred in
connection with the closing of the Kauthof Acquisition from U.S.$1,085 million to U.S.$500 million. The
total third party investment of U.S.$533 million values the HBS Joint Venture’s portfolio at approximately
U.S.$4.5 billion™ based on a blended capitalization rate of 5.90%, and comprised of individual investments
from the following entities:

e U.S.$250 million equity investment by Ivanhoé Cambridge;
e U.S.$150 million equity investment by Madison International Realty; and
*  U.S.$133 million equity investment by a large U.S. pension.

As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on the equity sale of U.S.$388 million, and
wrote off costs associated with the U.S. Term Loan B of $32 million in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2015. Both
of these elements are normalized for the purpose of calculating Adjusted EBITDAR and Adjusted EBITDA
for the thirteen and fifty-two weeks ended January 30, 2016. For further details, see note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for Fiscal 2015.

(1) Assumes a EUR:USD exchange rate of 1:1.07. Represents the value of the properties after all transactions are completed, including
the post-closing acquisition of certain German real estate properties and the non-controlling interests related to the Kauthof
transaction.

¢ On November 25, 2015, the Company announced that it closed the second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV
focused on real estate growth opportunities in Canada. As part of the second tranche closing, HBC indirectly
contributed three ground-leased properties consisting of Yorkdale Shopping Centre, Scarborough Town Centre
and Square One (collectively, the “YSS Properties”) totaling approximately 736,000 square feet to the RioCan-
HBC JV. The transaction values this second tranche of the HBC real estate contribution at approximately $379
million based on a capitalization rate of 5.26%.

On August 4, 2015, HBC obtained a favourable court declaration and order from the Superior Court of Justice-
Ontario which permitted the indirect contribution of the three ground-leased YSS Properties to the RioCan-
HBC JV. This court order was appealed by the related landlords. On February 10, 2016, the Court of Appeal
for Ontario denied the landlords’ appeal.

For reporting purposes, the leases for the YSS Properties were assessed and classified as operating leases. The
Company recognized a pre-tax gain on the contribution of the YSS Properties of $35 million based on RioCan’s
interest in the RioCan-HBC JV after the closing of the second tranche. Additionally, as part of the transaction,
the Company’s mortgage on the Yorkdale ground-lease property of approximately $47 million was assumed
by an entity related to the RioCan-HBC JV. The contribution of the YSS Properties, net of the assumed Yorkdale
mortgage, resulted in a total equity stake of 89.7% in the RioCan-HBC JV.

e OnDecember 10,2015, the Company declared a quarterly dividend, paid on January 15, 2016, to shareholders
of record at the close of business on December 31, 2015, in the amount of $0.05 per Common Share.



Subsequent Events

e On February 1, 2016, the Company successfully completed the acquisition of Gilt Groupe Holdings Inc.
(“Gilt”) for U.S.$250 million in cash, excluding debt, subject to customary adjustments (the “Gilt Acquisition”).
With the Gilt Acquisition, the Company has added a leading and innovative online shopping destination, which
offers its customers special access to inspiring fashion merchandise and experiences. The Gilt Acquisition
reflects the Company’s ongoing focus on advancing its all-channel model, while continuing to grow its
successful off-price business through the integration of Gilt with Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH (“OFF 5TH”)
locations.

e On February 5, 2016, the existing HBC and U.S. Revolving Credit Facilities (collectively, an aggregate
borrowing line of approximately U.S.$1.5 billion) were refinanced through a new Global Revolving Credit
Facility (“Global ABL”) intended to finance the working capital needs, capital expenditures and operating
activities of the Company’s Canadian, U.S. and European operations. This resulted in an additional U.S.$340
million borrowing base to the already existing U.S.$1.5 billion borrowing line (i.e. an increase in the size of
the total borrowing line to approximately U.S.$1.9 billion).

e During the month of February 2016, the Company opened its first Saks Fifth Avenue stores in Canada. The
first store opened at the Toronto Eaton Centre on February 18, 2016, followed by the second store at the
Sherway Gardens Mall in Etobicoke, Ontario, on February 25, 2016.

e On March 17, 2016, the Company opened its first OFF 5TH stores in Canada. The 3 stores were opened at
the Vaughan Mills, in Vaughan, Ontario, at the Toronto Premium Outlets in Halton Hills, Ontario and at the
Outlet Collections at Niagara in Niagara-on-the-Lake, Ontario.

*  On March 30, 2016, the Company announced that it sold a further portion of its investment in the HBS Joint
Venture (including a related entity) to Madison International Realty for total proceeds of U.S.$50 million.
Madison International Realty previously invested U.S.$150 million as part of the Company’s sale of a portion
of the same investment in the HBS Joint Venture (including a related entity) for proceeds of U.S.$533 million
on November 17, 2015. The proceeds of U.S.$50 million from the sale were used to pay down the Global
ABL. As a result of the transaction, the Company expects to recognize a pre-tax gain on the equity sale of
approximately U.S.$40 million ($56 million). This item will be excluded for the purpose of calculating
Adjusted EBITDAR and Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of Fiscal 2016.

e OnMarch 21,2016, the Company declared a quarterly dividend, to be paid on April 15, 2016, to shareholders
of record at the close of business on March 31, 2016 in the amount of $0.05 per Common Share.

Overview
Qur Business

Hudson’s Bay Company, established in 1670, is one of the fastest-growing department store retailers in the
world. HBC is an operator and a consolidator as well as a real estate developer. HBC is an innovative company with
diversity in terms of geography and consumer segment and a strong fashion reputation with a focus on consumers. It
is aleader in the all channel retail experience through the combination of great store locations and e-commerce shopping
options enabling customers to shop whenever, wherever and however they choose. HBC is an operator. The Company
has a top tier management team and in the last twelve months has hired many new operating leaders including head of
human resources, information technology, digital, supply chain and owned labels. HBC is a consolidator. The Company
has a track record of making successful acquisitions. The strategy is focused on making opportunistic acquisitions of
targets that have great brands, undermanaged retail operations, opportunities for synergies and, if there is real estate
involved, great real estate locations. HBC has a history of acquiring companies and generating synergies as well as
continuing to grow organically while leveraging economies of scale. HBC is supported by a solid foundation of real
estate which enhances financial flexibility.

Retail Strategy

HBC is a global retailer operating banners which include, Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth Avenue
and OFF 5TH in North America and GALERIA Kauthof, Galeria Inno and Sportarena in Europe, and as of February
1, 2016, Gilt.



The Company intends to continue to grow its retail sales primarily through the following strategies:

*  Driving Growth Across All Channels. The Company is focused on driving growth both within and across its
store and digital channels. The Company is building its capabilities and enhancing store experience to allow
customers to shop seamlessly across stores and through digital applications, and believes that serving customers
across all channels results in increased consumer spending and loyalty. The Gilt Acquisition will enable the
Company to incorporate the excellent e-commerce technology Gilt has developed, especially in mobile, across
the Company’s retail banners. The Company is also strengthening its digital business, which manages digital
commerce and marketing strategy and execution for its retail banners, and continuing to differentiate its store
merchandise and store experiences to grow these channels.

*  Expanding the Company s Off-Price Business. The Company has refined the OFF 5TH business model to
offer more national brands at a clearer value proposition in an easier-to-shop environment. The Company
plans to accelerate the pace of new store openings and has introduced a larger OFF 5TH format. The off-price
market is attractive in North America, and potentially, more attractive across Europe where management
believes there is an unmet demand for this offering.

*  Bringing Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF 5TH to Canada. The Company intends to leverage its existing Canadian
infrastructure, institutional knowledge and experience to efficiently and effectively bring Saks Fifth Avenue
and OFF 5TH to Canada. The Company believes there is an opportunity to open up to seven Saks Fifth Avenue
stores and up to 25 OFF 5TH stores in Canada over the coming years. The first Saks Fifth Avenue stores
opened in Canada on February 18, 2016 and February 25, 2016, followed by the first OFF 5TH stores on
March 17, 2016, with encouraging early results.

* Inaddition, the Company believes there is an opportunity to realize meaningful operating margin improvements
through the following initiatives:

o Saks Acquisition Synergies. During Fiscal 2015, the Company realized $39 million in additional
synergies related to the integration of Saks, bringing total savings of this initiative to $95 million. At
this time, integration is largely complete, and the Company expects to realize the remaining $5 million
of its targeted $100 million in synergies throughout the course of Fiscal 2016.

o Operating Expense Management. The Company intends to continue to diligently manage its operating
expenses and leverage its significantly increased scale to optimize costs; and

o Gross Profit Enhancements. The Company is focused on increasing its gross profit through (i)
upgrading technology to improve all stages of merchandise planning and (ii) using its evolving digital
commerce fulfillment functionalities and improving its automation technology at its fulfillment
centres to optimize inventory productivity across each banner.

Mergers and Acquisitions

On September 30, 2015, the Company closed the Kauthof Acquisition. This represents a major step in the
Company’s strategy to become a global world class department store retailer. The addition of HBC Europe’s banners
across two countries in Europe further strengthens the Company’s retail portfolio, and provides a platform for further
growth throughout Europe.

On February 1, 2016, the Company closed the Gilt Acquisition. Gilt is an e-commerce fashion retailer with a
large millennial customer base. The Company plans to integrate Gilt within the OFF 5TH banner. With this acquisition,
HBC will have improved digital capabilities, especially in the increasingly important mobile and personalization
technologies. HBC provides Gilt with an outlet to manage inventory more efficiently through the use of OFF 5TH
stores. In addition, Gilt will open “stores within a store” (i.e. physical locations) in certain OFF 5TH locations. This
will enable customers to return items to OFF 5TH which will not only provide optionality for customers but should
also drive new customers into OFF 5TH locations.

With the recent completion of the Kaufhof Acquisition and the Gilt Acquisition, the Company’s portfolio today
includes ten banners, in formats ranging from luxury to better department stores to off-price, with more than 460 stores,
a global e-commerce presence, and 66,000 employees internationally.



Real Estate Strategy

In addition to successfully operating and integrating its retail business and banners, the Company has
demonstrated a history of surfacing and leveraging value from its substantial real estate holdings, which also serves to
strengthen the Company’s balance sheet and operating business. Previous transactions and initiatives include the sale
ofthe Zellers leases for $1.8 billion in 2011, along with the Queen Street Sale of the Toronto flagship property for $650
million and the U.S.$1.25 billion mortgage financing of the ground portion of the Saks Fifth Avenue flagship property
in New York City, both in Fiscal 2014.

On July 9, 2015, the Company and RioCan closed the first tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV transaction. On
November 25, 2015, the Company closed the second tranche which included three additional ground lease properties,
being the YSS Properties, totaling approximately 736,000 square feet at an estimated transaction value of $379 million.

On July 22, 2015, the Company and Simon closed the HBC-Simon JV transaction. On September 30, 2015,
Simon contributed an additional U.S.$178 million towards the acquisition of the Kaufhof Property Business (see
“Kaufhof Transaction” section). On November 17, 2015, the Company announced the sale of a portion of its equity
investment in the HBS Joint Venture (including a related entity) for proceeds of U.S.$533 million to three new third
party investors. Proceeds from the equity sale, together with cash on hand, were used to reduce the Company’s
outstanding U.S. Term Loan B from U.S.$1,085 million to U.S.$500 million. The total third party investment of U.S.
$533 million values the HBS Joint Venture’s portfolio at approximately U.S.$4.5 billion based on a blended capitalization
rate of 5.90%. For further details, see note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015.

The joint ventures create new growth platforms for the Company; real estate in the United States, Canada and
internationally. It is expected that any future property acquisitions will diversify the asset portfolios and tenant base of
each joint venture and create additional value. Importantly, the transactions are structured to facilitate an IPO or other
monetization transaction of each joint venture at a future date. See the “Real Estate Joint Ventures” section of this
MD&A.

Highlights of the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016

*  Retail sales, which include digital sales from all banners and HBC Europe sales commencing as of the Kaufthof
Acquisition Date, were $4,486 million, an increase of $1,854 million or 70.4% from $2,632 million for the
thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015.

*  Consolidated comparable store sales increased by 11.0% and by 1.8% on a constant currency basis over the
comparable thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. On a constant currency basis, comparable store
sales increased by 4.0% at DSG, decreased by 1.2% at Saks Fifth Avenue and increased by 2.0% and 0.4% at
OFF 5TH and HBC Europe, respectively.

» Total digital sales increased by 61.6% and on a constant currency comparable basis by 22.8% over the thirteen
week period ended January 31, 2015, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on growing this
channel.

*  Gross profit rate, as a percentage of retail sales, was 39.7%. Adjusting for the negative impact associated with
the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments in the fourth quarter, a comparable
gross profit rate of 41.3% was realized with a 30 basis point improvement over the thirteen week period ended
January 31, 2015.

*  Adjusted EBITDA was $455 million compared to $325 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, an increase
of $130 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDA was 10.1% compared to 12.3% for the
fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014.

* Adjusted EBITDAR was $630 million compared to $391 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, an
increase of $239 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDAR was 14.0% compared to 14.9%
for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014.

¢ Net Earnings were $370 million compared to $115 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, an increase
of $255 million.

*  Normalized Net Earnings were $145 million compared to $157 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014,
a decrease of $12 million.



Highlights of the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016

*  Retail sales from all banners were $11,162 million, an increase of $2,993 million or 36.6% from $8,169 million
for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.

e Consolidated comparable store sales increased by 12.1% and by 2.5% on a constant currency basis over the
comparable fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. On a constant currency basis, comparable store
sales increased by 4.7% at DSG, decreased by 1.0% at Saks Fifth Avenue and increased by 6.3% and 1.7% at
OFF 5TH and HBC Europe, respectively.

»  Total digital sales increased by 48.5% and on a constant currency comparable basis by 23.2% over the fifty-
two week period ended January 31, 2015, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on growing this
channel.

»  Gross profit rate, as a percentage of retail sales, was 40.5%. Adjusting for the negative impacts associated
with the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments in the current and prior fiscal
years, a comparable gross profit rate of 41.2% was realized with a 70 basis point improvement over the prior
year.

*  Adjusted EBITDA was $781 million compared to $604 million for the fifty-two week period ended January
31,2015, an increase of $177 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDA was 7.0% compared
to 7.4% for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.

*  Adjusted EBITDAR was $1,211 million compared to $861 million for the fifty-two week period ended January
31,2015, anincrease of $350 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDAR was 10.8% compared
to 10.5% for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.

*  Net Earnings were $387 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to $233
million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $154 million.

*  Normalized Net Earnings were $55 million compared to $96 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, a
decrease of $41 million.

Factors Affecting Our Performance
Retail Sales

The majority of our sales are from branded merchandise purchased directly from the brand owners or their
licensees. We focus on offering a broad selection of branded and private-label merchandise appealing to the fashion
taste of our customers. The quality and breadth of our selection allow us to change the mix of our merchandise based
on fashion trends and individual store locations, and enable us to address a broad customer base.

Comparable Store Sales

The Company calculates comparable store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least
13 months and includes online sales and clearance store sales. Stores undergoing remodeling remain in the comparable
store sales calculation base unless the store is closed for a significant period of time. Effective Fiscal 2015, the calculation
for comparable store sales for our operating segments DSG, Saks Fifth Avenue, OFF 5TH and HBC Europe excludes
sales related accounting adjustments. In calculating the comparable store sales change, including digital sales, on a
constant currency basis, prior year foreign exchange rates are applied to both current year and prior year comparable
store sales. This enhances the ability to compare underlying sales trends by excluding the impact of foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations. Comparable Store Sales results disclosed under “Summary of Consolidated Quarterly
Results” reflect this revised approach since the second quarter of Fiscal 2015. Definitions and calculations of comparable
store sales differ among companies in the retail industry.

Gross Profit

Our cost of sales consists mainly of merchandise purchases, including transportation and distribution costs.
Purchases are variable and proportional to our sales volume. We record vendor rebates as a reduction of inventory cost.
All costs directly associated with transportation and distribution, excluding central storage costs and any idle capacity,
are capitalized as merchandise inventories.
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We manage our businesses to improve gross margin in a number of different ways. We manage the level of
promotional activity relative to regular price activity and manage inventory levels to minimize the need for substantial
clearance activity. We source private-label products and directly import certain branded products from overseas markets
including, among others, China, India, Indonesia, Bangladesh, Vietnam, Cambodia and Europe. As a result, our cost
of sales for our Canadian operations is impacted by the fluctuation of foreign currencies against the Canadian dollar.
In particular, we purchase a significant amount of our imported merchandise from suppliers in Asia using U.S. dollars.
Therefore, our cost of sales is impacted by the fluctuation of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar.

We enter into forward contracts to hedge some of our exposure to fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar
against the Canadian dollar. Increases in the price of merchandise, raw materials, fuel and labour, or their reduced
availability, could increase our cost of goods and negatively impact our financial results. Generally, we offset these
cost increases with pricing adjustments in order to maintain a consistent gross profit on the merchandise, which may
cause changes in our unit volume but typically has a minimal impact on our gross profit rates.

Foreign Exchange

Our net investments in HBC Europe and Lord & Taylor Acquisition Inc. (“L&T Acquisition”), the indirect
parent of Lord & Taylor and Saks, whose functional currencies are Euros and U.S. dollars, respectively, present foreign
exchange risks to HBC, whose functional currency is Canadian dollars. See “Risk Factors — Fluctuations in the U.S.
dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro and other foreign currencies could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations”.

Translation of the Company’s investments in HBC Europe and L&T Acquisition impacts other comprehensive
income, while translation of their net earnings (loss) impacts consolidated net earnings.

Foreign currency gains and losses on certain intra group monetary liabilities between group entities with
different functional currencies impact the Company’s consolidated net earnings.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”)

Our SG&A consists of store labour and maintenance costs, store occupancy costs, advertising and marketing
costs, salaries and related benefits of corporate and field management associates, administrative office expenses, services
purchased and other related expenses. SG&A includes buying and occupancy costs and excludes transportation and
distribution centre costs included in inventory and cost of sales. It also includes pension, restructuring and other non-
recurring items and excludes depreciation and amortization expenses. Although our average hourly wage rate is generally
higher than the minimum wage, an increase in the mandated minimum wage could significantly increase our payroll
costs unless we realize offsetting productivity gains and cost reductions.

Our occupancy costs are driven primarily by rent expense, which may include escalation clauses over existing
lease terms, including option periods. We believe that our existing leases are generally consistent with current market
rates. When entering into new leases, we are generally able to negotiate leases at attractive market rates due to the
increased consumer traffic that our stores generate in strip malls and shopping centres.

Under our legacy credit agreements, we earned royalty payments from credit card issuers based on the total
of Company and other sales charged to either the Private Label Credit Cards (“PLCC”) or MasterCard. Royalty rates
changed based on the year-to-date credit volume of out-of-store credit card sales. We also received bounty payments
from credit card issuers for each approved PLCC or MasterCard account. Bounty and royalty payments were recognized
based on expected or actual performance over the life of the credit card agreements. With respect to the legacy credit
agreement for Saks, the Company earned a blend of royalty payments, bounty payments and shared in the income and
losses of the legacy credit program. In addition, pursuant to a servicing agreement with a credit card issuer, the Company
received compensation for providing key customer service functions including new account openings, transaction
authorizations, billing adjustments and customer inquiries. All credit card revenues related to the legacy credit
agreements are included as a reduction of SG&A in our consolidated financial statements. We had no risk of credit loss
on the credit card receivables in the underlying portfolio.

Effective January 1, 2015, we entered into a new credit card program that replaced our legacy credit card
programs. Under this program, we share in the income and losses of the credit card program related to private label
and co-branded credit cards at Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor and Saks. The new credit card program was effective as
of January 1, 2015 with respect to Hudson’s Bay and Saks. In June 2015, we completed the transition to include Lord
& Taylor’s active participation to the program. Income related to the new program is included in SG&A.
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Finance Costs

Our finance costs are expenses derived from the financing activities of the Company, including interest expense
on long and short-term borrowings, gains or losses on the early extinguishment of debt and fair value gains or losses
and amortization charges related to embedded derivatives. In addition to credit ratings and credit spreads, our finance
costs are dependent on fluctuations in the underlying indexes used to calculate interest rates, including, but not limited
to, the Canadian prime rate, the Canadian Dealer Offered Rate and the London Interbank Offered Rate.

In connection with the Saks Acquisition, we issued Common Share purchase warrants to H.S. Investment L.P.
(“HSILP”), an affiliate of Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan, and to West Face Long Term Opportunities Global Master
L.P., a fund advised by West Face Capital Inc. The non-cash charges associated with the warrants fluctuate with changes
in the Common Share trading price and other factors, as they require mark-to-market adjustments each reporting period.
We record the mark-to-market valuation adjustment of these warrants as finance costs (income) based on their end-of-
period valuations.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which the Company’s stores are located could adversely affect the
Company’s business and results of operations. For example, frequent or unusually heavy snowfall, ice storms,
rainstorms, earthquakes, or other extreme weather conditions over a prolonged period could make it difficult for the
Company’s customers to travel to its stores and thereby reduce the Company’s sales and profitability. The Company’s
business is also susceptible to unseasonable weather conditions. For example, extended periods of unseasonably warm
temperatures during the winter season or cool weather during the summer season could result in lower sales and more
promotional activity to clear merchandise at the end of the season. Reduced sales from extreme or prolonged
unseasonable weather conditions could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business and results of operations.

Competition

The Company conducts its retail merchandising business under highly competitive conditions. Although the
Company is one of North America, Germany and Belgium’s largest retailers, it has numerous and varied competitors
at the international, national and local levels, including conventional and specialty department stores, other specialty
stores, mass merchants, value retailers, discounters, digital and mail-order retailers. Competition may intensify as new
competitors enter into the markets in which our banners operate including U.S. competitors entering into the Canadian
market, competitors to HBC Europe entering the German or Belgium markets and/or if our competitors enter into
business combinations or alliances. Competition is characterized by many factors, including assortment, advertising,
price, quality, service, location, digital applications, reputation and credit availability. If the Company does not compete
effectively with regard to these factors, its business and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Consumer Trends

The fashion and retail industries are subject to sudden shifts in consumer trends and consumer spending. The
Company’s sales and operating results depend, in part, on its ability to predict or respond to changes in fashion trends
and consumer preferences in a timely manner. The Company develops new retail concepts and continuously adjusts
its market positioning in branded and private-label merchandise and product categories in an effort to satisfy customer
demand. Any sustained failure to anticipate, identify and respond to emerging trends in lifestyle and consumer
preferences could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations. Consumers’
discretionary spending impacts the Company’s sales and may be affected by many factors outside of the Company’s
control, including general economic conditions, consumer disposable income levels, consumer confidence levels, the
availability, cost and level of consumer debt, the costs of basic necessities and other goods, and the effects of weather
or natural disasters.

Seasonality

The quarterly sales and earnings of the Company are significantly impacted by customer sales patterns. As a
result, sales in the fiscal fourth quarter, due to the holiday shopping season, represent a much greater portion of our
annual sales volume and a substantial portion of our annual earnings. We generate approximately one-third of our sales
during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year due to the Christmas and holiday shopping season.
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Change in Accounting Policy - Inventories

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2015, the Company changed its policy with respect to the valuation of
Saks’ inventory from the retail method to cost, as well as, the method of calculating the adjustment required to value
inventory to its net realizable value. The change in policy was implemented retrospectively to February 2, 2014. The
Company was unable to quantify the impact of the accounting change prior to February 2, 2014 as data required for

this was not historically maintained at the necessary level of detail.

Prior to February 2, 2014, item cost was determined using the retail method, which reduced the selling price
of inventories to cost using the application of average department mark-up. The adjustment to net realizable value was
then calculated by assessing department aging and mark down status of items in the department. Subsequent to February
2, 2014, cost is determined using the weighted average cost (cost method) on an individual style basis. Net realizable

value calculation is now performed integrating item level analysis as well as aging and markdown status.

The impact of the change in accounting policy for Fiscal 2014 is summarized as follows:

Fiscal Quarter ended Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars except per share amounts) May 3,2014  Aug 2, 2014 Nov 1,2014  Jan 31, 2015 2014
(Increase) decrease in cost of sales..................... (6) (11) 2 7 (®)
Increase (decrease) in income tax benefit........... 3 4 €)) 3) 3
(Decrease) increase in net earnings for the

PEIIOA ..ot 3) @) 1 4 5)
Net (loss) earnings per common share................ (0.02) (0.04) 0.01 0.02 (0.03)
(Decrease) increase in Adjusted EBITDA and

Adjusted EBITDAR.........cccoevivieieeieieeiee (6) 11 2 7 ®)

The impact of the change in accounting policy for Fiscal 2015 is summarized as follows:

Fiscal Quarter ended

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars except per share amounts) May 2, 2015 Aug 1,2015  Oct 31,2015 Jan 30, 2016 2015
Decrease (increase) in cost of sales.................... 8 (14) 10 9 13
(Increase) decrease in income tax expense......... 3) 6 4 4 (5)
Increase (decrease) in net earnings for the

PEIIOA ..ot 5 ®) 6 5 8
Net earnings (loss) per common share................ 0.03 (0.04) 0.03 0.02 0.04
Increase (decrease) in Adjusted EBITDA and

Adjusted EBITDAR........cccoveeiviiirieeeee 8 14) 10 9 13

Selected Consolidated Financial Information

The following tables set out summary consolidated financial information and supplemental information for the
periods indicated. The summary annual financial information for each of Fiscal 2015, Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 has
been derived from consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The summary financial
information for the quarters ended January 30,2016 and January 31, 2015 is unaudited. The unaudited financial information
presented has been prepared on a basis consistent with our audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015 and
Fiscal 2014. In the opinion of our management, such unaudited financial data reflects all adjustments, consisting of normal
and recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for those periods. The results of operations for

interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for a full year or any future period.
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Fiscal Year

Fiscal Quarter Ended

(millions of Canadian dollars except (vestated V) (restated V)
per share amounts) 2015 2014 2013 January 30,2016 January 31, 2015
$ % 2 $ % 2 $ % 2 $ % 2 $ % 2
Earnings results
Retail sales.......ccoveeiiiiininiiicceens 11,162 100.0% 8,169 100.0% 5,223 100.0% 4,486 100.0% 2,632 100.0%
Cost of sales (6,638) (59.5%)  (4,901) (60.0%) (3,217) (61.6%) (2,704) (60.3%)  (1,552) (59.0%)
Gross Profit........ccccevvieviniiniiiiinnns 4,524 40.5% 3,268  40.0% 2,006 38.4% 1,782 39.7% 1,080  41.0%
Selling, general and administrative
EXPEIISES.onvvrresaresnessnesneeseesssesseeeas (4,060) (36.4%) (2,759) (33.8%) (1,826) (35.0%) (1,499) (33.4%) (736)  (28.0%)
Depreciation and amortization .............. (460)  (4.1%) (344) (42%) 175)  (3.3%) (149)  (3.3%) ©O7)  (3.6%)
Gain on contribution of assets to joint
VENEULES oo ieesiees 168 1.5% — — — — 35 0.8% — —
Gain on sale of investments in joint
VENLUTES «.vovvoveveieieresesseseesessenenes 516 4.6% — — — — 516 11.5% — —
Gain on Queen Street Sale..................... — — 308 3.8% — — — — — —
Operating income . 682 6.1% 473 5.8% 5 0.1% 685  153% 247 9.4%
Finance costs, net (188)  (1.7%) (262) (3.2%) 261)  (5.0%) 60) (1.3%) (111)  (4.2%)
Share of net loss in joint ventures ......... (139)  (1.2%) — — — — 68)  (1.6%) — —
Dilution gain from investment in joint
VENLUTC ..o, 164 1.5% - - - - 16 0.3% - -
Earnings (loss) before income tax ...... 519 4.7% 211 2.6% (256)  (4.9%) 573 12.7% 136 5.2%
Income tax (expense) benefit ................ (132)  (1.2%) 22 0.3% 79 1.5% (203)  (4.5%) 21)  (0.8%)
Net Earnings (Loss) for the period —
continuing operations....................... 387 3.5% 233 2.9% (177)  (3.4%) 370 8.2% 115 4.4%
Net Loss for the period — discontinued
operations, net of taxes...........ccouen... — — — — (82)  (1.6%) — — — —
Net Earnings (Loss) for the period..... 387 3.5% 233 2.9% 259)  (5.0%) 370 8.2% 115 4.4%
Net Earnings (Loss) per Common
Share — Basic
Continuing Operations ............ccecevuenee. 2.13 1.28 (1.31) 2.03 0.63
Discontinued operations.................c...... — — (0.61) — —
2.13 1.28 (1.92) 2.03 0.63
Net Earnings (Loss) per Common
Share — Diluted .................coc.....
Continuing operations 1.88 1.27 (1.34) 1.88 0.62
Discontinued operations........................ — — (0.61) — —
1.88 1.27 (1.95) 1.88 0.62
Weighted average Common Shares
outstanding — basic (millions) ........ 182 182 135 182 182
Weighted average Common Shares
outstanding — diluted (millions) ..... 186 183 135 184 185
Supplemental information
Adjusted EBITDA ® _........ccooovvrrvnn. 781 7.0% 604 7.4% 405 7.8% 455 10.1% 325 12.3%
Adjusted EBITDAR @ ...........ccoooooeee.... 1,211 10.8% 861  10.5% 563 10.8% 630  14.0% 391 14.9%
Normalized SG&A® .......coooovvvvienreean. 3,779 33.9% 2,704  33.1% 1,640 31.4% 1,372 30.6% 755 28.7%
Normalized Net Earnings for the
period @ e, 55 0.5% 96 1.2% 79 1.5% 145 3.2% 157 6.0%
Normalized Net Earnings per
Common Share — basic @ .............. 0.30 0.53 0.59 0.80 0.86
Normalized Net Earnings per
Common Share — diluted @............ 0.30 0.52 0.59 0.79 0.85
Declared dividend per Common Share . 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.05 0.05
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter Ended

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014 2013 2016 2015

Reported consolidated retail sales

percentage change .............cccc.c....... 36.6% 56.4% 28.1% 70.4% 9.3%
Comparable store sales percentage

change @
Consolidated .........cceoevevveeoirnieirenreens 12.1% 7.5% 5.4% 11.0% 8.7%
Consolidated (constant currency basis) .. 2.5% 2.7% 2.9% 1.8% 3.2%
DSG @ oo 4.7% 1.5% 2.6% 4.0% 2.5%
Saks Fifth Averue © ........cocoovvvvveene. (1.0%) 1.7% 2.5% (1.2%) 2.3%
OFF STH @ oo 6.3% 14.9% 8.0% 2.0% 11.4%
HBC Europe 7.......coooverivrieen. 1.7% N/A N/A 0.4% N/A

Store information

Store count ®

90 90 90
50 50 49
38 38 41
90 77 71
62 67 69
131 N/A N/A
461 322 320
Gross leasable area/Square footage

(thousands) ®
Hudson’s Bay ........ccccceeeeeieeecreenenenn 16,006 16,123 16,123
Lord & Taylor...... 6,898 6,898 6,790
Saks Fifth Avenue...........cccccevveveneennne. 4,741 4,499 4,787
OFF 5TH ..cooiiiiiiiicccn 2,595 2,117 1,960
2,214 2,444 2,515
16,679 N/A N/A
49,133 32,081 32,175
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Balance Sheet Data Fiscal Year

(restated ) (restated )
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014 2013
$ $ $
CASH Lttt 507 168 21
Trade and other receivables... . 512 212 137
TNVENLOTIES ...vveeeveeeeeiec et 3,415 2,319 2,031
CUITENE ASSCES...uvieeuvieeiieeeiieeiieeiteesteeereeeetreeseaeesbeeeseeenaseessseenns 4,628 2,799 2,293
Property, plant and equipment............cccoeeeeeievieriesienienesesesene 5,154 4,606 4,110
Intangible assets and goodwill.. 1,774 1,313 1,188
Investment in joint ventures O e 658 — —
TOtAl ASSELS....eeueeuieieterierieeieeitet ettt ettt ettt st see e e 12,649 9,122 7,994
Current liabilities " ........coooerrvverrerrrreiieeneeeeeeseeeeens 2,794 1,793 1,464
Loans and borrowings (including current portion).............cce..... 3,180 2,969 3,305
Finance leases (including current portion) ............ccceeeeerereneenne 525 155 150
Investment in the RioCan-HBC JV @ ........cooooviviiiieeeereee, 27 — —
Other liabilities (including current portion) V... . 1,367 823 237
Shareholders’ SqUILY ......ccveverierierereeieeeeceeeeeeee e 3,099 2,474 2,033

Notes:

(1)  Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the change in accounting policy relating to inventories. For more information,
please refer to “Change in Accounting Policy - Inventories” and “Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption”.

(2)  As apercentage of retail sales.

(3)  Seebelow for relevant definitions and tables for reconciliations of Net Earnings to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAR, SG&A
to Normalized SG&A and Net Earnings to Normalized Net Earnings.

(4)  The Company calculates comparable store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least 13 months and includes digital sales
and clearance store sales. The calculation for comparable store sales excludes sales related accounting adjustments for DSG, Saks Fifth Avenue,
OFF 5TH and HBC Europe. Consolidated comparable store sales include results for all banners.

(5) Includes Home Outfitters since the third quarter of Fiscal 2014 (see “General Information™) and is calculated on a constant currency basis.

(6)  Comparable store sales of Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF STH are calculated in U.S. dollars.

(7)  Comparable store sales of HBC Europe are calculated in Euros and are included from the Kauthof Acquisition Date.

(8) Hudson’s Bay Company operates one Find @ Lord & Taylor store, one Hudson’s Bay outlet, two Zellers clearance centres and two Lord &
Taylor outlets that are excluded from the store count and gross leasable area.

(9)  See ‘Real Estate Joint Ventures’ section.

(10) Excludes current loans and borrowings of $451 million as at January 30, 2016, $246 million as at January 31, 2015 and $513 million as at
February 2, 2014; current other liabilities of $126 million as at January 30,2016, $86 million as at January 31,2015 and $11 million as at February
2,2014; and current finance leases of $25 million as at January 30, 2016, $19 million as at January 31, 2015 and $19 million as at February 2,
2014.

(11) Includes deferred landlord incentives of $745 million as at January 30, 2016, $356 million as at January 31, 2015 and $169 million as at February
2,2014.
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The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) to Adjusted EBITDA and to Adjusted EBITDAR:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter Ended
(restated V) (restated V)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014 2013 January 30,2016 January 31, 2015
$ $ $ $ $
Net Earnings (Loss) for the Period —
continuing operations.......................c.c...... 387 233 177 370 115
Finance costs, Net..........cccoeevireeiiieeiieeeieenee. 188 262 261 60 111
Income tax expense (benefit)........ccocevereenene 132 (22) (79) 203 21
Share of net loss in joint ventures.................. 139 — — 68 —
Gain on contribution of assets to joint
VENEULES......eieeieeeieiiesiienieenieeieeeeeieseesenenne (168) — — (35) —
Gain on sale of investments in joint ventures (516) — — (516) —
Gain on Queen Street Sale @ .........cooccoceve..... — (308) — — —
Dilution gain from investment in joint
venture @ (164) — — (16) —
Non-cash pension expense (recovery)........... 17 6 21 3) (14)
Depreciation and amortization ...................... 460 344 175 149 97
Impairment and other non-cash expenses...... 5 1 4 5 1
Share based compensation 22 15 9 5 4
EBITDA .....ccooooiiiceeeeeeee 502 531 214 290 335
Normalization and joint venture
adjustments
Acquisition and integration related
eXPENSES W .o 133 62 124 32 13
Joint ventures transaction costs 46 — — 11 —
Amortization of inventory ]i)sl)lrchase price
accounting adjustments ™ ...............cc.c..... 75 40 39 69 —
Home Outfitters onerous lease provision...... 2 14 — 2 14
Foreign exchange adjustment © ................... 4 (14) — 51 (14)
Loyalty Zellers adjustment @ ...........cc..c........ — (24) — — (24)
Restructuring and other ...........ccoocevereneecnne 21 %) 28 12 1
North American realignment initiative ®...... 37 — — 12 —
Net rent expense to joint ventures © ... 37 — — 33 —
Cash rent to jOInt VENtUIeS.......cccevveruerueruerneene (190) — — (112) —
Cash distributions from joint ventures .......... 114 — — 55 —
Total normalizing and joint venture
AdJUSTMENLS ....vevieeieeieeieieieese e 279 73 191 165 (10)
Adjusted EBITDA.............ccoooiiiiiiee 781 604 405 455 325
Rent adjustments
Third party rent eXpense.........oceceeveeeeereenenes 354 257 158 118 66
Cash rent to joint ventures 190 — — 112 —
Cash distributions from joint ventures .......... (114) — — (55) —
Adjusted EBITDAR............ocooiiiiiiie 1,211 861 563 630 391
Adjusted EBITDAR as a percentage of
retail sales..............c..ooooniinii 10.8% 10.5% 10.8% 14.0% 14.9%
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The following table shows the reconciliation of SG&A to Normalized SG&A:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter Ended
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014 2013 January 30,2016 January 31, 2015
$ $ $ $ $
Reported SG&A ..o 4,066 2,759 1,826 1,499 736
Normalization adjustments
Non-cash pension (expense) recovery........... 17) 6) (21 3 14
Impairment and other non-cash expense....... %) 1) 4) &) 1)
Share based compensation.............c.ccceeeuenene (22) (15) 9 &) 4)
Acquisition and integration related
expenses W (133) (62) (124) 32) (13)
Joint ventures transaction Costs ..................... (46) — — (11) —
Home Outfitters onerous lease provision....... 2) (14) — 2) (14)
Foreign exchange adjustment © .................... “4) 14 — 51 14
Loyalty Zellers adjustment — 24 — — 24
Restructuring and other ...........ccoocevenenencene 21 5 (28) (12) 1)
North American realignment initiative ® .. 37 — — (12) —
Total normalizing adjustments...........c.cceceeeeneee (287) (55) (186) (127) 19
Normalized SG&A ...........ccoooiiiiiniiineeeens 3,779 2,704 1,640 1,372 755
Normalized SG&A as a percentage of retail
SALES ..o 33.9% 33.1% 31.4% 30.6% 28.7%
Notes:
(1)  Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the change in accounting policy relating to inventories. For more information,
please refer to “Change in Accounting Policy - Inventories” and “Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption”.
(2) Realigned from normalization adjustments in prior year presentation to EBITDA in the current year.
(3) Represents the gain realized as a result of the changes in ownership related to the Company’s investment in the joint ventures.
(4) Includes acquisition and integration expenses related to the acquisitions of Saks, Kaufhof and Gilt.
(5) Relating to the Saks Acquisition in the prior year and the Kauthof Acquisition in the current year.
(6) Represents the impact of unrealized (gains) losses related to the translation of U.S. dollar and Euro denominated monetary asset and liability
balances related to the overall tax and legal structure of the Company.
(7)  Represents the one time positive impact recognized in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014 related to the recognition of the change in redemption
patterns of previous Zellers customers.
(8)  Represents costs associated with the implementation of the Company’s North American operations realignment initiative announced on September
29, 2015.
(9) Rent expense to the joint ventures net of reclassification of rental income related to the Company’s ownership interest in the joint ventures (see

note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for the thirteen and fifty-two week periods ended January 30, 2016).
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The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) to Normalized Net Earnings:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter Ended
(restated V) (restated V)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014 2013 January 30,2016 January 31, 2015
$ $ $ $
Net Earnings (Loss) for the period —
continuing operations ................................. 387 233 (177) 370 115
Normalization adjustments @
Gain on contribution of assets to joint
VENEULES ....vveeeeeeereeeereere v eve v evee e eaneseanas (134) — — 27 —
Gain on sale of investments in joint ventures (333) — — (333) —
Gain on Queen Street Sale.........coccecveveeenne — (261) — — —
Dilution gain from investment in joint
VEILULC. ...ttt eee e (98) — — @) —
Acquisition and integration related expenses
and finance costs © .........ooveeeereereerrreens 73 84 256 2) 43
Joint ventures transaction Costs............cc........ 31 — — 8 —
Restructuring and other.........c.ccoceevevenceiennee 12 “4) 20 7 1
North American realignment initiative ¥ ...... 23 — — 7 —
Financing related adjustments @ .................. 37 47 8 24 25
Amortization of inventory (Igurchase price
accounting adjustments © 53 24 24 49 —
Home Outfitters onerous lease provision....... 1 10 — 1 10
Foreign exchange adjustment R ) (12) — 35 (12)
Adjustments to share of net loss in joint
ventures ® e, 32 — — 13 —
Loyalty Zellers adjustment @ ........................ — (18) — — (18)
Tax related adjustments ' ..., (20) 7 (52) — 7
Total normalizing adjustments.............c.ccceceeee (332) (137) 256 (225) 42
Normalized Net Earnings................c..cccocoeee. 55 96 79 145 157
Notes:
(1) Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the change in accounting policy relating to inventories. For more information, please

@
3)

“4)
©)
(6)
0

®)
&)

refer to “Change in Accounting Policy - Inventories” and “Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption”.

Net of income tax as appropriate.

Includes acquisition and integration expenses related to the acquisitions of Saks, Kauthof and Gilt. In addition, includes the recognition of non-
cash finance income (costs) related to Common Share purchase warrants of $37 million (2014: ($44) million) for the fiscal year and $25 million
(2014: ($35) million) for the fourth quarter.

Represents costs associated with the implementation of the Company’s North American operations realignment initiative announced on September
29,2015.

Includes write-off of deferred financing costs and in the prior year penalties on early extinguishment of debt.

Relating to the Saks Acquisition in the prior year and the Kauthof Acquisition in the current year.

Represents the impact of unrealized (gains) losses related to the translation of U.S. dollar and Euro denominated monetary asset and liability
balances related to the overall tax and legal structure of the Company.

Relates to the Company’s share of non-recurring transaction costs and foreign exchange related gains and losses incurred by the HBS Joint Venture.
Represents the one time positive impact recognized in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014 related to the recognition of the change in redemption
patterns of previous Zellers customers.

(10) Relates to capital loss realized upon repayment of U.S. dollar denominated debt.

EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure that we use to assess our operating performance. EBITDA is defined as Net

Earnings (Loss) before finance costs, income tax (expense) benefit, share of net loss in joint ventures, the gain on
contribution of assets to joint ventures, gain on sale of investments in joint ventures, the gain on Queen Street Sale, dilution
gain from investments in the HBS Joint Venture, non-cash pension (expense) recovery, depreciation and amortization
expense, impairment and other non-cash expenses and non-cash share based compensation expense. EBITDAR is defined
as EBITDA before rent expense to third parties and net rent expense to joint ventures.
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Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA adjusted to exclude: (i) business and organization restructuring/
realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses; and (iii) normalization and joint venture adjustments,
including those related to purchase accounting, if any, related to transactions that are not associated with day-to-day
operations. Adjusted EBITDAR is defined as Adjusted EBITDA excluding third party rent expense, cash rent to Joint
Ventures and cash distributions from Joint Ventures. Normalized Net Earnings is defined as Net Earnings (Loss) adjusted
to exclude: (i) business and organization restructuring/realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses;
(iii) normalizing adjustments, including those related to purchase accounting, if any, related to transactions that are not
associated with day-to-day operations. Normalized SG&A is defined as SG&A adjusted to exclude: (i) business and
organization restructuring/realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses; (iii) normalizing adjustments,
if any, related to transactions that are not associated with day-to-day operations. For further clarity, please refer to the
detailed tables reconciling Net Earnings (Loss) to Adjusted EBITDA and to Adjusted EBITDAR, reported SG&A to
Normalized SG&A and Net Earnings (Loss) to Normalized Net Earnings.

We have included EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized
SG&A to provide investors and others with supplemental measures of our operating performance. We believe EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized SG&A are important supplemental
measures of operating performance because they eliminate items that have less bearing on our operating performance
and thus highlight trends in our core business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying solely on IFRS financial
measures. We also believe that securities analysts, investors, rating agencies and other interested parties frequently use
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized SG&A in the evaluation
of issuers, many of which present similar metrics when reporting their results. Our management also uses Adjusted
EBITDAR in order to facilitate retail business operating performance comparisons from period to period, prepare annual
operating budgets and assess our ability to meet our future debt service, capital expenditure and working capital
requirements and our ability to pay dividends on our Common Shares. As other companies may calculate EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDAR, Normalized Net Earnings or Normalized SG&A differently than we do, these
metrics may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

For additional detail, refer to our tables outlining the relevant definitions and reconciliations of Net Earnings
(Loss) to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAR, reported SG&A to Normalized SG&A and Net Earnings
(Loss) to Normalized Net Earnings.

Results of Operations
Thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015
Retail Sales

Retail sales, which include digital sales from all banners, were $4,486 million for the thirteen week period
ended January 30, 2016, an increase of $1,854 million or 70.4% from $2,632 million for the thirteen week period ended
January 31, 2015. The majority of the increase is related to the addition of HBC Europe retail sales following the
Kaufhof Acquisition Date. Sales also grew as a result of new store openings, increased digital sales, combined with
continued positive results at DSG. Currency improvements on the translation of U.S. dollar denominated sales further
enhanced sales at DSG and Saks in the quarter.

Consolidated comparable store sales increased by 11.0% and on a constant currency basis by 1.8% over the
comparable thirteen week period in Fiscal 2014. On a constant currency basis, comparable store sales increased by
4.0% at DSG, decreased by 1.2% at Saks Fifth Avenue and increased by 2.0% and 0.4% at OFF 5TH and HBC Europe,
respectively.

Total digital sales increased by 61.6% and on a constant currency comparable basis by 22.8% over the
comparable thirteen week period in Fiscal 2014, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on growing this
channel.

In terms of merchandise category performance, sales growth at DSG was driven by women’s wear and home.
Sales decline at Saks Fifth Avenue was driven by women’s ready to wear partially offset by growth in menswear and
cosmetics; while at OFF 5TH, sales growth was driven by accessories and footwear. At HBC Europe, beauty and
accessories led merchandise sales growth during the quarter.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit was $1,782 million for the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to $1,080
million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. Adjusting for the negative impact associated with the
amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments of $69 million related to HBC Europe in the
current year, comparable gross profit increased by $771 million. The increase was primarily related to the addition of
HBC Europe following the Kauthof Acquisition Date. Improved volume performance at DSG and Saks, combined
with additional improvements in gross profit dollars as a result of favourable currency conversion on U.S. dollar
denominated sales, resulted in further improvements in the quarterly gross profit.

Gross profit rate, as a percentage of retail sales as reported was 39.7%. On a comparable basis, after adjusting
for the impacts related to the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments, gross profit as
a percentage of retail sales improved to 41.3% or by 30 basis points over the same comparable thirteen week period
ended January 31, 2015. Improvements in the gross profit rate in the quarter can be attributed to the addition of HBC
Europe, realizing gross profit rates in excess of Legacy HBC in the quarter. For additional discussion see “Factors
Affecting Our Performance — Gross Profit”.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

SG&A was $1,499 million for the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to $736 million
for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. The increase is primarily attributable to the addition of HBC
Europe related SG&A, additional rent expense associated with the Company’s real estate joint ventures, and also driven
by one-time expenses related to acquisition and integration activities associated with Gilt, HBC Europe, the joint
ventures and Saks. In addition, SG&A continues to be negatively impacted by the conversion of U.S. denominated
expenses into Canadian dollars.

Normalized SG&A was $1,372 million for the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to
$755 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, or an increase of $617 million. As a percentage of
retail sales, Normalized SG&A was 30.6% in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to 28.7% in the fourth quarter
of the prior year or a deterioration of 190 basis points. The increase in the Normalized SG&A rate can be attributed
primarily to a higher SG&A rate at HBC Europe.

Adjusting for the impact of net rent expense to the joint ventures of $33 million, Normalized SG&A as a
percentage of retail sales is reduced to 29.8% for the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAR

Adjusted EBITDA was $455 million, compared to $325 million in the thirteen week period ended January
31,2015, an increase of $130 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDA margin was 10.1% in the fourth
quarter of Fiscal 2015 compared to 12.3% in the fourth quarter of the prior year.

Adjusted EBITDAR was $630 million compared to $391 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, an
increase of $239 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDAR was 14.0% compared to 14.9% for the
fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were $60 million in the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to $111 million
for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, or a decrease of $51 million. The decrease is primarily the result
of changes related to non-cash finance income generated from mark to market adjustments associated with the valuation
of Common Share purchase warrants outstanding for the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to
non-cash finance expense generated for the prior year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $203 million in the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, compared to $21
million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. The effective income tax rate increased primarily due to
the impact of international tax rate differentials.

21



Net Earnings

Net Earnings were $370 million in the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to $115 million
in the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $255 million. The increase is primarily due to the
recognition of an after tax gain of $333 million in the quarter on the sale of a portion of the investments in joint ventures,
improved finance costs, offset in part by one time charges related to acquisition and integration related activities
associated with Gilt, HBC Europe, the joint ventures and Saks, purchase accounting adjustments and costs associated
with the North American operations realignment initiative.

Normalized Net Earnings

Normalized Net Earnings were $145 million in the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 compared
to $157 million in the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, a decrease of $12 million.

Fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015
Retail Sales

Retail sales were $11,162 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016, an increase of $2,993
million or 36.6% from $8,169 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. The increase is related to
the addition of HBC Europe retail sales following the Kaufhof Acquisition Date. Sales also grew as a result of new
store openings, increased digital sales combined with continued strong results at DSG and OFF 5TH. Comparative
growth at DSG and Saks on a year to date basis was further enhanced by currency improvement on the translation of
U.S. dollar denominated sales.

Consolidated comparable store sales increased by 12.1% and on a constant currency basis by 2.5% over the
comparable fifty-two week period in Fiscal 2014. On a constant currency basis, comparable store sales increased by
4.7% at DSG, decreased by 1.0% at Saks Fifth Avenue and increased by 6.3% and 1.7% at OFF 5TH and HBC Europe,
respectively.

Total digital sales increased by 48.5% and on a constant currency comparable basis by 23.2% over the fifty-
two week period ended January 31, 2015, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on growing this channel.

In terms of merchandise category performance, sales growth at DSG was driven by home goods and dresses.
Categories of strength at Saks Fifth Avenue included beauty, leather goods, and emerging contemporary brands, with
softness in women’s apparel; while at OFF 5TH, sales growth was driven by accessories and footwear. At HBC Europe,
beauty and accessories led merchandise sales growth during the period following the Kauthof Acquisition Date.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as reported was $4,524 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016, compared
to $3,268 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. Adjusting for the negative impact associated
with the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments in the prior year of $40 million and
$75 million related to HBC Europe in the current year, comparable gross profit improved by $1,291 million. Improved
volume performance at DSG and Saks, the addition of HBC Europe gross profit following the Kauthof Acquisition
Date, combined with additional improvements in reported gross profit dollars as a result of favourable currency
conversion on U.S. dollar denominated sales, resulted in overall improvements in gross profit dollars. For additional
discussion see “Factors Affecting Our Performance — Gross Profit”.

Gross profit rate, as a percentage of retail sales, was 40.5%. On a comparable basis, after deducting for the
impacts related to the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting adjustments, gross profit as a
percentage of retail sales improves to 41.2% or by 70 basis points over the same comparable fifty-two week period
ended January 31, 2015. The majority of the improvement is the result of the addition of HBC Europe with gross profit
rates in excess of Legacy HBC banners.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

SG&A as reported was $4,066 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to
$2,759 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. The increase can be attributable to the addition
of HBC Europe related SG&A, additional rent expense associated with the Company’s real estate joint ventures, and
other one-time adjustments related to acquisition and integration related activities associated with Gilt, HBC Europe,
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the joint ventures and Saks. In addition, SG&A continues to be negatively impacted by the conversion of U.S.
denominated expenses into Canadian dollars.

Normalized SG&A was $3,779 million compared to $2,704 million for the fifty-two week period ended January
31, 2015, or an increase of $1,075 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Normalized SG&A was 33.9% for the fifty-
two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to 33.1% for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015,
or a deterioration of 80 basis points. The increase in the Normalized SG&A rate can be attributed primarily to a higher
SG&A rate at HBC Europe.

Adjusting for the impact of net rent expense to the joint ventures of $37 million, Normalized SG&A as a
percentage of retail sales is reduced to 33.5% for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016

In the third quarter of Fiscal 2015, the Company announced an initiative to reduce SG&A through its North
American operations realignment program. Since the announcement, the Company realized synergies related to the
North America realignment of $23 million, and currently expects to meet its target of $75 million in annual savings
during Fiscal 2016.

During Fiscal 2015, the Company realized $39 million of synergies related to the Saks Acquisition, bringing
total savings from this initiative to $95 million. At this time, integration is largely complete, and the Company expects
to realize the remaining $5 million of its targeted $100 million in synergies throughout the course of Fiscal 2016.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAR

Adjusted EBITDA was $781 million compared to $604 million in the fifty-two week period ended January
31, 2015, an increase of $177 million. As a percentage of sales, Adjusted EBITDA was 7.0% compared to 7.4% in the
prior year.

Adjusted EBITDAR was $1,211 million compared to $861 million for the fifty-two week period ended January
31, 2015, an increase of $350 million. As a percentage of retail sales, Adjusted EBITDAR was 10.8% compared to
10.5% for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were $188 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to $262
million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, a decrease of $74 million. The decrease is primarily the
result of changes related to non-cash finance income generated from mark to market adjustments associated with the
valuation of Common Share purchase warrants outstanding for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016
compared to non-cash finance expense generated for the prior year.

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit

Income tax expense was $132 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared to an
income tax benefit of $22 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. The effective income tax rate
for the fifty-two week period increased primarily due to the impact of international tax rate differentials and non-
deductible permanent differences principally consisting of transaction costs and the favourable tax treatment related
to the Queen Street Sale in the prior year.

Net Earnings

Net Earnings were $387 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 30,2016 compared to $233 million
in the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $154 million. The year-over-year increase in
earnings is primarily the result of the inclusion of the after tax gains from joint venture transactions offset by after tax
gains recognized on the Queen Street Sale of $261 million in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 and one time charges in
the current year related to the Kaufhof Acquisition, the joint ventures and costs associated with the North American
realignment initiative.

Normalized Net Earnings

Normalized Net Earnings were $55 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 30, 2016 compared
to $96 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.
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Kaufhof Transaction

On September 30, 2015, HBC and the HBS Joint Venture completed the Kauthof Acquisition by acquiring
GALERIA Holding, the parent company of Germany’s leading department store GALERIA Kaufhof and Belgium’s
only department store, Galeria Inno, for a total purchase price of €2.3 billion. In conjunction with the Kaufhof
Acquisition, the HBS Joint Venture acquired 41 Kaufhof properties.

The transaction was structured such that the Company effectively acquired the Kauthof Operating Business
for €709 million ($1.1 billion) while the HBS Joint Venture acquired the Kauthof Property Business valued at €1.6
billion ($2.4 billion), in each case, for accounting purposes.

During the year, the Company recorded a net loss of $3 million from Kauthof operations. This loss is net of
significant non-recurring acquisition and integration expenses, amortization of purchase price accounting adjustments
and restructuring charges, in addition to all other expenses including depreciation and amortization, finance costs and
income tax expense.

The revised purchase price allocation for the transaction, adjusted for measurement period adjustments in the
fourth quarter, is as follows:

HBS Joint
HBC Venture Total
Kauthof Kaufhof
(millions of Euros) Operating Property GALERIA
Business Business Holding
CASI Lttt 214 152 366
Inventories V......coo.coovvverriecrnenann. 518 — 518
Property, plant and equipment @ ...............cco..cooveivereeieneeeee e 700 1,809 2,509
Intangible assets 344 117 461
Other assets.............. 136 41 177
Finance leases (145) 17) (162)
PIOVISIONS ...vteitititieteetietet ettt sttt ettt e et e ebeebeeseesaessessensensensensensens 43) 2) 45)
Deferred taX Habilities .......cvevverierierierieriesie ettt ee e e saesae e sseeneas (32) (184) (216)
Pensions and employee benefits............coeceviriiiiiiininiiiccc e (318) @)) 319)
Other HabIIITIES ....evevieeieiieiieiie ettt ettt (665) 307) 972)
Total identifiable net assets acquired and cash consideration given ............... 709 1,608 2,317
(1) Includes measurement period adjustments of €12 million. See note 4 of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended January 30, 2016.
2) Includes a measurement period adjustment of €12 million. See note 4 of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the

year ended January 30, 2016.

The acquisition was financed in part by new real estate debt secured by 41 Kaufthof properties acquired by
the HBS Joint Venture that had a transaction value of €2.6 billion ($4.0 billion). Additional financing for the transaction
was provided by a new term loan at HBC and cash contributions by Simon to the HBS Joint Venture.

The Kauthof Acquisition creates a global retail platform for the Company and provides the Company with an
opportunity to grow internationally both through acquisitions and the eventual introduction of Saks Fifth Avenue and
OFF 5TH into the German market. The Kaufhof Acquisition also provides the Company with a strong foundation to
explore additional strategic growth prospects throughout Europe allowing for HBC to continue moving forward into
becoming a global world class retailer and in the process of doing so, creating additional value for our shareholders.

Real Estate Joint Ventures

The RioCan-HBC JV and the HBS Joint Venture (together, the “Joint Ventures”) have created new growth
platforms for the Company. The joint ventures have mandates to acquire additional assets that are expected to diversify
the portfolios and tenant base of each joint venture creating additional value for our shareholders.

On closing of the first tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV on July 9, 2015, HBC contributed 7 owned or ground
leased properties (including Hudson’s Bay flagship properties in downtown Vancouver, Calgary, Ottawa, and Montreal)
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with approximately 2.6 million square feet and valued at approximately $1.3 billion. RioCan contributed a 50% interest
in two mall properties in Ontario, Oakville Place and Georgian Mall. HBC received $352 million in cash proceeds from
new debt issued at the RioCan-HBC JV.

On November 25, 2015, the second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV closed. On closing of the second tranche
of the RioCan-HBC JV, the Company indirectly contributed three additional ground leased properties, being the YSS
Properties, totaling approximately 736,000 square feet, to the RioCan-HBC JV, with a transaction value of approximately
$379 million based on a capitalization rate of 5.26%. RioCan has committed to contribute a total of $325 million to
the RioCan-HBC JV for an eventual pro forma equity stake of approximately 20%. The balance of these contributions
will consist of $53 million in tenant allowances, and $125 million to be used to fund future property acquisitions to
increase the value and diversify the tenant base of the RioCan-HBC JV. These contributions are expected to be made
by the third anniversary of the first tranche closing date.

On August 4, 2015, HBC obtained a favourable court declaration and order from the Superior Court of Justice-
Ontario which permitted the indirect contribution of the YSS Properties to the RioCan-HBC JV. This court order was
appealed by the related landlords. On February 10, 2016, the Court of Appeal for Ontario denied the landlords’ appeal.

For reporting purposes, the leases related to the YSS Properties were assessed and classified as operating
leases. In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2015, the Company recognized a pre-tax gain on the contribution of the YSS
Properties of approximately $35 million based on RioCan’s interest in the RioCan-HBC JV after the closing of the
second tranche. Additionally, as part of the transaction, the Company’s mortgage on the Yorkdale ground lease of
approximately $47 million was assumed by an entity related to the RioCan-HBC JV.

On closing of the HBC-Simon JV on July 22, 2015, the Company contributed 42 owned or ground leased
properties valued at approximately U.S.$1.7 billion, including the Saks Fifth Avenue Beverly Hills flagship and the
Westchester and Manhasset Lord & Taylor stores. The contributed properties total approximately 5.4 million square
feet. HBC received U.S.$600 million in cash proceeds from new debt issued at the HBC-Simon JV. Simon contributed
an initial amount of U.S.$1 million upon closing. On September 30, 2015, prior to the Kauthof Acquisition, the HBC-
Simon JV became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HBS Joint Venture. Simon contributed an additional U.S.$178 million
to the HBS Joint Venture as part of the acquisition of the Kaufhof Property Business. Simon is also committed to
providing an additional U.S.$99 million to the HBS Joint Venture for improvements to properties contributed by HBC
to the joint venture.

In conjunction with the Kaufhof Acquisition, the HBS Joint Venture acquired 41 Kaufhof properties valued,
for accounting purposes, at approximately €1.8 billion ($2.7 billion). This transaction was financed by a combination
of a ten year real estate loan secured by the 41 properties, available cash held by the HBS Joint Venture and cash
contributions by Simon and HBC.

On November 17, 2015, the Company sold a portion of its equity in the HBS Joint Venture (including a related
entity) to three new third party investors, for total proceeds of U.S.$533 million. Proceeds from the equity sale, together
with cash on hand, were used to reduce the Company’s outstanding U.S. Term Loan B from U.S.$1,085 million to U.S.
$500 million. The total third party investment of U.S.$533 million values the HBS Joint Venture’s portfolio at
approximately U.S.$4.5 billion based on a blended capitalization rate of 5.90%, and comprised of individual investments
from the following entities:

e U.S.$250 million equity investment by Ivanhoé Cambridge;
e U.S.$150 million equity investment by Madison International Realty; and
*  U.S.$133 million equity investment by a large U.S. pension.

The Joint Ventures have been established with dedicated management teams focused on overseeing the
contributed properties and growing the portfolio, with support from HBC, Simon, RioCan and Ivanhoé¢ Cambridge.
RioCan-HBC JV’s board of directors is comprised of four directors, two of whom have been appointed by each of HBC
and RioCan. The HBS Joint Venture’s board of directors is comprised of five directors, two of whom have been appointed
by each of HBC and Simon and one of whom has been appointed by Ivanhoé Cambridge. Unanimous Board consent
of HBC and Simon members is required for all major operating decisions.
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RioCan-HBC JV

The following provides additional information relating to the RioCan-HBC JV, which, for greater certainty, includes
the indirect contribution of the YSS Properties as of November 25, 2015, for the periods indicated:

Statement of Earnings

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Rental reVENUE .......oooviieieiieee e
Property Operating CoStS........coeririrererenierienieeeineeieeiesie e
Operating iNCOME...............coocoeviiiiniiiiieeeeee e
Depreciation and amortization............ceceeeeruereereeieneecene e
Earnings before finance costs ..................ccooooeviiiiiinieneee
FINance COSES, NET.....ccouviiiieieeceeieeeee e e
Net arnings..........ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e

Balance Sheet

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Assets

INVESMENt PIOPEITIES ..vevvverveereeniiereeteetesieetesteeresreesesseeseeseessens
Other NON-CUITENT ASSELS ...uvvieiieereieeeieieieeeeeieiieeeeeeeereeeeeeeeaaeeeeeas
Total @SSELS.......cevvviiiiiiiieiee e

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..........ccccoocevirvencnenen.
Loans and bOITOWINGS ........ccueeverieeieiieieniieieeeeieseesee e seneeeas
Total current Habilities........ccerverieierieieieieceeecee e

Loans and bOITOWINGS ........cceeueerieeieniieieniieieeeeee e
Other non-current liabilities ........c.ccoeeeeiririininieninineneneeene
Total Habilities. .....coveuerueuerieiriiiriciricieie s

Partners’ Equity

Partners’ capital.........ccooerieiieieieeeeee e
DIETICIE .ttt
Total partners’ equity..............ccceveveeiieiiienienie e
Total liabilities and partners’ equity..................cccoevveeviencreenen.
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Thirteen week period Period from July 9, 2015

ended to
January 30, 2016 January 30, 2016

28 58

3) (6)

25 52

(1) 21

14 31

— 2

14 29

January 30, 2016

................................................... 1
................................................... 1
................................................... 1,755
................................................... 142
................................................... 1,898
................................................... 3
................................................... 2
................................................... 5
................................................... 546
................................................... 1
................................................... 552
................................................... 1,356
................................................... (10)
................................................... 1,346
................................................... 1,898




Statement of Cash Flows

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Operating activities

Net earnings for the period
Add: Finance costs, net
Earnings before finance costs
Less: Net cash interest paid

Items not affecting cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash rental income
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Capital expenditures..
Net cash outflow for investing activities

Financing activities

Long-term loans and borrowings:

Borrowings............
Repayments...........
Proceeds paid to partners
Distributions paid ....
Net cash outflow for financing activities
Increase in cash..........
Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period
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Period from July 9, 2015
to
January 30, 2016

29
2

31
(1

21
)

42

(M

1)

352
(1)
(352)
(39)

(40)




HBS Joint Venture

The following provides additional information relating to the HBS Joint Venture, which, for greater certainty, includes
the contribution of the Kaufhof properties as of the Kauthof Acquisition Date for the periods indicated.

Statement of Net Earnings and Comprehensive Income

Thirteen week period Period from July 22, 2015

ended to

(millions of U.S. dollars) January 30, 2016 January 30, 2016
ReENtal TEVENUE ......eieiiieiiiciiecieeeteecte ettt 87 142
Property Operating COSS ........cvvverreieriieienieieseeeeeseeseeseesseseneeens (14) (14)

73 128
General and administrative €XPenses .........cceceveevereeeenieeneneeneenne (20) (48)
Depreciation and amortization .............ceeceeveeiereereereeneseenesneeens (20) 37
Earnings before finance CostS..........ccovirvieriivierieecienieresieieeeenens 33 43
FINance CoStS, NEL........ccvverriierieeiiierieereerieeieesee e sre e eve e (25) (42)
Earnings before inCome taxes........cceevevueeeererenenerenenenensennennens 8 1
Income tax benefit.......c.ccouevieierieiriririninenseese e 2 1
Net Earnings...........ccocovevviiiiiiiiieiieieiceeese e 10 2
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation adjustment.............ccoeoeeeeveeiesieceneeseeeeene 5 9
Total comprehensive income....................cccooeeeiiiiieciiiecieciee, 15 11
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Balance Sheet

(millions of U.S. dollars) January 30, 2016
Assets

CASHL ettt bttt e e a et a bt aeea e eb bt bt ettt naentan 103
OthET CUITENE ASSELS.....vteutieuietieiierteete st ettt et e et et e et e et e et e bt ese e et eseesaeeneesatensesseesesseenseeseenseeneeseans 13
TOtal CUTENT ASSEES........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiicce ettt sttt sae e 116
INVESTMENT PIOPEITIES ....euveeieneieiieete et et ettt ettt ettt et e et e bt s e see e e sse et e seeentesseeaesseeseeseenbeeneenteans 3,841
INtANZIDIC ASSELS ....veuvieeieiieeieie ettt ettt e et e bt et e e ese et e essesseessesseensesseensessaesessaensennsenseans 53
Assets controlled by non-controlling iNterest ............ccevievereerieiierieeieieeeere et eee e eee e reeeees 143
Other NON=-CUITENE ASSELS ......erueeuiirtieieiteeteeteete et eete et et e et e bt esee et eneeeseeneeseeensesseesesseensesseenseeneenseans 40
TOtAL @SS ..eeeiieeeiiiee ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e e et eeeesee e s eeesesaaseeesessaraaeeeesanaaaeeesesareeeesesnnnnes 4,193
Liabilities

L0aNS AN DOTTOWINES ......eeuieuiieiietteie sttt ettt ettt ettt et ste et e sbeentesbeentesbeebesssenbeeneenteens 3
DEfRITEA TEVEIUE. ... .c.uiieiiieiieeieeetie ettt e te et e et e et e s be e bt e seb e e beesaaeebeessseesseessseasseessseanseeseeas 23
Other CUITENt HADIIITIES ....eevvevieiiieiieiecteie sttt ettt este e e saeesaesteessesseessessaensesssessenssesanns 165
Total current Habilities ...............cccooiiiiiiiiiic et 191
L0ANS AN DOTTOWINGS......eeveriieieitieieeieetestetesteteetesteesteseessesseessesseessesseessesseessesssessesssessenssensenns 2,267
Deferred tax Habilities. ... coueiiiiirieieeee ettt s 196
Liabilities controlled by non-controlling interest ...........c.ceveerieriereeieseeieeeere e 106
Other NON-CUITENt LHADIIITIS ... eevveevieiiriieiecteie ettt et e st esaesteesaesseessessaessessseseessensenns 103
TOtAl HHADIIIEIES ..evvvviee i ete e e ee et e e e etaa e e e e eesasteeeeeseenaaaeeeesennaaseeeesannnnes 2,863
Members’ equity

MEMDBETS” CAPILAL....cueireieieiieiiee ettt ettt sttt et e st e e st ettt et e e e e saeeeesneenneenean 1,355
D] 1 L USSR (71)
Accumulated other cOMPrehensive INCOME .......ccevvieieriieierieeieceeieeeee ettt ae e eeeeees 9
NON-CONIOIING TNTETEST.....ecviiiieiiiitieieiteeteetete ettt ettt e e eaesreesbe e e sbessaesbeessesseessesseensenseessenses 37
Total MeMDErs’ @QUILY............ccoeiiiiiiiiiecie et ere et e et e st e e aaeesbeestaeenbeensee s 1,330
Total liabilities and members’ eqUity................ccccoiiiiiiiiirii e 4,193
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Statement of Cash Flows

Period from July 22, 2015

(millions of U.S. dollars) Januar;go, 2016
Operating activities
Net earnings for the PEriod..........cevieeierieiieiieieeiet ettt ees 2
Deduct: Income tax Denefit ........c.ccvecviriieiiiiiiiiiieie et e €))
Add: FINANCE COSES, NEL .vvvviiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ee ettt e e e ettt e e e e senaae e e e s seaaaeeesseeaaeeeeeeanns 42
Earnings before finance COSES.......coiiriiiiiirieierieie ettt 43
Interest paid N CASN.......ccuiiiiiiciee et 32)
Items not affecting cash flows:
Depreciation and amOTtiZAtION .......c..c.eeeverierieriereesieriestesieetesieeeesseeeesseessesseesesseensesns 37
Unrealized foreign eXchange 10SSES .......ocvevieieriieieniieiesie ettt se e eaesees 22
Straight-1ine rental TEVENUE .........ociiuiiiiiiieeee e e (24)
Changes in operating Working capital............ccoccvevuerierienienieeiesie e 11
Net cash inflow from operating activities.................cocooiiiiiiie, 57
Investing activities
Acquisition of Kauthof Property Business, net of cash acquired..........cccoeovevivrieninrennne (1,810)
Net cash outflow from investing activities....................ccoceriiiiiniiiiiicc (1,810)
Financing activities
Long-term loans and borrowings:
TSy D1 OO 2,357
REPAYIMEGILS ...ttt ettt et e et et e b et e eae e eeee 99)
BOITOWING COSES...uvivieiieiietieietieteeteete st e e st e e setesteseeebessaeseenseseesseseessesseensesseensennes 29)
2,229
ContribUtiONS TECEIVEA .....c.ieiiieieiieierie ettt ettt et sae et saeeeesbeeneeneeas 307
Proceeds paid t0 MEMDETS........ccveiiieieiieieriieie st sae e ses (600)
DiStribULIONS PAIA ....cvviieieiiieieieeieiiei ettt ettt sttt beste et esb e beessesseessesseessesseensenns (73)
Net cash inflow from financing activities ................c.ccccooviiiiiiiii i 1,863
Foreign exchange 108S 0n Cash..........ccovieiiiiiiiiiiee e @)
INCTEASE TN CASH ...ttt ettt s 103
Cash at beginning of Period................cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiecee e —
Cash at end of PEriod ...............cooooiiiiiiiiie et eaae e 103
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Summary of Consolidated Quarterly Results

The following table summarizes quarterly financial information of the Company for the past eight quarters.

Fiscal Quarter Ended

(restated V)
(millions of Canadian dollars Jan 30, Oct 31, Aug 1, May 2, Jan 31, Nov 1, Aug 2, May 3,
except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Retail sales .......ovevvevereririeiriinne 4,486 2,566 2,038 2,072 2,632 1,913 1,769 1,855
Adjusted EBITDA 455 170 52 104 325 118 70 91
Adjusted EBITDAR....................... 630 282 125 174 391 184 131 155
Net Earnings (L0SS) ........cccocevuenee 370 7 59 (49) 115 (12) (43) 173
Normalized Net Earnings (Loss) .. 145 @)) (61) (28) 157 4 (35) 30)
Net Earnings (Loss) per Common
Share - Basic ‘“.......ccccovninenene. 2.03 0.04 0.33 0.27) 0.63 (0.06) (0.24) 0.95
Net Earnings (Loss&)per Common
Share - Diluted *“..........ccccoee. 1.88 (0.07) 0.33 (0.30) 0.62 (0.07) (0.23) 0.97
Reported Retail Sales Percentage
Change .......ccccceveercccccucuenen 70.4% 34.1% 15.2% 11.7% 9.3% 94.4% 86.6% 109.8%
Comparable Store Sales
Percentage Change ©
Consolidated ..........cccovveuecenneucncne 11.0% 12.9% 14.3% 11.7% 8.7% 7.1% 5.0% 8.6%
Consolidated (constant currency
DASIS) ..o 1.8% 2.0% 4.2% 2.7% 3.2% 2.7% 1.9% 2.8%
DSG @ oo 4.0% 5.1% 4.9% 4.9% 2.5% 1.4% 1.1% 2.6%
Saks Fifth Avenue ® ................... (1.2%) (3.6%) 0.1% 0.6% 2.3% 1.3% 0.3% 2.4%
OFF S5TH @ ..o 2.0% 2.8% 12.7% 10.3% 11.4% 19.2% 15.2% 15.2%
HBC Europe ... 0.4% 6.6% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Notes:
(1)  All previously reported figures have been restated due to the change in accounting policy relating to inventories. For more information, please

refer to “Change in Accounting Policy - Inventories” and “Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption”.

(2)  Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share (“EPS”) in each quarter is computed using the weighted-average number of Common Shares
outstanding during that quarter, while EPS for the full year is computed using the weighted-average number of Common Shares outstanding
during the year. Thus, the sum of the four quarters’ EPS may not equal the full-year EPS.

(3) The Company calculates comparable store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least 13 months and includes digital
sales and clearance store sales. The calculation for comparable store sales excludes sales related accounting adjustments for DSG, Saks Fifth
Avenue, OFF 5TH and HBC Europe. Consolidated comparable store sales include results for all banners.

(4)  Based on realignment of banners by management, DSG has replaced separate Hudson’s Bay and Lord & Taylor reporting of comparable store
sales percentage and also includes Home Outfitters since the third quarter of Fiscal 2014 (see “General Information’). Comparable store sales
for DSG are calculated on a constant currency basis.

(5)  Comparable store sales of Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF STH are calculated in U.S. dollars.

(6)  Comparable store sales of HBC Europe are calculated in Euros following the Kaufhof Acquisition Date.

Outlook

Management is confirming its Adjusted EBITDAR and EBITDA guidance for Fiscal 2016 and increasing its
sales guidance to take into account the impact of the Gilt Acquisition. Management currently expects Adjusted EBITDA

growth to be further weighted towards the second half of the year due to flat rent expense associated with the Company’s
Joint Ventures which is spread evenly over the course of the year. These rent expenses are not included in Adjusted
EBITDAR. The Company currently expects the following results for Fiscal 2016, which are fully qualified by the
“Forward-Looking Statements” section of this MD&A.
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(Canadian dollars) Fiscal 2016

SALES ...ttt ettt ettt et ettt et et et et et ent et et et et et et en et ernenens $14.9 to $15.9 billion
Adjusted EBITDAR .....ccocooooiiiiiiietietieie sttt ettt ettt se st eseesessessessessessessansenes $1,560 to $1,710 million
Adjusted EBITDA ........ooeieieeteeeeeetett ettt ettt sttt st seae s enaesseessesseensesns $800 to $950 million

This outlook assumes low single digit comparable store sales growth, calculated on a constant currency basis.

The Company currently expects that in Fiscal 2016 it will make higher than normal investments in growth
initiatives, with total capital investments, net of landlord incentives, expected to be between $750 million and $850
million, which is approximately 4.9%-5.5% of the midpoint of the sales outlook. Included in these amounts is the
anticipated capital spend associated with the Company’s recent acquisitions: HBC Europe and Gilt. Capital expenditure
related to growth initiatives is expected to be approximately 70% of the total amount, with the remaining 30%
representing maintenance capital expenditures.

Of the Company’s investment in growth initiatives, approximately:
*  40% is expected to be related to store renovations, including the renovation of the Saks Fifth Avenue New
York flagship store and renovations to our stores in Europe;

*  30% is expected to be related to new stores. The Company anticipates opening a total of 7 new Saks Fifth
Avenue stores and approximately thirty-two new OFF 5TH stores;

*  30% is expected to be related to digital and technology investments, including the implementation of robotic
automation in the Toronto distribution centre and new internet distribution centre in the U.S.

The above outlook reflects exchange rate assumptions of USD:CAD = 1:1.32 & EUR:CAD = 1:1.50. Any
variation in these foreign exchange rate assumptions could impact the above outlook.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

Total cash, including restricted cash, is managed to remain at minimal levels by drawing on or repaying our
revolving credit facilities. Our liquidity and capital resources are primarily impacted by: (i) current cash and cash
equivalents; (ii) operating activities; (iii) investing activities; and (iv) financing activities. The following table
summarizes cash flows by activity:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter Ended

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014 January 30,2016  January 31, 2015

$ $ $ $
Operating aCtiVities .......ecueveruerrerreriereereeeeieriereeseesreseesneeneas 18 547 656 667
INVESting ACtIVITICS ....eouveueenieieieeiesieeieeieee ettt 448 441 483 (78)
Financing aCtiVities........ccuevveruerierienienienieieieniesiesieereeveeneenes (138) (848) (948) 471)
Increase in Cash.........cccoeoivirieincninincccceeee e 328 140 191 118
Foreign exchange gain on cash..... 11 7 24 6
Cash at beginning of period.......... 168 21 292 44
Cash at end of period ..........ccceveveriririeieieeeeeeeeenen 507 168 507 168

Net Cash Flow - Operating Activities

Net cash inflow from operating activities was $18 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30,
2016 compared to $547 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31,2015, a decrease of $529 million. The
decrease is due primarily to higher investments in working capital in the current period.

For the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016, net cash inflow from operating activities was $656
million compared to $667 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, a decrease of $11 million.
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Net Cash Flow - Investing Activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities was $448 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30,
2016 compared to $441 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $7 million.
Increased capital expenditures combined with the acquisition of the Kauthof Operating Business and investments in
joint ventures were almost completely offset by the proceeds received from the contribution of assets to the joint ventures
in Fiscal 2015.

For the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 net cash inflow for investing activities was $483 million
compared to an outflow of $78 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. The increase in inflow of
$561 million is primarily due to the proceeds on the sale of a portion of the Company’s equity in the HBS Joint Venture.

Capital Expenditures

The tables below summarize our capital investments by major areas:

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
IMETCRANAISING ...ttt sttt s ettt et beebe et e st entesbenbestesbeseesseeseeneeneans 392 249
Information teChNOIOZY ......eovirviiiiiiieiieeee ettt sttt 96 40
DiIGItAl COMIMETCE ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt et et sbeebeeaeeaeentesbensentesbeseesseeseeneensens 46 26
IMAAINEENANCE ....venvietieiieiieiieieteet et et et eet et etestestesbe bt e st estestenbenbebesbeebeeseeneensensensentessessesseeseeneeneans 76 111
Total capital expenditures 610 426
Landlord INCENTIVES .......c.erueriieiiriieiieiieitetete ettt ettt e te sttt sbeeteeatent et e bestesbeseesseeseeneeneens (234) (113)
Net capital eXPenditures ................ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 376 313
Note:

(1) Capital expenditures are inclusive of software development costs.

In addition to capital investments, we received combined vendor allowances and landlord incentives related
to capital expenditures of $234 million and $113 million in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2014, respectively. Accordingly,
capital expenditures net of vendor allowances and landlord incentives were $376 million and $313 million, respectively.

Net Cash Flow - Financing Activities

Net cash outflow for financing activities was $138 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 30,
2016 compared to $848 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, a decrease in net outflow of
$710 million over the comparable period. The decrease in outflow in the current year primarily relates to increased
issuances of both long-term and short-term borrowings.

For the thirteen week period ended January 30, 2016 net cash outflow for financing activities was $948 million
compared to $471 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. The increase in outflow of $477 million
over the comparable period can be attributed primarily to increased issuances of both long-term and short-term
borrowings.

Cash Balances and Liquidity

The Company’s primary needs for cash are to fund: (i) operations; (ii) capital expenditures in connection with
our new store opening and renovation programs, technology investments and strategic initiatives; (iii) seasonal inventory
purchases and other working capital requirements; (iv) debt service and (v) acquisitions. Working capital requirements
are at their highest in the latter half of the fiscal year as inventory builds through the fall, peaking just before the holiday
selling season.

The Company’s primary sources of funds are cash flows provided by operations, landlord incentives, our
Global ABL (see “Subsequent Events” section of this MD&A) revolving credit facilities, and mortgage backed real
estate financing. Other potential sources of funding may include new corporate loans and mortgages, the sale and
leaseback of real estate properties, selling real estate, selling other company assets and investments or the issuance of
equity. The availability of funding sources is dependent on economic conditions, capital markets, and our financial
condition.
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The Company may consider additional acquisitions of, and investments in, retail businesses, real estate and
other complimentary assets or companies. Transactions, if any, are expected to be financed through a combination of
the following sources: cash on hand, borrowing under existing or new credit facilities and the issuance of long term
debt or other securities, including Common Shares.

Funding Capacity

The Company anticipates that we will be able to satisfy our working capital requirements, planned capital
expenditures and debt service requirements with proceeds from cash flows from operations, short-term trade credit,
seasonal borrowings under our revolving credit facilities and other sources of financing. The Company expects to
generate adequate cash flow from operating activities to sustain current levels of operations.

Management believes that there is not a significant risk of default and/or arrears on lease payments, interest
or principal payment of debt, or of a breach of debt covenants.

There is no provision in debt, lease, or other arrangements that could trigger an additional funding requirement
for the Company. There are no legal or practical restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to transfer funds to the
Company that would affect the ability to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

HBC Revolving Credit Facility

Prior to entering into the Global ABL on February 5, 2016 (see below for details), HBC was party to a revolving
credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. (through its Canadian branch), as administrative agent and collateral agent
(the “HBC Revolving Credit Facility”). As of January 30, 2016, HBC had a balance of nil under the HBC Revolving
Credit Facility and HBC was in compliance with all covenants contained in the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility had a total availability of $600 million (reduced from $750 million pursuant
to an amendment dated December 17, 2014, which also extended the maturity date to December 17, 2019). The HBC
Revolving Credit Facility was subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory of HBC (excluding
L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries and any real estate subsidiaries) and eligible credit card receivables of HBC and
certain of its subsidiaries (excluding L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries and any real estate subsidiaries). The HBC
Revolving Credit Facility bore interest based on various rates depending on which facility was utilized, including the
Canadian prime rate, CDOR rate, U.S. index rate and LIBOR rate. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility was available
to finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures or other general corporate purposes and to make certain
restricted payments, investments and repayments of indebtedness, and could be drawn in both U.S. and Canadian
dollars. As the HBC Revolving Credit Facility was available for and used to finance working capital requirements,
capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes, it is classified in the consolidated balance sheets as part of
current loans and borrowings.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility contained restrictive covenants customary for credit facilities of this
nature, including restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, restrictions on capital expenditures and restrictions on
payments to affiliates and shareholders. It also included events of default and representations and warranties that are
customary for credit facilities of this nature.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility was secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and
accounts receivable in Canada.

This revolving credit facility, which had no balance as of January 30, 2016, was terminated and replaced by
the Global ABL (see below for details).

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility

Prior to entering into the Global ABL on February 5, 2016 (see below for details), L&T Acquisition was party
to arevolving credit agreement with Bank of America, N.A. as administrative agent and collateral agent as of November
4,2013 (the “U.S. Revolving Credit Facility”). As of January 30, 2016, L&T Acquisition owed U.S.$331 million under
the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility. L&T Acquisition was in compliance with all covenants contained in the U.S.
Revolving Credit Facility.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility provided a U.S.$1.1 billion revolving line of credit through November 4,
2018 (increased from U.S.$950 million pursuant to an amendment dated December 17, 2014) and refinanced revolving
credit facilities previously in place for Saks and Lord & Taylor. This revolving credit facility was subject to a borrowing
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base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and accounts receivable of Lord & Taylor, Saks and their respective
subsidiaries (other than real estate subsidiaries). The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility was available to finance working
capital needs, capital expenditures, operating activities and to support the issuance of standby letters of credit. The U.S.
Revolving Credit Facility had multiple interest rate charge options that were based on the U.S. prime rate, Federal
Funds rate and LIBOR. As the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility was available for and used to finance working capital
requirements, capital expenditures and other operating activities, it has been classified in the consolidated balance
sheets as part of current loans and borrowings. However, the Company was not required to repay the balance outstanding
as at January 30, 2016 until the maturity date of November 4, 2018.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility contained restrictive covenants customary for credit facilities of this nature,
including restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, financial maintenance covenants, and restrictions on payments
to affiliates and shareholders. It also included events of default and representations and warranties that are customary
for credit facilities of this nature.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility was secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and
accounts receivables in the United States (L&T Acquisition and Saks and certain of their respective subsidiaries).

Subsequent to the year-end, this facility was repaid in full and replaced by the Global ABL (see below for
details).

Global ABL

On February 5, 2016, the Company entered into a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility, the
Global ABL, with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent and collateral agent replacing the HBC Revolving
Credit Facility and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility existing at January 30, 2016. The Global ABL of U.S. $1.9 billion
has a maturity date of February 5, 2021 with key terms that are consistent with the credit facilities existing at January
30, 2016. The Global ABL is divided into three tranches consisting of: (i) a U.S. subfacility, (ii) a Canadian subfacility
and (iii) a German subfacility, and is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and
accounts receivable of HBC, L&T Acquisition, Saks, Kaufhof and certain of their respective subsidiaries (other than
real estate subsidiaries). The Global ABL is available on a revolving basis to, among other things, finance working
capital needs, capital expenditures, operating activities and to support the issuance of standby letters of credit. The
Global ABL has multiple interest rate charge options that are based on the U.S. prime rate, Federal Funds rate, LIBOR
rate, Canadian prime rate, CDOR rate, and European LIBOR rate.

The Global ABL contains restrictive covenants customary for credit facilities of this nature, including
restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, financial maintenance covenants, and restrictions on payments to affiliates
and shareholders. It also includes events of default and representations and warranties that are customary for credit
facilities of this nature. HBC is in compliance with all covenants contained in the Global ABL.

The Global ABL is secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receiveable in
Canada (HBC), the United States (L&T Acquisition and Saks and certain of their subsidiaries) and Germany (Kauthof
and certain of its subsidiaries).

Senior Term Loan B

On November 4, 2013, in connection with the closing of the Saks Acquisition, the Company entered into an
agreement for a U.S.$2.0 billion senior secured term loan facility (“Senior Term Loan B”) with Bank of America, N.A.
as the administrative agent.

Senior Term Loan B was scheduled to mature on November 4, 2020 and carried an interest rate of LIBOR
plus 3.75% per annum. The agreement was structured such that LIBOR was deemed to be not less than 1% per annum
(“LIBOR Floor”). Senior Term Loan B was subject to mandatory prepayments. The Senior Term Loan B was secured
by a second priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receivables, a first priority security interest over
substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries.

On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid U.S. $150 million of Senior Term Loan B (see note 13 to the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015). In connection with the repayment, $5 million of deferred
financing costs were written off and $1 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were incurred (see note 6 to
the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015).
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On December 3, 2014, HBC repaid U.S. $1.2 billion of Senior Term Loan B using proceeds from the Saks
Mortgage. In connection with the repayment, $34 million of deferred financing costs were written off (see note 6 to
the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015).

On July 9, 2015 and July 23,2015, HBC repaid U.S.$150 million and U.S.$500 million, respectively, of Senior
Term Loan B using proceeds from the contribution of assets to joint ventures (see note 12 to the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015). In connection with the repayment, $18 million of deferred financing
fees were written off (see note 6 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015).

Junior Term Loan

Concurrently with the closing of Senior Term Loan B, the Company obtained an incremental junior secured
term loan facility of U.S.$300 million (the “Junior Term Loan”). The Junior Term Loan was scheduled to mature on
November 4,2021 and had an initial interest rate of LIBOR (with a LIBOR Floor) plus 7.25% per annum. The remaining
credit terms of the Junior Term Loan were substantially consistent with Senior Term Loan B with the exception that
the Junior Term Loan was not subject to Senior Term Loan B’s previously required quarterly principal repayments.

The Junior Term Loan was secured by a third priority security interest over all inventory and accounts
receivable, a second priority security interest over substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. Proceeds from the Junior Term Loan were used to finance the Saks Acquisition.

On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid the Junior Term Loan in full (see note 13 to the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015). In connection with the repayment of the Junior Term Loan, $13
million of deferred financing costs were written off and $11 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were
incurred (see note 6 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015).

U.S. Term Loan B

On September 30, 2015, in connection with the closing of the Kaufhof Acquisition, the Company entered into
a U.S.$1.085 billion senior secured term loan facility with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent (the “U.S.
Term Loan B”). As of January 30, 2016, the Company owed U.S.$500 million under the U.S. Term Loan B. The
Company is in compliance with all covenants contained in the U.S. Term Loan B credit agreement.

The U.S. Term Loan B matures on September 30, 2022 and carries an interest rate of LIBOR (with a LIBOR
Floor) plus 3.75% per annum. The U.S. Term Loan B is subject to mandatory prepayments.

The U.S. Term Loan B contains restrictive covenants customary for credit facilities of this nature, including
restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, financial maintenance covenants, and restrictions on payments to affiliates
and shareholders. It also includes events of default and representations and warranties that are customary for credit
facilities of this nature.

The U.S. Term Loan B is secured by a second priority security interest over inventory and accounts receivables,
afirst priority security interest over substantially all other assets of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (excluding
real estate subsidiaries) as well as a pledge of the shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company and certain of their
subsidiaries.

Yorkdale Mortgage

On May 22, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Murray & Company Holdings Limited for a
$50 million mortgage (the “Yorkdale Mortgage”). The Yorkdale Mortgage matures on May 22, 2023, bears interest at
4.89% per annum over a 25 year amortization schedule and is secured by a first mortgage of a leasehold interest of the
Hudson’s Bay store at the Yorkdale Shopping Centre in Toronto, Ontario. The proceeds of the Yorkdale Mortgage were
used to partially prepay the then-existing HBC senior term loan facility. On December 1, 2014, Murray & Company
Holdings Limited assigned the mortgage to GMI Servicing Inc.

On November 25, 2015, the Yorkdale Mortgage was assumed by an entity related to the RioCan-HBC JV.
Saks Mortgage

On December 3, 2014, the Company announced the closing of a U.S.$1.25 billion, 20-year mortgage loan,
on the ground portion of the Company’s Saks Fifth Avenue flagship property in New York City, located at 611 Fifth
Avenue with a syndicate of lenders including an affiliate of Morgan Stanley Canada Limited (the “Saks Mortgage”™).
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The mortgage is secured by a first mortgage lien on the fee interest in the property, together with all ground lease rents,
profits and revenue. The Saks Mortgage contains restrictive covenants, events of default and representations and
warranties that are customary for credit facilities of this nature.

All proceeds from the Saks Mortgage, net of associated fees and expenses, were utilized to permanently pay
down U.S.$1.2 billion of the Senior Term Loan B. The Saks Mortgage is interest-only, with a fixed interest rate of
4.39%, and does not require any principal amortization over its 20 year term. The borrower, Saks Flagship Real Property
LLS, is in compliance with the terms of its indebtedness to the lenders under the Saks Mortgage.

Lord & Taylor Mortgage

On September 7, 2012, LT 424 LLC (“LT 424”), which is an indirect subsidiary of Lord & Taylor, entered
into a U.S.$250 million syndicated floating rate senior mortgage loan with an affiliate of CIBC World Markets Inc., as
Administrative Agent of the syndicate of lenders, which matures on September 10,2017 (the “Lord & Taylor Mortgage™).
Lord & Taylor utilized the net proceeds of this loan, approximately U.S.$243 million, to reduce the balance of the then
outstanding Lord & Taylor term loan.

Interest is charged on the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at a rate of LIBOR plus 3.0%. LT 424 has entered into
interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the interest rate related to the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at
3.85%.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage had no mandatory principal repayments during the first three years, with monthly
amortization payments required during the final two years, based upon a 30 year straight line amortization schedule
with an interest rate of 7%. LT 424 has the ability to prepay the Lord & Taylor Mortgage with a fee to the lenders of
1% (2% fee after the initial two years decreased to 1% after three years). After September 10, 2016 prepayments can
be made without a fee. Any prepayments are applied to reduce the then remaining scheduled installments.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage contains customary representations and warranties, positive and negative
covenants, reporting requirements and events of default. The borrower, LT 424, is in compliance with all covenants
contained in the Lord & Taylor Mortgage. As security for the Lord & Taylor Mortgage the Company granted a first
priority mortgage in the Fifth Avenue Lord & Taylor property.
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Contractual Obligations
Our significant contractual obligations and commitments as of January 30, 2016 are as follows:
Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars") Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Lease financing
Operating lease arrangements® ................... 16,173 968 989 956 916 885 11,459

Short-term borrowings®
HBC Revolving Credit Facility ................... — — — — — _
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility ............c........ 464 464 — — — — _

Long-term borrowings

U.S. Term Loan B........ccocoeinieiiiriciene 700 — — — — — 700
Lord & Taylor Mortgage..........cccverveeenennene 349 4 345 — — — —
Saks Mortgage™ ........ooovoovoeeeeeeee. 1,760 1 1 1 1 1,755
Other 10anS ......cccveveviverieieeeeeseeeeine 10 2 2 2 2 2 —
Finance 1€ases........ccoveveeeevieiiicieeieieienens 525 25 13 12 11 11 453
Purchase obligations® ... 498 415 22 17 12 10 22
Other obligations“‘) ....................................... 1,564 1,522 11 31 — — —
Total 0bligations........c.cceeveveueveueuereriicieiennen. 22,043 3,401 1,383 1,019 942 909 14,389
Notes:

(1) U.S. dollar denominated debt translated to Canadian dollars at a rate of U.S.$1.00:C$1.40.

(2) Represents future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases. Minimum lease payments are defined as the payments
over the lease term that the Company is or can be required to make, excluding contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to be paid by and
reimbursed to the lessor, and excluding guaranteed amounts.

(3) The HBC Revolving Credit Facility and U.S. Revolving Credit Facility mature on December 17, 2019 and November 4, 2018, respectively.

(4) On December 3, 2014, the Company closed the Saks Mortgage using the net proceeds from the transaction to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2
billion of the Senior Term Loan B.

(5) Includes contractual obligations to purchase goods or services of a material amount where the contract prescribes fixed or minimum volumes
to be purchased or payments to be made within a fixed period of time for a set or variable price. These are only estimates of anticipated financial
commitments under these arrangements and the amount of actual payments will vary. These purchase obligations do not include purchase
orders issued or agreements made in the ordinary course of business which are solely for goods which are meant for resale, nor do they include
any contracts which may be terminated on relatively short notice or with relatively insignificant cost or liability to the Company.

(6) Other obligations include trade payables, derivatives and other liabilities.

Leases

The Company has long-term operating lease obligations that are not capitalized on the consolidated balance
sheet in accordance with IFRS. These leases are related to store locations, warchouse facilities and equipment and are
reflected within “Operating lease arrangements” included in the table above. Leases typically have an original term
ranging from 15 to 25 years and provide for renewal periods exercisable at the Company’s option. Operating leases
relating to property typically require that the Company pays associated real estate taxes and common area maintenance
costs in addition to the minimum lease payments noted above. Such costs vary from period to period and totaled $189
million and $157 million in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2014, respectively. In addition to operating leases relating to store
locations, the Company also holds finance leases related to property and equipment, which are capitalized on the
consolidated balance sheet in accordance with IFRS.

Lease Guarantees

As part of normal operations, the Company regularly reviews its real estate portfolio and store locations. Based
on the reviews conducted in prior years, the Company has closed certain store premises that it deemed to be non-
strategic. Where these premises were leased, when possible, the Company assigned its leases to other retail operators,
but remained obligated to the landlord on those leases as the original tenant thereunder despite the assignment. If the
assignee were to default on the lease agreement, the Company would remain obligated to the landlord for payment of
amounts due under the lease. The terms of these assigned leases can extend up to the year 2024. As of January 30,
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2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $94 million (January 31, 2015: $154 million), of which $68
million (January 31, 2015: $113 million) relates to leases assigned to Target, in addition to other lease related expenses,
such as property taxes and common area maintenance.

The Company has a full, unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity from Target regarding all
ongoing obligations related to the store leases acquired by Target (or its affiliates) which include the assumption of all
obligations and liabilities of Zellers arising under these leases after closing of such sale. The Company’s obligation
would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and their obligations to the Company to comply with
the assigned leases. On March 6, 2015, Target Canada’s affiliates surrendered eleven leases (which Zellers previously
assigned to Target, or its affiliates) to the applicable landlords in connection with Target Canada affiliates’ proceedings
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act. In connection with such surrender of leases, the applicable landlords
released certain parties, including HBC, Zellers and their respective predecessors, from all claims arising out of or
relating to, among other things, such leases.

In 2008, the Company assigned nine leases to Les Ailes de la Mode, Inc. (“Les Ailes”) and obtained a full,
unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity for the obligations thereunder from its related company,
International Clothiers Inc. (“ICI”). As of January 30, 2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $29
million. In December 2015, Les Ailes filed a notice of intention to make a proposal under section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy
and Insolvency Act. On March 23, 2016, ICI advised us that it was filing a notice of intention to make a proposal under
section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act. The Company currently believes that the maximum claim against
it with respect to these leases is approximately $16 million.

Potential liabilities related to these lease guarantees may be subject to certain defences by the Company. The
Company’s obligations under the assigned leases would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and
their obligations to the Company to comply with the assigned leases.

Short-term and Long-term Borrowings

As of January 30, 2016, Company’s drawings on the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and the U.S. Revolving
Credit Facility were nil and $464 million, respectively.

On February 25, 2014, the Company closed the Queen Street Sale. Proceeds of the transaction were used to
retire in entirety the Junior Term Loan and to permanently pay down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term Loan B. The
balance of the net proceeds was used to reduce the outstanding balance of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

On December 3, 2014, the Company closed the U.S.$1.25 billion, 20-year mortgage on the ground portion of
its Saks Fifth Avenue flagship in New York City. All proceeds from the Saks Mortgage, net of associated fees and
expenses, were utilized to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2 billion of the Senior Term Loan B.

On November 17,2015, HBC repaid U.S. $585 million of U.S. Term Loan B using cash on hand and proceeds
from the sale of its equity investment in the HBS Joint Venture (including a related entity). In connection with the
repayment, $32 million of deferred financing costs were written off.

On February 5, 2016, the Company entered into an asset based credit facility, the Global ABL, with Bank of
America, N.A. as the administrative agent and collateral agent replacing the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and the
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility existing at January 30, 2016. The Global ABL of U.S.$1.9 billion has a maturity date
of February 5, 2021 with key terms that are consistent with the revolving credit facilities existing at January 30, 2016.

Procurement

The above contractual obligations table includes purchase orders for goods not for resale that are enforceable
and legally binding on the Company and which specify all significant terms including: fixed or minimum quantities to
be purchased; fixed minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. The purchase
obligations figures disclosed above also include obligations in respect of minimum royalty payments due to certain
key suppliers.

Pensions

The defined benefit component of the Company’s Canadian pension plan is currently over-funded, and as a
result the Company does not expect to make significant contributions to it over the next five years, subject to the
performance of the plan assets. The Company has non pension Canadian employee benefit plans, which are not funded.
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For Canadian defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Contributions are recognized as an employee benefit expense as incurred, which is as the related employee service is
rendered.

In the U.S., Saks sponsors a funded defined-benefit cash balance pension plan and an unfunded supplemental
executive retirement plan for certain employees. The pension plan no longer admits new participants and in 2009 future
benefit accruals were suspended. The funding policy requires contributions to the pension plan to be at least equal to
the minimum funding requirement, as determined under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. There
are no funding requirements for the Fiscal 2015 plan year.

In Europe, the Kauthof Group offers retirement, disability and surviving dependents benefits through defined
benefits and defined contribution plans. In Germany there is no minimum funding requirement whereas in Belgium,
a minimum funding requirement is stipulated by Belgian regulatory law. The Belgian benefits are generally funded
through group insurance contracts. In addition to these pension plans, Kaufhof offers non-pension benefits such as
anniversary allowances and death benefits.

Other

As of January 30, 2016, the Company had other long-term liabilities that included an accrued benefit plan
liability and an accrued self-insurance provision. The Company also had obligations in respect of equity grants and
incentive units that may be settled with cash or shares of the Company. These have not been classified as contractual
obligations for the following reasons:

»  future payments of accrued benefit plan liability, principally post-retirement benefits, depend on when and if
retirees submit claims;

» future payments of equity grants and incentive units depend on whether the grants or incentive units have
vested, and whether any will be elected to be cash settled; and

» future payments of insurance claims can extend over several years and depend on the timing of anticipated
settlements and results of litigation.

Guarantees and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has guarantees and general indemnification commitments to counterparties. Historically, the
Company has not made any significant payments with respect to these guarantees and indemnification provisions, and
management believes that the risk of significant loss is low.

Standby and documentary letters of credit are used in connection with certain obligations mainly related to
purchase orders and Workers Compensation Collateral requirements. The aggregate gross potential liability related to
the Company’s letters of credit is approximately $41 million as at January 30, 2016.

Other than in connection with the RioCan-HBC JV and the HBS Joint Venture (including a related entity), the
Company has not created, and is not party to, any special purpose or off-balance sheet entities for the purpose of raising
capital, incurring debt or operating its business. The Company does not have any relationships or arrangements with
entities that are not consolidated into its financial statements that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or
the availability of capital resources. The Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. As a
result, indebtedness at the Joint Ventures is not consolidated on the Company’s balance sheet and there is limited impact
on cash flow. See the “Real Estate Joint Ventures” section of this MD&A.

Financial Instruments and Other Instruments

The Company utilizes certain derivatives as cash flow hedges for its exposure to foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk. The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives, net of taxes, is
recognized in other comprehensive income or loss.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the cost in Canadian dollars of certain
U.S. dollar based purchases of merchandise from foreign suppliers. These forward exchange contracts have been
designated as cash flow hedges and reported at fair value in financial assets or financial liabilities, depending on their
fair value. Once the inventory is recorded, the Company has elected to reclassify the related accumulated other

40



comprehensive income or loss, amount to merchandise inventories. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the forward
foreign exchange contracts are recorded in Net Earnings (Loss).

Derivative financial instruments not designated within an effective hedging relationship and embedded
derivatives are classified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value with any changes in their fair
values recognized in Net Earnings (Loss) in the period in which the change occurs. Short-term deposits are classified
as held to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All other financial assets
are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

All other financial liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest income and expense are included in finance costs.

The Company determines the fair value of its long-term loans and borrowings using a discounted cash flow
model, taking into consideration the fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed interest
rate spreads on similar debt available in the market at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of foreign currency options, interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts reflect
the estimated amounts that the Company would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the reporting date.

In connection with the Saks Acquisition, the Company issued Common Share purchase warrants which, due
to certain features, are being presented as financial liabilities. The warrants are classified as fair value through profit
or loss and measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value are recognized in Net Earnings (Loss) in the
period in which the change occurs. The fair values of the warrants are determined using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. For a complete description of the derivative financial instruments of the Company and related risks,
please refer to note 17 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2015.

In connection with the Kauthof Acquisition, the Company had previously entered into 2 separate forward
foreign exchange contracts (the “FX forward contracts”) during the thirteen weeks ended August 1, 2015 that resulted
in the Company eliminating its foreign currency exposure on a portion of the proceeds that were to be used in the
Kaufhof Acquisition. Each FX forward contract was designated as a hedge of the exposure to changes in USD/EUR
related to the then planned acquisition of Kaufhof denominated in Euro. Each hedging relationship was assessed to be
highly effective throughout the designated hedging period which ended on September 30,2015, the Kauthof Acquisition
Date.

The FX forward contracts generated a loss of $6 million (and $2 million of deferred taxes) which, prior to the
close of the transaction, was included in other comprehensive (loss) income and represents the mark-to-market
adjustment to fair value from the date of execution of each FX forward contracts to September 30, 2015. Upon close
of the Kauthof Acquisition, this amount was included as part of the purchase price allocation of the Kaufthof Property
Business acquired by the HBS Joint Venture.

The fair value of each FX forward contract was determined using a valuation technique that employs the use
of market observable inputs and based on the differences between the contract rate and the market rates as at the period-
end date, taking into consideration discounting to reflect the time value of money (see note 17 of the Company’s Fiscal
2015 audited consolidated financial statements).

Risks arising from Financial Instruments

Through its use of financial instruments, the Company has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk. The
following is a description of those risks and how the exposures are managed:

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the possibility that the Company can suffer financial losses due to the failure of the
Company’s counterparties to meet their payment obligations. The Company is exposed to minimal credit risk from
customers, vendors, and financial counterparties as a result of ongoing credit evaluations and review of accounts
receivable collectability. Credit risk is mitigated by various techniques including selecting counterparties based on
acceptable credit ratings and minimizing the concentration of positions with individual counterparties. There is no
concentration of accounts receivable balances. The Company does not consider its exposure to credit risk to be material.
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(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual and projected cash flows, taking into account
the seasonality of the Company’s working capital needs, sales and earnings. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility, the
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility and the bank overdraft facilities are used to maintain liquidity. Subsequent to the year

end, the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility were fully repaid and replaced with the
Global ABL.

(iii) Market risk
Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk:
(a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is a Canadian dollar functional currency entity that purchases a significant amount of inventory
for its Canadian operations in U.S. dollars. HBC enters into forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency
options to reduce the foreign exchange risk with respect to these U.S. dollar denominated purchases.

In accordance with the Company’s risk management policy, HBC may hedge up to 100% of all foreign currency
transactions and economic exposures that are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet, or deemed as firm
commitments (e.g. purchase orders that have been issued for goods and services in foreign currency). HBC may further
hedge up to 70% of forecasted transactions (anticipated transactions for which there are no firm commitments).

Our net investments in L&T Acquisition, the indirect parent of Lord & Taylor and Saks, and HBC Europe,
whose functional currencies are U.S. dollars and Euros respectively, presents a foreign exchange risk to HBC, whose
functional currency is Canadian dollars.

Consolidated Net Earnings (Loss) is impacted by foreign currency translation of the net earnings (loss) of
L&T Acquisition and HBC Europe. Foreign currency translation of the Company’s investments in L&T Acquisition
and HBC Europe impact other comprehensive income or loss.

Foreign currency gains and losses on certain intra group monetary liabilities between group entities with
different functional currencies affect the Company’s consolidated Net Earnings (Loss).

(b) Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company’s variable rate borrowings are
denominated in both U.S. and Canadian dollars.

Cash flow interest rate risk is mitigated by the use of interest rate swaps.
Classification of Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments not designated within an effective hedging relationship and embedded
derivatives are classified as fair value though profit or loss and measured at fair value with any changes in their fair
values recognized in net earnings or loss during the period in which the change occurs. Short-term deposits are classified
as held to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All other financial assets
are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All other
financial liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income and expense are included in finance costs.

The following table provides a summary of the fair values of financial instruments by classification as of
January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015:

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
$ $
Classified as fair value through profit OF 10SS .........cccovieuiiririeiriniciic et (€28) (69)
Financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedges. . 16 21
Classified as Other HADIIITIES .......coivevieieiiieieirieeiete ettt ss ettt neeseesesseseeseenaseenes (3,311) (3,123)



Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company determines the fair value of its long term loans and borrowings using a discounted cash flow
model, taking into consideration the fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed interest
rate spreads on similar debt available in the market at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts reflect the estimated amounts
that the Company would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the reporting date. Interest rate swaps are
valued using a discounted cash flow model based on market interest rate curves at the period-end date. The forward
foreign currency contracts are valued based on the difference between contract rates and spot rates at the period-end
date, discounted to reflect the time-value of money. The fair values of embedded foreign currency derivatives reflect
the estimated amounts the Company would receive or pay to settle forward foreign exchange contracts with similar
terms using valuation techniques and observable market input data.

The Company records a mark-to-market valuation adjustment on warrants as finance costs based on a valuation
at the end of each reporting period. For Fiscal 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded income (loss) of $37 million and
($44) million, respectively, relating to warrants.

Tax Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to ongoing audits by tax authorities. While the
Company believes that its tax filing positions are appropriate and supportable, from time to time certain matters are
reviewed and challenged by the tax authorities.

The Company regularly reviews the potential for adverse outcomes in respect of tax matters. The Company
believes that there are no tax matters that will have a material adverse effect on its liquidity, consolidated financial
position or results of operations because the Company believes that it has adequate provisions for any tax matters.
Should the ultimate tax liability materially differ from the provisions, the Company’s effective tax rate and its earnings
(loss) could be affected, positively or negatively, during the period in which the matters are resolved.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions between HBC and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed herein. Details of transactions with other related parties are disclosed below.

OnMay 6,2011, asubsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a two year lease with SP 35 L.P. (the “Landlord”)
for approximately 31,000 square feet in Shrewsbury, NJ. The lease was amended on January 17, 2013 to include 3
renewal options. The first 2 renewal options are for terms of two and three years, respectively at an annual cost of U.S.
$440 thousand. The third renewal option is for a term of five years at an annual cost of U.S.$484 thousand. The first
and second renewal options were exercised. Amounts charged to the Company under the rental arrangement for Fiscal
2015 and 2014 were U.S.$440 thousand and U.S.$440 thousand, respectively. The Landlord is an affiliate of National
Realty & Development Corp. (“NRDC”). Richard and Robert Baker, the principals of NRDC, are Directors of the
Company.

On February 25, 2014, the Company completed the sale of its downtown Toronto flagship store and adjacent
Simpson’s Tower office complex to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited, an affiliate of HSILP,
for a purchase price of $650 million. 2380162 Ontario Limited, a subsidiary of Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan and
successor in interest to HSILP, is a shareholder of the Company. The Company has leased the entire retail and a portion
of office complex back for a base term of twenty-five years, with renewal options up to approximately twenty-five
years. The transaction is considered to be a related party transaction because an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview
Corporation Limited is a related party of the Company by virtue of it being an affiliate of Ontario Teachers’ Pension
Plan Board, which indirectly holds the power to exercise control and direction over, and beneficial ownership of, more
than 10% of the Company’s outstanding voting shares. As part of this transaction, Saks has also agreed to lease space
in Toronto’s Sherway Gardens from The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited, which is also considered to be a related
party transaction. Previously, the Company had entered into store leases with The Cadillac Fairview Corporation
Limited or its affiliates for stores located at: Fairview Park in Kitchener, Ontario; Richmond Centre in Richmond,
British Columbia; Chinook Centre and Market Mall, both in Calgary, Alberta; Polo Park Shopping Centre in Winnipeg,
Manitoba; Masonville Place in London, Ontario; Markville Shopping Centre in Markham, Ontario; Limeridge Mall in
Hamilton, Ontario; Fairview Pointe-Claire, in Pte-Claire, Quebec; Fairview Mall in Toronto, Ontario; Carrefour Laval
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in Laval, Quebec; Les Promenades St. Bruno in St. Bruno, Quebec; and Les Galeries D’ Anjou in Montreal, Quebec.
The leases contain representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants and events of default which, in each
case, are customary to leases of this nature. The Company is in compliance with the covenants contained in the leases.

On May 18, 2015, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a 10 year lease with Mack Properties Co. No.
6 LLC (“Mack Properties”) for approximately 35,000 square feet in Paramus, NJ. The lease has 2 renewal options for
terms of 10 and 5 years, respectively. The rent commencement date was November 19, 2015 and amounts charged to
the Company under the rental arrangement for the period ended January 30, 2016 were U.S.$175 thousand. Mack
Properties is owned by William Mack, a Director of the Company.

As at January 30, 2016, the Company has an outstanding receivable in the amount of $269 thousand (2014:
$314 thousand) due from Hudson’s Bay Trading Company, LP, a shareholder of the Company, with respect to the
reimbursement of expenses for services provided by HBC on their behalf. Subsequent to the end of Fiscal 2015, the
Company received payment in full.

HBC has entered into vendor agreements with two related companies that are affiliated with Earl Rotman, a
Director of the Company. The agreements relate to menswear and womenswear sold in Saks and DSG. During fiscal
2015, HBC purchased approximately $2 million of goods from these companies, and has a current commitment to
ordering approximately $2 million for fiscal 2016.

In connection with the closing of its agreements to sell and leaseback various U.S. properties to the HBS Joint
Venture, HBC paid for certain cash reserves and financing and operating expenses on behalf of the HBS Joint Venture
for which the Company received a promissory note in the amount of $8 million. The promissory note matures on July
22,2016 and carries an interest rate of 5% per annum. As at January 30, 2016, the promissory note had an outstanding
balance of $4 million and was included in trade and other receivables.

The Company entered into management agreements with the Joint Ventures upon their closing. Pursuant to
the management agreements, HBC is reimbursed for expenses relating to advisory and administrative services it provides
to the RioCan-HBC JV and the HBS Joint Venture. Reimbursement related to expenses for Fiscal 2015 were $241
thousand.

As part of the acquisition of the Kaufhof Operating Business, the Company assumed a $22 million liability
due to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the HBS Joint Venture. The liability relates to 2 properties the Company controls
as aresult of the acquisition. In addition, the Company acquired options to purchase these properties that when exercised,
would relieve this liability. This liability has been included in other liabilities.

During Fiscal 2015, the Company incurred rent expense of $226 million related to both the RioCan-HBC JV
and the HBS Joint Venture. As at January 30, 2016, other current assets included prepaid rent to the HBS Joint Venture
of $13 million.

The Company has an outstanding receivable in the amount of $46 million, as at January 30, 2016, due from
the HBS Joint Venture with respect to transactions carried out on behalf of the Company.

All of the above amounts have been recorded at the exchange value of the transaction.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Company’s
significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the Fiscal 2015 audited consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that are not readily apparent from other sources about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, and
reporting of income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized during the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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The following are certain critical judgments and estimations that management has made in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 3 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal
2015):

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method based on individual items. Costs comprise all
variable costs such as the merchandise cost, freight and handling, incurred in bringing inventories to their present
location and condition. Storage and administrative overheads are expensed as incurred. Supplier rebates and discounts
received or receivable based on vendor agreements are recorded as a reduction in the cost of purchases unless they
relate to a reimbursement of specific incremental expenses. The Company receives significant support from vendors
for promotional markdown activity and reflects this support as an offset to the cost of markdowns taken in cost of goods
sold.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price determined at the item level using historical markdown rates
for similar items in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs required to sell. At each balance sheet date,
the Company reviews its on-hand inventory to identify items selling below cost at that date and uses historical trends
and current inventory mix to determine an additional reserve for the impact of future markdowns which will take the
net realizable value of inventory on-hand below cost.

Physical inventories are generally taken within each merchandise department annually, and inventory records
are adjusted accordingly resulting in an adjustment within cost of goods sold. The Company records a shrink reserve
utilizing historical shrink rates to reflect the incremental adjustment between the time of the physical inventory count
and the reporting date.

Loyalty Programs

Loyalty program accounting allocates a portion of consideration paid by the customer at the time merchandise
or services are acquired to the value of the loyalty entitlement earned as part of the transaction. This portion of the
consideration is treated as deferred revenue and recognized when the customer redeems points and ultimately acquires
additional merchandise or services. The Company retains an external actuary to estimate the percentage of rewards
points earned by customers that ultimately will be redeemed.

Impairment and reversal of impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are subject to impairment and impairment reversal reviews based on whether current or
future events and circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be more or less than their carrying value.
In certain instances, the recoverable amount is based on a calculation of expected future cash flows which includes
management assumptions and estimates of future performance.

Impairment of goodwill

The Company uses judgment in determining the grouping of assets to identify its cash generating units
(“CGUs”) for purposes of testing for impairment of goodwill. In testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. The
calculations for impairment testing involve significant estimates and assumptions. Items estimated include cash flows,
discount rates and assumptions on revenue growth rates. The Company’s future results may be impacted if current
estimates of future performance and fair values change. Judgment is also used to determine whether an indication of
impairment is present which would require the completion of an impairment test in addition to the annual testing.

Income Taxes

In connection with the reorganization on January 11, 2012 that resulted in Lord & Taylor becoming a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Lord & Taylor became a taxable entity. Prior to January 11, 2012, Lord & Taylor
was considered a flow-through (limited liability corporation or “LLC”, and limited partnership) entity for tax purposes.
The Company’s accounting policies for the following types of entities are as follows:
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(i) Taxable entities

The Company has recognized deferred income tax assets arising from differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements as well as those in respect of
non-capital losses carried forward. The extent to which assets have been recognized reflects management’s expectation
that these assets will be recovered through the reversal of the differences between the tax and accounting basis as well
as through future taxable profits being earned before expiry of the losses. A valuation allowance is recorded to the
extent that management does not believe that the assets are recoverable.

Income tax expense or benefit comprises current and deferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in the
consolidated statements of earnings (loss), except to the extent that it relates to items recognized either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. The income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the date of the balance sheet.

(i1) Flow-through entities

Lord & Taylor, as alimited liability company from the date of its acquisition by Hudson’s Bay Trading Company
L.P. through January 10, 2012, was treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and in most states in
which it operates. Lord & Taylor did not record a federal tax provision for deferred tax assets or liabilities related to
federal tax prior to its acquisition by HBC.

Lord & Taylor operated stores in eleven states, plus the District of Columbia. Although most of these states
follow the federal treatment of LLCs, four states required an LLC to file a state corporation or franchise tax return and
pay any related taxes or submit income tax withholdings on the partners’ behalf. Accordingly, a state income tax expense
was recorded for estimated income attributable to those states.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions (both defined contribution and defined benefit) and non-pension
post-retirement benefits (medical and life insurance benefits for retirees). The Company reports its obligations under
these plans net of any plan assets.

The asset or liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheets in respect of the defined benefit pension
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit obligation annually.

Actuarial gains and losses (typically related to investment performance or interest rate movement different
from management’s assumptions) are excluded from operating income and are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized in operating income in the year in which
they arise. For funded plans, surpluses are recognized only to the extent to which the Company can unilaterally reduce
future contributions to the plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Contributions are recognized as an employee benefit expense as incurred, which is as the related employee service
is rendered.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

In connection with the Saks Acquisition, the Company issued warrants. The classification of these instruments
as financial liabilities is an area of significant judgment. The Company records the mark-to-market valuation adjustment
of these warrants as finance costs based upon the end of period valuation.

Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the fair value of the
assets acquired (including cash), liabilities assumed, any contingent consideration and equity interests issued by the
Company.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed in the period as incurred.
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Joint Ventures

Judgment is used by management when determining what subsidiaries or entities to consolidate in the financial
statements. Subsidiaries or entities are typically consolidated when the Company has control over the entities. In
determining if control exists, management considers various factors including whether the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity either through an agreement or by voting
rights, exposure or rights to variable returns from the Company’s involvement with the entity, and the ability to use its
power over the entity to affect the amount of the Company’s returns.

The Company holds an 89.7% and 67.4% ownership interest in its joint arrangements with RioCan and Simon,
respectively. Based on the contractual terms of each arrangement, the Company identified the relevant activities of
each joint venture and determined that all significant decisions require the joint consent of both parties to each of the
joint arrangements formed. The Company has assessed its rights and obligations arising from the joint arrangements
by considering the structure and legal form of the arrangements, the terms agreed by the parties and other facts and
circumstances. Based on this assessment, the arrangements have been classified as joint ventures. The Company will
reassess the existence of joint control and the joint venture classification should facts and circumstances change. Gains
recognized upon the initial contributions into each joint venture were determined based on determinations of fair value
that incorporated assumptions from a market participant’s perspective under market conditions that existed at the
measurement date. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of the initial
contributions made by HBC into each of the joint venture arrangements formed.

Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption
Change in Accounting Policies
Inventories

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2015, the Company changed its policy with respect to the valuation of inventory
from the retail method to cost and its method of calculating the adjustment required to value inventory at its net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method on an individual item basis. The change in policy
was implemented retrospectively to February 2, 2014. Prior to February 2, 2014, cost was determined using the retail
inventory method which reduces the selling price of inventories to cost by the application of average department or
category mark-up. The adjustment to net realizable value is now performed on an item by item basis, whereas historically
the analysis was calculated by segregating inventory into departments of merchandise having similar characteristics.
The Company was unable to determine the impact of the accounting change as the financial data was not historically
maintained. As a result, the Company is not able to quantify the impact of the change for periods prior to February 2,
2014.

New Accounting Policies
Interest in Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in a joint venture is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Company’s share of losses of a
joint venture exceeds the Company’s interest in that joint venture, the Company discontinues recognizing its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its joint venture arrangements. At each reporting date, the Company determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in its joint ventures is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture
and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as ‘Share of net earnings (loss) in joint ventures’ in the consolidated
statement of earnings (loss).
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The Company has investments in joint ventures that are structured using separate vehicles that give each party
to the arrangement rights to the net assets of the joint venture.

The Company reclassifies its share of inter-company rental income from its share of earnings in the joint
ventures to rent expense recorded in SG&A.

Future Expected Changes

Financial Instruments - In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), which
brings together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to
replace IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”).

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model under which they are managed and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar
manner as under IAS 39, except that financial liabilities measured at fair value will have fair value changes
resulting from changes in the entity’s own credit risk recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
net earnings.

Impairment

The measurement of impairment of financial assets is based on an expected credit loss model. It is no longer
necessary for a triggering event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. IFRS 9 also includes
new disclosure requirements about expected credit losses and credit risk.

Hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting model more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures. The new model will
provide more opportunities to apply hedge accounting to reflect actual risk management activities.

IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption
is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of this standard.

Revenue - In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”),
which provides a comprehensive framework for recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts
with customers, excluding contracts within the scope of the standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial
instruments. IFRS 15 is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early
adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of IFRS 15.

Joint Arrangements - In May 2014, the IASB amended IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (“IFRS 11) to require
that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 — Business Combinations principles for business
combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained. In
addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation. The amendments to IFRS 11 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, and must be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has concluded
that the amendment will not have an impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

Leases - In January 2016, the IASB issued the final publication of the IFRS 16 - Leases (“IFRS 16”), standard
which is to replace the current IAS 17 lease accounting standard and related interpretations. IFRS 16 is required to be
adopted either retrospectively or by recognizing the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment
to opening equity at the date of initial application. IFRS 16 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January
1, 2019 with earlier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 has also been adopted. The Company is assessing the potential
impact of IFRS 16.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

National Instrument 52-109 — Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filing (“NI 52-109”)
requires public companies in Canada to submit annual and interim certificates relating to the design and effectiveness
ofthe disclosure controls and procedures that are in use at the company. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that material information is gathered and reported to senior management, including
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), on a timely basis so that appropriate
decisions can be made regarding public disclosure.

Subject to the limitations set out below, the Company’s management, under the supervision of the CEO and
the CFO, has designed and maintained a set of disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by the Company
under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
securities legislation.

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The CEO and the CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls over
financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Management conducted its evaluation based
on the framework set forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its evaluation under this framework, management concluded
that the company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 30, 2016.

Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be designed effectively can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial reporting and
financial statement preparation.

Limitation on Scope of Design

The CEO and CFO have limited the scope of design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control
over financial reporting to exclude controls, policies and procedures of Kauthof, which was acquired on September
30, 2015.

This scope limitation is in accordance with section 3.3(1)(b) of NI 52-109, which allows for an issuer to limit
the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for a business that the
issuer acquired not more than 365 days before the last day of the period covered by this MD&A.

The following is a summary of certain financial information related to HBC Europe:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Quarter ended
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 January 30, 2016
REtaI] SAIES .....oiiviiieiiciieciiecte ettt et e b e e aeeaaa e 1,869 1,481
Net (I0SS) CAIMIIES ....cveveuirriniiiirieieeteteieetet ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeenen 3) 4
(millions of Canadian dollars) January 30, 2016
Current assets............ 1,129
Non-current assets 1,566
CUITENt THADIIILIES «....veeveceeeee ettt et e e et e eae e 896
NON-CUITENE HADIIITIES ... 1,570

These results are prepared under IFRS and may not be comparable to Kauthof’s historical reporting prior to
its acquisition by the Company.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during Fiscal 2015
that have affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Additional Information

Additional information relating to the Company, including the most recently filed Annual Information Form,
is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Dividends

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the payment of a quarterly dividend on March 21, 2016, which
was paid on April 15,2016, to shareholders of record at the close of business March 31, 2016. The dividend was in the
amount of $0.05 per Common Share and was designated as an “eligible dividend” for Canadian tax purposes.

Outstanding Share Data

The Company’s authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited
number of preferred shares issuable in series. As of April 4, 2016, the Company had 182,100,001 Common Shares
issued and outstanding and no preferred shares issued and outstanding. Asof April4,2016,the Company had 12,193,643
share options, 299,103 restricted share units and 6,750,000 warrants outstanding, all of which are convertible or
exchangeable into Common Shares.

The Company’s Common Shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “HBC” and began
trading on November 20, 2012. In addition, there are approximately 34 million Common Shares reserved for issuance
for the exercise of share options, warrants and the settlement of restricted share units. Assuming exercise of all
outstanding share options and the settlement of all outstanding restricted share units, there would be approximately
194.6 million Common Shares issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basis. Assuming exercise of all outstanding
share options, the settlement of all outstanding restricted share units and the exercise of all outstanding warrants, there
would be approximately 201.3 million Common Shares issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basis.

Risk Factors
Business and Strategic Risks

Failure to execute our retailing growth strategies could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations.

Our continued growth and successes are dependent on our ability to identify, develop and execute our strategies
and also, in part, on our ability to successfully open and operate new stores, enhance and remodel existing stores on a
timely and profitable basis, and optimize store performance by closing under-performing stores. The success of any
future store openings will depend upon numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including the following:

« the ability to attract appropriate vendors;

* the competition for suitable store sites;

« the ability to negotiate favorable lease terms with landlords;

» theavailability of associates to staff new stores and our ability to hire, train, motivate, and retain store personnel;
and

» the ability to attract customers and generate sales sufficient to operate new stores profitably.

Our continued growth and success also depends, in part, on our ability to implement and successfully execute
on our digital commerce strategy. Our customers are increasingly using computers, tablets, mobile phones and other
devices to shop online. We are enhancing our customer shopping experience across all of our banners by pursuing a
heightened focus on technology and digital commerce to accelerate our growth. Digital commerce retailing is rapidly
evolving, and we must keep pace with changing customer expectations and new developments by competitors. A failure
to provide attractive, user-friendly digital commerce platforms that offer a wide assortment of merchandise at
competitive prices and with rapid delivery options and that continually meet the changing expectations of online
shoppers and developments in online merchandising and related technology could place us ata competitive disadvantage,
result in the loss of sales, harm our reputation with customers and could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations. In addition, if there are performance issues with our customer-facing technology systems,
we may experience a loss of customer confidence and sales, which could also have a material adverse effect on our
businesses and results of operations.

50



We continue to implement customer-oriented strategic programs designed to differentiate and strengthen our
core merchandise content and service levels and expand and enhance our merchandise offerings. We also seek to improve
the effectiveness of our marketing and advertising programs. If we fail to successfully implement some or all of these
initiatives, we may be unable to retain or attract customers, which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

The successful implementation of our growth strategies also depend on our ability to effectively plan, source
and manage our merchandise mix and inventory levels, leverage our competitive strengths, as well as certain factors
which are beyond our control including general economic conditions and consumer confidence in future economic
conditions. Ineffective change management could result in disruptions to our operations or negatively affect our ability
to implement and achieve our long term strategic objectives. If we fail to execute any one or more of these initiatives
or fail to fully realize the benefits expected to result from these initiatives, our ability to continue to grow and our ability
to remain competitive, could be materially adversely impacted. If we are not able to develop and perform new roles,
processes and disciplines, we may not achieve the expected cost savings and other benefits of these initiatives. Failure
to properly execute the various processes will increase the risk of customer dissatisfaction, which in turn could have a
material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. Our results to date are not an indication of future
results, and there can be no assurance that these initiatives will generate increased sales, increased sales per square foot
or improve operating margins even if we were to successfully implement our growth strategies.

We may not be able to continue comparable store sales growth.

The Company’s success depends, in part, upon our ability to improve comparable store sales. Various factors
affect comparable store sales, including competition, consumer trends and preferences, the general retail environment,
the Company’s ability to efficiently source and distribute products, changes in the Company’s merchandising mix,
competition, current economic conditions, the timing of release of new merchandise and promotional events, the success
of marketing programs, weather conditions and changes in the other tenants in the shopping areas in which the Company’s
stores are located. These factors, among others, may cause the Company’s comparable store sales results to differ
materially from prior periods and from expectations. Past comparable store sales are no indication of future results,
and there can be no assurance that the Company’s comparable store sales will increase period over period. We have
made and intend to continue to make significant capital investments to increase comparable store sales growth by
optimizing store layout, vendor shops, merchandise and product offerings and presentation. Failure to continue to grow
comparable store sales could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We face risks associated with consumer preferences, demand, and fashion trends.

The fashion and retail merchandising industries are subject to constant shifts in consumer preferences and
fashion trends. Our sales and results from operations will continue to depend in part on our ability to predict and respond
to changes in consumer preferences and fashion trends in a timely manner and we continuously manage our portfolio
of brands to respond to such trends. We will continue to develop new retail concepts and adjust our position in certain
name brands and private-label brands and merchandise categories in an effort to satisfy our customers. To the extent
our predictions differ from our customers’ preferences, we may face excess inventories for some products and/or missed
opportunities for others. Excess inventories can result in lower gross margins due to greater than anticipated discounts
and markdowns that might be necessary to reduce inventory levels. Conversely, low inventory levels can adversely
affect our ability to meet customer demand, which may lead to lost sales and diminished brand loyalty. Any sustained
failure to anticipate, identify and respond to emerging trends in lifestyle, consumer preferences and spending patterns
and any significant misjudgments of inventory levels could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results
of operations.

We depend on the success of our advertising and marketing programs.

Our businesses depend, in part, on high in store traffic and effective marketing. We have undertaken many
initiatives in this area including rejuvenating our advertising campaigns to reflect our fresh brand offerings and renovated
stores. However, there can be no assurance as to our continued ability to effectively execute our advertising and marketing
programs, and to maintain top-of-mind awareness of our banners, and any failure to do so could have a negative impact
on our brand or reputation, which could adversely impact customers’ opinion of and confidence in the Company and
could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.
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We depend on our brands and on our relationships with certain designers, vendors and other sources of merchandise.

Our ability to continue to attract and retain popular brands that are favoured by consumers is critical to our
strategy to respond to consumer preferences. We do not have long term contracts with vendors and therefore our ability
to continue to sell brands that are popular with consumers and, if applicable, to have exclusivity of certain brands, are
dependent on ongoing positive relationships with our vendors. Vendors of popular brands ceasing to do business with
our banners, or material changes in the terms and conditions with such vendors (including vendor allowances and
merchandise cost), including our ability to be an exclusive seller of certain brands, could have a material adverse effect
on our businesses and results of operations.

We operate and promote several well-recognized brands that consumers may associate with a high level of
customer service and quality merchandise. Failure to maintain merchandise quality and integrity, or ethical and socially
responsible operations could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. Any negative
publicity about, or significant damage to our brand or reputation could negatively impact sales, reduce employee morale
and productivity and diminish customer trust, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations. In those circumstances, it may be difficult and costly for the Company to regain customer
confidence.

Furthermore, damage to the reputation of any of the brands promoted by us, including nationally branded,
non-proprietary products and private label, proprietary products, or to the reputation of any supplier or manufacturer
of these brands, could negatively impact consumer opinion of our banners or the related products, which could have a
material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

In particular, Saks’ relationships with established and emerging designers are a key factor in its position as a
retailer of luxury merchandise, and a substantial portion of its revenues are attributable to its sales of designer
merchandise. Many ofits key vendors limit the number of retail outlets they use to sell their merchandise, and competition
among retailers to obtain and sell these goods is intense. Saks’ relationships with its designers have been a significant
contributor to its past success. Although there are supply arrangements with some of its merchandising sources, there
can be no assurance that such sources will continue to meet Saks’ quality, style, and volume requirements. Moreover,
nearly all of the top designer brands sold by Saks are also sold by competing retailers, and many of these top designer
brands also have their own dedicated retail stores and/or their own digital commerce sites. If one or more of these top
designers were to cease providing Saks with adequate supplies of merchandise or, conversely, were to increase sales
of merchandise through their own stores or to the stores of other competitors, Saks’ business could be adversely affected.
In addition, any decline in the popularity or quality of any of these designer brands could have a material adverse effect
on our businesses and results of operations.

We may not realize the growth opportunities and synergies that we anticipate from strategic acquisitions

The benefits we expect to achieve as a result of the Saks Acquisition, the Kauthof Acquisition, the Gilt
Acquisition and any future acquisitions depend, in part, on our ability to realize anticipated growth opportunities. Our
success in realizing these growth opportunities, and the timing of this realization, depends on, among other things, the
successful ongoing integration of acquired businesses and operations with our existing businesses and operations. Even
if we are able to successfully complete the integration of these businesses and operations, this integration may not result
in the realization of the full benefits of the growth opportunities we expected within the anticipated time frame or at
all. While we anticipated that certain expenses will be incurred, actual expenses may exceed prior estimates. Accordingly,
the respective benefits from the Saks Acquisition, the Kaufhof Acquisition, the Gilt Acquisition or any future acquisitions
may be offset by unexpected costs incurred or delays in completing the integration of such businesses, which could
cause our revenue assumptions to be inaccurate. In addition, we are responsible for any historical liabilities of Saks
and HBC Europe. There may be liabilities that the Company failed to discover or was unable to quantify accurately or
at all in the due diligence review that it conducted prior to each of the Saks Acquisition, Kaufhof Acquisition or the
Gilt Acquisition which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We continue to expect to achieve approximately $100 million of annual cost synergies related to the Saks
Acquisition by the end of Fiscal 2016. Actual cost synergies, the expenses required to realize the cost synergies and
the sources of the cost synergies could differ materially from these estimates, and we cannot assure you that we will
achieve the full amount of cost synergies on the schedule anticipated or at all or that these cost synergy programs will
not have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.
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Our businesses could suffer if we are unsuccessful in identifying, making, integrating, and maintaining acquisitions
and investments.

We may be unable to continue to identify suitable acquisition candidates at acceptable prices, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. From time to time we pursue strategic
acquisitions of, joint arrangements with, or investments in, other companies or businesses. Any such acquisition, joint
arrangement or investment that the Company makes may require the Company to spend its cash, or incur debt, contingent
liabilities, or amortization expenses related to intangible assets, any of which could reduce the Company’s profitability
and harm its businesses. Acquisitions, joint arrangements and investments also increase the complexity of the Company’s
businesses and place strain on its management, personnel, operations, supply chain, financial resources, and internal
financial controls and reporting functions. The Company may not be able to manage acquisitions, joint arrangements
or investments effectively, which could damage our reputation, limit our growth and could have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations.

In the future, we may enter into additional markets or expand one or more of our existing banners into new
markets, including internationally. These markets may have different competitive conditions, consumer trends, and
discretionary spending patterns than existing markets, which may cause new stores in these markets to be less successful
than stores in existing markets.

Operating Risks
Our businesses depend on successful inventory management.

We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our businesses successfully. However, we must also
guard against accumulating excess or obsolete inventory as we seek to minimize out-of-stock levels across all product
categories and to maintain in-stock levels. A significant portion of the inventory sold by our banners is sourced and
obtained from vendors located outside of Canada, the U.S. and Europe. Some of these vendors often require lengthy
advance notice of our requirements in order to be able to supply products in the quantities requested. This usually
requires that orders, and purchase order contracts are made or entered into well in advance of the time these products
will be offered for sale. As a result, we may experience difficulty in responding to a changing retail environment and
consumer preferences, which makes us vulnerable to changes in the price of merchandise, raw materials, fuel, labour
and the fluctuation of foreign currencies. If we do not accurately anticipate the future demand for a particular product
or the time it will take to obtain new inventory, our inventory levels will not be appropriate, which could have a material
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations, including lower gross margins due to greater than anticipated
discounts and markdowns that might be necessary to reduce inventory levels. Failure to successfully manage our
inventory levels may also adversely affect our relationships with our vendors, including our ability to source certain
national brands and our ability to be an exclusive seller of such brands.

In addition, political or financial instability, trade restrictions, tariffs, currency exchange rates, transport
capacity and costs and other factors relating to foreign trade, each of which affects our ability to access suitable
merchandise on acceptable terms, are beyond our control and could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

The loss of, or disruption in, any of the centralized distribution centres could have a material adverse effect on our
businesses and results of operations.

We depend on the orderly operation of the receiving and distribution process, which relies on adherence to
shipping schedules and effective management of distribution centres. Although we believe that our current receiving
and distribution processes are efficient, and that appropriate contingency plans are in place, unforeseen disruptions in
operations due to fire, severe weather conditions, natural disasters, or other catastrophic events, labour disagreements,
or other shipping problems may result in delays in the delivery of merchandise to our stores and customers. Any delay
or disruption in the flow of goods to stores could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of
operations. Additionally, freight cost is impacted by changes in fuel prices. Fuel prices have been subject to significant
volatility. Fuel prices affect freight cost both on inbound freight from vendors to the distribution centres and outbound
freight from the distribution centres to our stores and customers.

Although we maintain business interruption and property insurance, management cannot be assured that our
insurance coverage will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be timely paid to us, if any of the distribution
centres are damaged or shut down for any reason.
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If we do not have the ability to successfully upgrade, maintain and secure our information systems to support the
needs of the Company and protect against increased and evolving cyber-security threats, it could have a material
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Management depends on relevant and reliable information for decision making purposes, including key
performance indicators and financial reporting. A lack of relevant and reliable information that enables management
to effectively manage our businesses could preclude us from optimizing our overall performance. Any significant loss
of'data or failure to maintain reliable data could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We rely heavily on information systems to manage operations, including a full range of retail, financial,
planning, sourcing and merchandising systems, and regularly make investments to upgrade, enhance or replace these
systems. The reliability and capacity of information systems is critical. Despite our maintenance and preventative
efforts, these systems are susceptible to obsolescence and vulnerable from time to time to damage or interruption from,
among other things, security breaches, cyber-attacks, computer viruses, power outages, natural disasters, acts of
terrorism, usage errors by Company employees and other technical malfunctions. Any disruptions affecting our
information systems, or any delays or difficulties in transitioning to new systems or the information collected by them
could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. In addition, our ability to continue to
operate our businesses without significant interruption in the event of a disaster or other disruption depends in part on
the ability of our information systems to operate in accordance with our disaster recovery and business continuity plans.

A potential privacy breach could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Wereceive, retain, and transmit certain personal information about our customers, employees and the Company
and entrust that information to third parties. The protection of customer, employee, and company data is critical to the
Company. The regulatory environment in Canada, the U.S., Germany and Belgium surrounding information security
and privacy is increasingly demanding, with the frequent imposition of new and constantly changing requirements
across business units. Any legislative or regulatory changes adopted in reaction to recent retail-industry data breaches
could affect our compliance costs, including necessary system changes and the development of new administrative
processes. In addition, customers have a high expectation that we will adequately protect their personal information.
A significant breach of customer, employee, or company data could attract a substantial amount of media attention,
damage our customer relationships and reputation and result in lost sales, fines, or lawsuits and could have a material
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Our security measures may be undermined due to the actions of outside parties, employee error, malfeasance,
or otherwise, and, as a result, an unauthorized party may obtain access to our data systems and misappropriate business
and personal information. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, or
sabotage systems change frequently and may not immediately produce signs of intrusion, we may be unable to anticipate
these techniques, timely discover them, or implement adequate preventative measures. Any such breach or unauthorized
access could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

There are risks relating to our size and scale.

The Company operates under ten banners in Canada, the U.S., Germany and Belgium. The large size of our
operations, our multiple banners and the speed with which we have grown exposes us to the risk that systems and
practices will not be implemented uniformly throughout the Company and that information will not be shared across
the banners and countries in a timely and appropriate manner.

We depend on a limited number of key personnel who would be difficult to replace.

Our management teams of seasoned and committed industry veterans have been hand-picked from leading
international retailers and have achieved success in transforming our businesses and improving our sales and operating
margins. We believe our continued success and the execution of our growth strategies will depend, in part, on the
continued service of our management teams.

Since we are managed by a relatively small group of senior executive officers, the loss of the technical
knowledge, management expertise and knowledge of our operations of one or more members of our team could result
in a diversion of management resources, as the remaining members of management would need to cover the duties of
any senior executive who leaves us and would need to spend time usually reserved for managing our businesses to
search for, hire and train new members of management. The loss of some or all of our team could negatively affect our
ability to develop and pursue our growth strategies, which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
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results of operations. In addition, the market for key personnel in the industry in which we compete is highly competitive,
and we may not be able to attract and retain key personnel with the skills and expertise necessary to manage our
businesses.

We may not be successful in retaining the services of certain key personnel of HBC Europe.

We retained certain key personnel of HBC Europe following the Kaufthof Acquisition to continue to manage
and operate HBC Europe and maintain relationships with customers, suppliers and other business partners. We will
compete with other potential employers for employees, and we may not be successful in keeping the services of the
executives and other employees that we need to realize the anticipated benefits of the Kauthof Acquisition. Our failure
to retain key personnel to remain as part of the management team of HBC Europe could have a material adverse effect
on the business of HBC Europe and in turn, on our results of operations.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified and skilled employees, our ability to roll out our formal customer
service initiatives may be impaired which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of
operations.

Our businesses are dependent upon attracting and retaining a large number of quality employees who reflect
our brand images and cultures. Many of these employees are in entry level or part-time positions with historically high
rates of turnover. If we are unable to hire, train and retain employees capable of consistently providing educated service
and advice to our customers, we may not be able to maintain our competitive strength in offering our customers a
favourable shopping experience or to fully realize the benefits expected to result from our formal customer service
initiatives, which could lead to decreased foot traffic and sales, as well as to increased costs associated with hiring and
training new employees.

Our ability to meet our labour needs while controlling the costs associated with hiring and training new
employees is subject to external factors such as unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates, minimum wage legislation
and changing demographics in Canada, the U.S., Germany and Belgium. Changes that adversely impact our ability to
attract and retain quality employees could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Deterioration in labor relations could disrupt our business operations and increase costs, which could decrease
liquidity and profitability.

The maintenance of a productive and efficient labour environment and, in the event of unionization of these
employees, the successful negotiation of collective bargaining agreements, cannot be assured. Protracted and extensive
work stoppages or labour disruptions such as strikes or lockouts could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

In addition, labour disputes at our vendors or manufacturers, particularly if such disputes result in work
stoppages or labour disruptions such as strikes or lockouts could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations, including our ability to plan, source and manage our merchandise mix and inventory levels and
to respond to customer demands.

The HBC pension plan is currently in a surplus but it may move into a deficit position which would require us to
make cash payments to the plan, reducing cash available for our businesses.

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan (the “HBC Pension Plan”). The HBC Pension Plan’s funded
status, which fluctuates with market conditions, affects the amount of cash contributions required from the Company.
Currently, the HBC Pension Plan is in a surplus position. As such, no cash payments in respect of past service funding
deficits are required. However, it is possible that long-term interest rates and/or lower than expected asset returns could
cause the HBC Pension Plan to move into a deficit position. If this occurs, the Company may be required to start
remitting amounts necessary to amortize such deficit. Given the relative size of the HBC Pension Plan, a downward
swing in the funded status of the HBC Pension Plan could have a significant impact on the Company’s future cash
funding requirements in respect of the HBC Pension Plan.

The Audit Committee monitors the HBC Pension Plan assets closely and follows strict guidelines to ensure
that pension fund investment portfolios are diversified in line with industry best practices. Nonetheless, pension fund
assets are not immune to market fluctuations and the Company may be required to make cash contributions in the
future. The Company believes that it has sufficiently strong cash flows to fund its operations, investing activities and
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commitments for the foreseeable future. The Company’s cash flows from operations are subject to fluctuation due to
various factors, including commodity, foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

Pension related accounting policies include various assumptions that incorporate a high degree of judgment
and complexity. These assumptions may change in the future and may have a material impact on the accrued benefit
obligations of the Company and the cost of the HBC Pension Plan, which is reflected in the Company’s consolidated
statement of earnings.

Funding requirements for Saks’ pension plan may exceed expectations based on the performance of assets in its
pension plan which would reduce cash on hand in our businesses.

Saks sponsors a funded defined-benefit cash balance pension plan (“Saks Pension Plan”) and an unfunded
supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”) for certain employees. Effective January 1, 2007, Saks amended the
Saks Pension Plan, suspending future benefit accruals for all participants, except certain “grandfathered participants”.
Effective March 13, 2009, Saks further amended the Saks Pension Plan, suspending future benefit accruals for all
remaining participants.

Saks records a liability associated with these plans equal to the excess of the benefit obligation over the fair
value of plan assets. If the performance of the assets in these pension plans does not meet Saks’ expectations, or if other
actuarial assumptions are modified, Saks’ future cash payments, and therefore ours, to the plans could be higher than
expected.

Saks funding policy requires contributions to the Saks Pension Plan be at least equal to the minimum funding
requirement, as determined under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) of 1974. Saks may make
additional contributions from time to time, generally not to exceed the maximum tax-deductible limitation. The Saks
Pension Plan and SERP obligations are valued annually as of Saks’ fiscal year-end balance sheet date. The projected
unit credit method is utilized in computing the pension obligations. Net periodic benefit cost is based on actuarial
models used to estimate the total benefits ultimately payable to participants and is allocated to the respective service
periods. The actuarial assumptions used to calculate benefit costs are reviewed annually.

Under ERISA, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation has the authority to terminate an underfunded pension
planunder limited circumstances. In the event the Saks Pension Plan is terminated for any reason while it is underfunded,
we would incur a liability to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation that may be equal to the entire amount of the
underfunding.

Funding requirements for the HBC Europe pension plan may exceed expectations based on the performance of
assets in its pension plan which would reduce cash on hand in our businesses.

In Germany, HBC Europe grants many employees retirement, disability and surviving dependent’s benefits.
New commitments are granted in the form of defined benefit commitments based on employee as well as employer
matching contributions. Contributions are paid to a pension reinsurance from which contributions are paid out when
the insured event occurs. In addition, various frozen pension funds exist. In general, these provide for lifelong pensions
starting with the statutory retirement age or recognized disability. In special cases, benefits are calculated in consideration
of accrued statutory pension entitlements. In Belgium, HBC Europe provides lump sums at retirement as well as
annuities based on pensionable earnings and years of service. Generally benefits are funded through group insurance
contracts that are subject to Belgian regulatory law.

The defined benefit pension entitlements are valued on the basis of actuarial valuations and assumptions,
which are based on legal, economic and tax circumstances prevailing in each country. Such valuations may expose
the Company to various risks. These include general actuarial risks resulting from the actuarial valuations (e.g. from
the discount rate) as well as capital and investment risks related to plan assets. Assumptions and valuations may change
in the future and may have a material impact on the accrued benefit obligations of the Company and the cost of the
pension plans, which is reflected in the Company’s consolidated statement of earnings (loss). In addition, if the
performance of the assets in these pension plans does not meet expectations, HBC Europe’s future cash payments, and
therefore ours, to the plans could be higher than expected.
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There are limits to the insurance policies we have in place that may have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

We maintain directors and officers insurance, liability insurance, business interruption and property insurance
and our insurance coverage reflects deductibles, self-insured retentions, limits of liability and similar provisions.
However, there is no guarantee that our insurance coverage will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be timely
paid to us. In addition, there are types of losses we may incur but against which we cannot be insured or which we
believe are not economically reasonable to insure, such as losses due to acts of war and certain natural disasters. If we
incur these losses, and they are material, this could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of
operations. Also, certain material events may result in sizable losses for the insurance industry and materially adversely
impact the availability of adequate insurance coverage or result in significant premium increases. Accordingly, we may
elect to self-insure, accept higher deductibles or reduce the amount of coverage in response to such market changes.

Loss of our Company marks and other proprietary rights could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and result of operations.

We own some of the most recognized banners, brands and trademarks in the retail industry. We believe that
these trademarks and other proprietary rights will be important to our success and our competitive position. Accordingly,
we will continue to protect our trademarks and proprietary rights. However, the actions taken by us may be inadequate
to prevent imitation of our products and concepts by others or to prevent others from claiming violations of their
trademarks and proprietary rights by us. We cannot assure that others will not assert rights in, or ownership of, trademarks
and other intellectual property rights of ours or in marks that are similar to ours or marks that we license and/or market
or that we will be able to successfully resolve these types of conflicts to our satisfaction. In some cases, there may be
trademark owners who have prior rights to our marks because the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect
intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of Canada, the U.S., Germany and Belgium. In other cases,
there may be holders who have prior rights to similar marks. Furthermore, our intellectual property rights may not have
the value that we believe they have. If we are unsuccessful in protecting our intellectual property rights, or if another
party prevails in litigation against us relating to our intellectual property rights, the value and adequacy of our brand
recognition or brand reputation could be diminished and could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations.

Parties with whom we do business with may be subject to insolvency risks or may otherwise become unable or
unwilling to perform their obligations to us.

The Company is a party to contracts, transactions and business relationships with various third parties, including
vendors, suppliers, service providers, lenders and participants in joint ventures, strategic alliances and other joint
commercial relationships, pursuant to which such third parties have performance, payment and other obligations to the
Company. In some cases, the Company depends upon such third parties to provide essential products, services or other
benefits, including with respect to store and distribution centre locations, merchandise, advertising, software
development and support, logistics, other agreements for goods and services in order to operate the Company’s
businesses in the ordinary course, extensions of credit, credit card accounts and related receivables, and other vital
matters. Current economic, industry and market conditions could result in increased risks to the Company associated
with the potential financial distress or insolvency of such third parties. If any of these third parties were to become
subject to bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings, the rights and benefits of the Company in relation to its
contracts, transactions and business relationships with such third parties could be terminated, modified in a manner
adverse to the Company, or otherwise impaired. The Company cannot make any assurances that it would be able to
arrange for alternate or replacement contracts, transactions or business relationships on terms as favorable as the
Company’s existing contracts, transactions or business relationships, if at all. Any inability on our part to do so could
have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Real Estate Risks
Ownership and leasing of real estate expose us to possible liabilities and losses.

Some of our stores are owned and some are leased. Accordingly, we are, and will continue to be subject to all
of the risks associated with owning and leasing real estate. In particular, the value of the assets could decrease, and
their costs to operate could increase, because of changes in the investment climate for real estate, demographic trends,
and supply or demand for the use of the store, which may result from competition from similar stores in the area, as
well as liability for environmental conditions.
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Store leases generally require us to pay a fixed minimum rent and a variable amount based on a percentage
of annual sales at that location. Generally, we will not be able to terminate these leases, prior to the expiry of the
committed term. If a store is not profitable, and we decide to close it, we may be committed to perform certain obligations
under the applicable lease including, among other things, paying rent for the balance of the applicable lease term. In
addition, as the leases expire, we may be unable to negotiate renewals, either on commercially acceptable terms or at
all, which could cause us to close stores in desirable locations.

If an existing owned store is not profitable, and we decide to close the store, we may be required to record an
impairment charge and/or exit costs associated with the disposal of the store. In addition, we may not be able to close
an unprofitable owned or leased store due to an existing operating covenant which may cause us to operate the location
at a loss which could result in an impairment charge.

Failure to manage effectively these and other factors may affect our ability to build, purchase and lease new
stores, which may have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We do not have sole control over the properties that we hold with our joint venture partners or over the revenues
and certain decisions associated with those properties, which may limit our flexibility with respect to these properties.

We have formed joint ventures with each of RioCan and Simon, whereby we have contributed 10 owned or
ground leased properties located in Canada to the joint venture with RioCan and related entities and 83 owned, acquired
or ground-leased properties located in the United States, Germany and Belgium to the joint venture with Simon. The
properties that we lease through our real estate joint ventures total approximately 3.8 million square feet.

Each of the properties contributed to our joint ventures with RioCan or Simon have been leased back to the
Company pursuant to a long term leases.

Despite having a 89.7% equity stake in the RioCan-HBC JV and approximately a 65% equity stake in the
HBS Joint Venture, a joint venture involves risks, including, among others, a risk that our partners:

* may have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our economic or business interests
or goals;

*  may take actions contrary to our policies or objectives with respect to our real estate investments;

* may become bankrupt, limiting their to meet calls for capital contributions and potentially making it more
difficult to refinance or sell the property;

* may become engaged in a dispute with us that might affect our ability to develop or operate a property; or

* may have competing interests in our markets that could create conflict of interest issues.

Further, we do not have sole control of major decisions relating to the properties that are owned directly by
the joint ventures, including, among others, decisions relating to:

* making any loans or providing financial assistance to any person;
*  making additional capital contributions and investments;

»  distributing cash;

» refinancing or selling a property;

*  issuing new units or other interests in our joint ventures; or

* dissolving or terminating our joint ventures.

Finally, the leases of the properties owned by each joint venture, as landlord, in favour of the Company, as
tenant, are long term leases which require payment of fixed minimum rent and generally include annual rent increases
during each year of the term. These leases generally expose the Company, as tenant, to the same or similar risks as
other leases held by the Company from arm’s length third parties.

We may not realize the expected benefits from the joint ventures and we may not be able to effect a future monetization
transaction with respect to each of the joint ventures.

There can be no assurance that our real estate joint ventures with RioCan and Simon, respectively, will provide
the expected benefits, including enabling us to diversify the tenant base, identify new real estate growth opportunities
such as future property acquisitions, or that we will be able to monetize our joint ventures at a future date.
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There are potential environmental liabilities relating to our owned and leased real property.

As a direct and indirect owner and operator of both frechold and leasehold real property, we are subject to
various federal, state and provincial laws relating to environmental matters. Such laws provide that we could be liable
for the costs of removal and remediation of certain hazardous toxic substances released on or in our properties or
disposed of at other locations. The failure to remove or remediate such substances, if any, could adversely affect an
owner’s ability to sell such real property or to borrow using such real property as collateral and could potentially also
result in claims against the owner or operator.

In May 2011, a small PCB spill occurred in the rooftop transformers at the Montreal Downtown Hudson’s
Bay store. As a result, a small amount of PCBs was released into HBC drains and ultimately into the sewer. Remediation
efforts were undertaken immediately. HBC worked with environmental consultants and remediation specialists, in
conjunction with applicable regulatory authorities, to remediate as quickly and efficiently as possible. The transformers
at the location were subsequently replaced in late 2011 as part of a previously scheduled replacement project. As a
result, we are not aware, and do not believe, that there is any further PCB risk at this location. In January 2014, the
Company was charged with certain infractions under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act. The Company is
currently defending such charges.

We are subject to certain obligations under our agreement with Target and with other third parties that have assumed
leases that could result in potential liabilities.

The Company is subject to risks relating to indemnification rights in favour of Target that are party to the
Target Agreement. This indemnification is for up to $1.825 billion with respect to the representations and warranties
related to the assigned leases including a breach of a covenant by Zellers for one year from the relevant vacancy date
and without limit on amount or time in certain circumstances. Any breach by Zellers of its representations, warranties
or covenants under the agreement with Target could result in a substantial indemnification payment to Target, which
could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s working capital and financial condition, including our ability
to affect our growth strategies. As at the date hereof, no indemnification claim has been made against Zellers or the
Company.

On January 15, 2015, Target Canada filed an application for protection under the Companies’ Creditors
Arrangement Act. Target Canada assumed all obligations and liabilities of Zellers under certain store leases in 2011
pursuant to the agreement dated January 12,2011 between us, Zellers, Target Corporation and Target Canada. Although
HBC and Zellers each have a full, unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity from Target Corporation,
parent company of Target Canada, in respect of the obligations assumed by Target Canada under the relevant leases,
we are subject to risks relating to potential claims by landlords against either HBC or Zellers (where Zellers remains
a direct party to the lease).

On March 6, 2015, Target Canada surrendered 11 leases (which Zellers previously assigned to Target Canada,
or its affiliates) to the applicable landlords in connection with Target Canada’s proceedings under the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act. In connection with such surrender of leases, the applicable landlords released certain parties,
including HBC, Zellers and their respective predecessors, from all claims arising out of or relating to, among other
things, such leases.

In 2008, the Company assigned nine leases to Les Ailes de la Mode, Inc. (“Les Ailes”) and obtained a full,
unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity for the obligations thereunder from its related company,
International Clothiers Inc. (“ICI”). As of January 30, 2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $29
million. In December 2015, Les Ailes filed a notice of intention to make a proposal under section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy
and Insolvency Act. On March 23, 2016, ICI advised us that it was filing a notice of intention to make a proposal under
section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act. The Company currently believes that the maximum claim against
it with respect to these leases is approximately $16 million.

Our current locations may become less desirable.

The success of any store depends substantially upon its location. There can be no assurance that current
locations will continue to be desirable as demographic patterns change. Social or economic conditions where stores
are located could decline in the future, thus resulting in potentially reduced sales in those locations. If we cannot obtain
desirable locations at reasonable prices, our cost structure will increase and our revenues will be adversely affected.
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Economic and External Market Risks

Our businesses are intensely competitive and increased or new competition could have a material adverse effect on
our businesses and results of operations.

The Company’s leading banners conduct business under highly competitive conditions in the retail
merchandising industry. Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor, Find @ Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth Avenue, OFF 5TH, GALERIA
Kaufhof, GALERIA Inno, Sportarena and Gilt have numerous and varied competitors at international, national and
local levels, including conventional and specialty department stores, boutiques, category killers, mass merchants, value
retailers, discounters, Internet retailers, and mail-order retailers. Some of these competitors have greater financial
resources, and as a result, may be able to devote greater resources to sourcing, selling, discovering or promoting their
merchandise. Competition may intensify as new competitors enter into the markets in which our banners operate,
including in the case of our existing banners, U.S. competitors such as Nordstrom entering the Canadian market, and/
or as our competitors enter into business combinations or alliances. We expect competition in the digital commerce
market to continue to intensify as the Internet facilitates competitive entry and comparison shopping. Competition is
characterized by many factors, including assortment of brands and merchandise, advertising, marketing, promotional
activities, price, quality, service, the shopping experience and environment, location, reputation and credit availability.
The Company’s banners also compete in markets where a substantial number of retailers specialize in one or more
types of products than those offered in our existing banners. A number of different competitive factors could have a
material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations, including: (i) increased operational efficiencies of
competitors; (ii) competitive pricing strategies, including deep discount pricing by a broad range of retailers during
periods of poor consumer confidence or economic instability; (iii) expansion of product offerings by existing
competitors; (iv) entry by new competitors into markets in which our banners operate; and (v) adoption by existing
competitors of innovative retail sales methods. Failure to compete effectively could result in, among other things, lower
sales, reduced market shares, lower gross margin and/or higher operating expenses.

Our businesses depend on discretionary spending of consumers.

Deterioration in the Canadian, the U.S., German and Belgian economies may adversely affect the discretionary
spending of consumers, which would likely result in lower sales than expected on a quarterly or annual basis, as well
as higher markdowns and increased promotional expenses in response to lower demand. Future economic conditions
affecting disposable income, such as employment levels, consumer debt levels, lack of available credit, business
conditions, fuel and energy costs, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, tax rates and policies, and consumer confidence
in future economic conditions could also have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations by
reducing consumer spending or causing customers to shift their spending to other products or other retailers.

Unfavourable economic and political conditions and other developments and risks may also have an
unfavourable impact on our results of operations. For example, unfavorable changes related to interest rates, rates of
economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies, inflation, consumer credit availability, consumer debt levels, foreign
exchange rates, tax rates and policies, unemployment trends, oil prices, and other matters that influence the availability
and cost of merchandise, consumer confidence, spending and tourism could have a material adverse effect on our
businesses and results of operations. In addition, unstable political conditions or civil unrests, including terrorist activities
and worldwide military and domestic disturbances and conflicts, may disrupt commerce, our supply chain operations,
international trade or result in political or economic instability and could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

Our primary focus is on selling branded apparel, cosmetics, shoes and accessories catering to a wide range of
consumer demands between mass merchandisers and luxury retailers and which consumers may consider to be
discretionary items. During times of unfavourable economic or political conditions, consumers may shop less frequently,
limit the amount of their purchases and/or shift their spending to other products or retailers, which would likely result
in lower sales, as well as higher markdowns and increased promotional expenses in response to lower demand.

Additionally, several of our existing stores are located in tourist markets. A downturn in economic conditions,
severe weather events or other events such as terrorist activity could impact travel and thus negatively affect the results
of operations for stores located within these tourist markets. Increases in transportation and fuel costs, the financial
condition of the airline industry and its impact on air travel, appreciation of domestic currency in the tourist markets
and its impact on consumer spending power, and sustained recessionary periods in Canada, the U.S., Europe and
internationally could also have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.
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Our businesses and operations may be affected by extreme or unseasonable weather conditions or natural disasters.

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which our stores are located could have a material adverse effect
on our businesses and results of operations. For example, as evidenced by the impact of Hurricane Sandy on our stores,
in the fourth quarter of 2012, frequent or unusually heavy snowfall, ice storms, rainstorms or other extreme weather
conditions over a prolonged period could make it difficult for our customers to travel to our stores and thereby reduce
our sales and profitability as our businesses depend on high customer traffic in our stores, result in staffing shortages
in our stores, interruptions in the flow of merchandise to our stores and disruptions in the operations of our suppliers.
Our businesses are also susceptible to unseasonable weather conditions. For example, extended periods of unseasonably
warm temperatures during the winter season or cool weather during the summer season could render a portion of our
inventory incompatible with those unseasonable conditions, which could adversely affect our ability to execute our
strategy to invest in our stores and right size departments to effectively present seasonal inventory. Reduced sales from
extreme or prolonged unseasonable weather conditions could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations, including lower gross margins due to greater than anticipated discounts and markdowns that might
be necessary to reduce inventory levels.

In addition, natural disasters such as hurricanes, tornadoes and earthquakes, or a combination of these or other
factors, could severely damage or destroy one or more of our stores or warechouses located in the affected areas which
could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We are subject to risks from our international operations, such as foreign exchange, tariffs, taxes, inflation, increased
costs, political risks and our ability to expand in certain international markets, which could impair the ability to
compete and profitability.

We currently source private label products and direct imports certain branded products from China and other
overseas markets, including Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, Vietnam and Europe, in addition to exchange rate fluctuations,
will continue to be subject to risks generally associated with doing business abroad. We do not have direct influence
over how these vendors are managed and thus cannot predict the effect of various factors in the countries in which
vendors or manufacturers who supply our banners are located, including, among others:

e economic trends in international markets;

* legal and regulatory changes, and our cost of compliance with such laws, including trade restrictions and
tariffs;

»  difficulty in enforcing intellectual property rights;

* increases in transportation costs or delays;

» increases and volatility in labour costs;

*  higher levels of unemployment;

*  higher consumer debt levels;

* adverse tax consequences;

»  compliance with ethical and safe business practices and adequate supply of products;

*  political unrest, terrorism and economic instability; and

* limitations on repatriation of earnings.

Any of the foregoing or other factors associated with doing business abroad could have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations going forward including our ability to plan, source and manage our
merchandise mix and inventory levels, as well as expand in certain international markets. While we do not control the
vendors or manufacturers who supply our banners, any violation of applicable local laws or unethical conduct by our
vendors or manufacturers, or any negative publicity about their business practices including production methods and
labour practices, may also adversely affect the brand image and reputation of our banners and have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We plan to continue expanding our international operations. As aresult of these expansion activities in countries
outside of Canada and the U.S., our international operations could account for a larger portion of our net sales in future
years. Future operating results internationally could be negatively affected by a variety of factors, many similar to those
we face in Canada and the U.S., but many of which are beyond our control.
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Fluctuations in the U.S. dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro and other foreign currencies could have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations.

There are risks associated with the implications of foreign currency movement on the Canadian, U.S., German
and Belgian operations of the Company. The Company currently sources private label products and direct imports
certain branded products from China and other overseas markets, including Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, Vietnam and
Europe from vendors and manufacturers whose functional currency is not Canadian dollars, U.S. dollars or Euros.
Accordingly, fluctuations in the Canadian dollar, U.S. dollar or Euro relative to the currencies of our vendors and
manufacturers may adversely affect our inventory costs, which could result in higher costs and lower operating margins.
We are also exposed to general market fluctuations of interest rates.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the cost of certain purchases of merchandise
for its Canadian operations from foreign suppliers in Canadian dollars and utilizes certain derivatives as cash flow
hedges of its exposures to foreign currency risk. There is no guarantee that such hedging strategies will be effective.
In addition, currency hedging entails a risk of illiquidity and, to the extent the applicable foreign currency depreciates
against the Canadian dollar, U.S. dollar, or Euro as applicable, the risk of using hedges could result in losses greater
than if the hedging had not been used. Also, hedging arrangements may have the effect of limiting or reducing the total
returns to the Company if management’s expectations concerning future events or market conditions prove to be
incorrect, in which case the costs associated with the hedging strategies may outweigh their benefits.

The Company, whose functional currency is Canadian dollars, has foreign currency risk related to the
consolidation of the results for the L&T Acquisition and the Gilt Acquisition, whose respective functional currency is
U.S. dollars and for HBC Europe, whose functional currency is Euros. Exchange rate fluctuations could have a material
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

An increase in the cost of raw materials could increase our cost of goods sold.

The fabrics used by many manufacturers who supply our existing banners include synthetic fabrics, the raw
materials of which include petroleum-based products. Our suppliers are also affected by the prices of natural fibres,
including cotton, which is a raw material in many of our products. Inflationary pressures on commodity prices and
other input costs, significant fluctuations or shortages of cotton or other raw materials may increase our cost of goods
sold and could impair our ability to meet production or purchasing requirements in a timely manner. An inability to
mitigate these cost increases could involve having to pass on such cost increases, including as price increases to our
customers or result in a change in our merchandise mix or inventory levels, which could result in a decrease in our
profitability, while any related pricing actions could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of
operations.

Our revenues and cash requirements are affected by the seasonal nature of our businesses.

Our businesses are seasonal, with a high proportion of revenues and operating cash flows generated during
the second half of the fiscal year, which includes the fall and holiday selling seasons. A disproportionate amount of
revenues are generated in the fourth fiscal quarter, which coincides with the holiday season. In addition, we incur
significant additional expenses, including for additional inventory, advertising and employees, in the period leading
up to the months of November and December in anticipation of higher sales volume in those periods. This seasonality
in revenues, cash flows and expenses could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Financial Risks

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and
results of operations.

Our degree of leverage could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations,
including: limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product
development, debt service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes; restricting our flexibility
and discretion to operate our business; limiting our ability to declare dividends on our Common Shares; having to
dedicate a portion of our cash flows from operations to the payment of interest on our existing indebtedness and not
having such cash flows available for other purposes; exposing our business to debt capital market risks, including
interest rate risk and refinancing risk at maturity; exposing us to increased interest expense on borrowings at variable
rates; limiting our ability to adjust to changing market conditions; placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared
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to our competitors that have less debt; making us vulnerable in a downturn in general economic conditions; and making
us unable to make expenditures that are important to our growth and strategies.

In addition, we continue to finance the value of our real estate portfolio held through the real estate joint
ventures with Simon and RioCan and have applied the proceeds received in connection with the debt and equity raised
in such joint ventures to refinance our existing indebtedness. As a result of these financings, our joint ventures have
substantially the same financing risks as those of the Company discussed in this section, including restricting financial
and other covenants that affect the structure and operations of such joint ventures, as well as future financing, sales and
other dealings with the properties held by our joint ventures.

Despite our substantial indebtedness level, we will still be able to incur significant additional amounts of debt, which
could further exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial indebtedness.

We may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. Although our credit facilities contain
restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, such restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and
exceptions, and under certain circumstances, incurrence of indebtedness in accordance with such restrictions could be
substantial. Under our current credit facilities and debt instruments we have the flexibility to incur indebtedness in the
future. The Company’s degree of leverage could adversely affect the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing
for working capital, capital expenditure, debt service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate and other
purposes.

Our existing credit facilities contain restrictions that limit our flexibility in operating our businesses.

Our existing credit facilities contain restrictive financial and other covenants which affect, among other things,
the manner in which we may structure or operate our businesses. Our ability to comply with such covenants may be
affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing economic, financial and industry conditions. A failure by
us to comply with our contractual obligations (including restrictive, financial and other covenants) or to pay our
indebtedness and fixed costs or to obtain a necessary waiver in connection therewith could result in a variety of material
adverse effects, including the acceleration of our indebtedness and the exercise of remedies by our creditors, and such
acceleration or the underlying defaults could trigger additional defaults under other indebtedness or agreements. In
such a situation, it is unlikely that we would be able to repay the accelerated indebtedness or fulfill our obligations
under certain contracts, or otherwise obtain access to sufficient capital or to capital on terms favourable to us to refinance
our existing indebtedness and to cover our fixed costs. Also, the lenders under the financing arrangements could realize
upon all or substantially all of our assets which secure our obligations.

The failure to maintain adequate financial and management processes and controls could have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, which
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Because of its inherent limitations internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. A failure to prevent or
detect errors or misstatements may also result in a decline in our stock price and harm our ability to raise capital.

Dividends are dependent on cash flows of our businesses. The declaration of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

The declaration and payment of future dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors, are subject
to restrictions under our credit facilities and may be affected by various other factors, including our earnings, levels of
indebtedness, financial condition and legal or contractual restrictions. There can be no assurance that we will have the
financial flexibility to pay dividends at the same rate (or at all) in the future. For example, we decreased our quarterly
dividend payments following the Saks Acquisition in order to retain sufficient cash flows from operations for the
payment of financing costs and other expenses stemming from the Saks Acquisition.
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Shareholder Composition
A small number of our shareholders could significantly influence our businesses.

L&T B Cayman its joint actors (“L&T B Group”), Hanover and 238 Ontario each have significant influence
with respect to all matters submitted to our shareholders for approval, including without limitation the election and
removal of directors, amendments to our articles, and by-laws and the approval of any business combination. The
Company, L&T B Group and Hanover are currently parties to a nominating rights agreement, pursuant to which L&T
B Group has the right to nominate four or two directors, depending on the number of Common Shares it holds, and
Hanover has the right to nominate up to four directors, depending on the number of Common Shares it holds.

The Company and 238 Ontario have entered into a separate nominating rights agreement (the “HSILP
Nominating Rights Agreement”) which was effective on the closing date of the Saks Acquisition. Pursuant to the HSILP
Nominating Rights Agreement, 238 Ontario is entitled to nominate one director and 238 Ontario nominated Andrea
Wong to the Board of Directors, effective September 4, 2014. The nominating rights of our significant shareholders
may delay or prevent an acquisition of the Company or cause the market price of our shares to decline. The interests
of L&T B Group, Hanover and 238 Ontario may not in all cases be aligned with interests of our other shareholders. In
addition, the L&T B Group, Hanover and 238 Ontario may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures and
other transactions that, in the judgment of its management, could enhance its equity investment, even though such
transactions might involve risks to our shareholders and may ultimately affect the market price of the Common Shares.

The future sales of Common Shares by our significant shareholders could significantly impact the share price.

Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, our officers, directors, significant shareholders and
their affiliates may sell some or all of their Common Shares in the future. No prediction can be made as to the effect,
if any, such future sales of Common Shares will have on the market price of the Common Shares prevailing from time
to time. However, the future sale of a substantial number of Common Shares by our officers, directors, significant
shareholders and their affiliates, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market
prices for the Common Shares.

Our articles and bylaws could delay and discourage favourable takeover attempts.

Certain provisions of the Company’s articles and bylaws may make it more difficult or impossible for a third
party to acquire control of us or effect a change in our Board of Directors and management. These provisions include
that at least 75% of the voting power of all then outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote generally at the election
of directors will be required for (i) the approval of extraordinary business, and (ii) the amendment, alteration or repeal
of certain provisions of our articles and by-laws.

These provisions could delay, defer or prevent us from experiencing a change of control and management and
may adversely affect our Shareholders’ voting and other rights. Any delay or prevention of a change of control transaction
and management could deter potential acquirers or prevent the completion of a transaction in which our Shareholders
could receive a substantial premium over the then current market price for our Common Shares.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

Regulatory requirements including, but not limited to, trade, environmental, health and safety requirements may
require costly expenditures and expose us to liability.

We are subject to customs, child labour, environmental, advertising and other laws, including consumer
protection regulations and zoning and occupancy ordinances that regulate retailers generally and/or govern the
importation, promotion and sale of merchandise and the operation of retail stores and warehouse facilities. Although
we have measures designed to ensure material compliance with governing statutes, laws, regulations and regulatory
policies in the jurisdictions in which we conduct business, there is no assurance that the Company will be in material
compliance at all times. In addition, political and economic factors could lead to unfavourable changes in tax laws,
which may increase our tax liabilities and could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We are subject to the risk of product liability claims and product recalls.

We sell products produced by third party manufacturers. Some of these products may expose us to product
liability claims relating to personal injury, death or property damage caused by such products, and may require us to
take action. We may also be susceptible to various claims, including class action claims, relating to merchandise that
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is subject to a product recall or liability claim. One or more of our suppliers might not adhere to product safety
requirements or our quality control standards, and we might not identify the deficiency before merchandise ships to
our stores. If suppliers are unable or unwilling to recall products failing to meet our quality standards, we may be
required to remove merchandise from our shelves or recall those products at a substantial cost. Although we maintain
liability insurance to mitigate potential claims, we cannot be certain that our coverage will be adequate for liabilities
actually incurred or that insurance will continue to be available on economically reasonable terms or at all. Product
recalls, withdrawals or replacements may harm our reputation and acceptance of our products by customers, which
may have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. Product recalls, withdrawals, or
replacements may also increase the amount of competition that we face. Events that give rise to actual, potential or
perceived product safety concerns could expose the Company to government enforcement action and/or private
litigation. Reputational damage caused by real or perceived product safety concerns could have a material adverse
effect on our businesses and results of operations. Some competitors may attempt to differentiate themselves from us
by claiming that their products are produced in a manner or geographic area that is insulated from the issues that
preceded the recalls, withdrawals, or replacements of our products.

We are subject to litigation risks that could have a material adverse impact on our businesses and results of operations.

In the normal course of our operations, whether directly or indirectly, we may become involved in, named as
a party to or the subject of, various legal proceedings, including regulatory proceedings, tax proceedings and legal
actions relating to personal injuries, property damage, property taxes, land rights, the environment and contract disputes.
The outcome with respect to outstanding, pending or future proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and may
be determined in a manner adverse to the Company and, as a result, could have an impact on our reputation and
ultimately, a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations. Even if the Company prevails in any
such legal proceeding, the proceedings could be costly which could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

Litigation or regulatory developments in the credit card and financial services industries could have a material
adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

We are subject to various federal, provincial, state and local laws, rules, regulations and initiatives, including
laws and regulations with respect to the credit card and financial services industries, which may change from time to
time. In addition, we are regularly involved in various litigation matters that arise in the ordinary course of our business.
Although the Company is currently of the view that the disposition of any such litigation is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations, the outcome of such litigation cannot be predicted
with certainty. Litigation or regulatory developments could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results
of operations.

In foreign countries in which the Company has operations, a risk exists that our employees, associates or
agents could, in contravention of our policies, engage in business practices prohibited by Canadian, U.S., German and
Belgian laws and regulations applicable to us, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. We maintain policies
prohibiting such business practices and have in place anti-corruption compliance programs designed to ensure
compliance with these laws and regulations. Nevertheless, we remain subject to the risk that one or more of our
employees, associates or agents, including those based in or from countries where practices that violate such laws and
regulations or the laws and regulations of other countries may be customary, will engage in business practices that are
prohibited by our policies, circumvent our compliance programs and, by doing so, violate such laws and regulations.
Any such violations, even if prohibited by our internal policies, could have a material adverse effect on our businesses
and results of operations.

Changes in accounting standards and subjective assumptions, estimates and judgments by management related to
complex accounting matters could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.

Generally accepted accounting principles and related accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines,
and interpretations with regard to a wide range of matters that are relevant to our businesses, including, but not limited
to, revenue recognition, investments, merchandise inventories, vendor rebates and other vendor consideration,
impairment of long-lived assets, self-insurance liabilities, and income taxes are highly complex and involve many
subjective assumptions, estimates and judgments by our management. Changes in these rules or their interpretation or
changes in underlying assumptions, estimates or judgments by our management could significantly change our reported
or expected financial performance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Hudson’s Bay Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hudson’s Bay Company, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as at January 30, 2016, January 31, 2015 and February 2, 2014, and the consolidated statements of
earnings, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the 52 weeks ended January 30,2016 and January 31,2015, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hudson’s

Bay Company as at January 30, 2016, January 31, 2015 and February 2, 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

S eloitte 1P

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

April 4, 2016
Toronto, Canada



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015
(millions of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

(restated — note 9)

January 30, January 31,
2016 2015

Notes (Fiscal 2015) (Fiscal 2014)

Retail sales 11,162 8,169
Cost of sales 9 (6,638) (4,901)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (4,066) (2,759)
Depreciation and amortization 5 (460) (344)
Gain on contribution of assets to joint ventures 12 168 —
Gain on sale of investments in joint ventures 12 516 —
Gain on sale and leaseback transaction 26 — 308
Operating income 682 473
Finance costs, net 6 (188) (262)
Share of net loss in joint ventures 12 (139) —
Dilution gain from investment in joint venture 12 164 _
Earnings before income tax 519 211
Income tax (expense) benefit 7 (132) 22
Net earnings for the year 387 233

Earnings per common share 20

Basic 2.13 1.28
Diluted 1.88 1.27

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015
(millions of Canadian dollars)

(restated — note 9)

January 30, January 31,
2016 2015
(Fiscal 2015) (Fiscal 2014)
Net earnings 387 233
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Item that will not be reclassified to earnings or loss:
Net actuarial gain (loss) of employee benefit plans, net of taxes of $6 (2014: $4) 23 6)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to earnings or loss:
Currency translation adjustment 227 233
Net loss on net investment hedge, net of taxes of nil (2014: $4) — 2
Net gain on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, net of taxes of $8 (2014:
$3) 22 13
Reclassification to non-financial assets of net gains on derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges, net of taxes of $7 (2014: $2) (20) ©)
Reclassification to earnings of net gains on derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges, net of taxes of $1 (2014: $2) @) (6)
Other comprehensive income 248 227
Total comprehensive income 635 460
HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015
(millions of Canadian dollars)
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”)
Currency Net Cash Total
Share Retained Contributed Translation Employee Investment Flow Total Shareholders’
Notes Capital Earnings Surplus Adjustment Benefits Hedge Hedges AOCI Equity
As at February 1, 2014 1,420 491 43 146 (6) (54) 3 89 2,043
Impact of change in
accounting policy 9 — (10) — — — — — — (10)
As at February 2, 2014
(restated) 1,420 481 43 146 (6) (54) 3 89 2,033
Total comprehensive
income (restated) 9 — 233 — 233 6) 2) 2 227 460
Share based compensation 18 — — 17 — — — — — 17
Dividends 19 — (36) — — — — — — (36)
As at January 31, 2015
(restated) 9 1,420 678 60 379 (12) (56) 5 316 2,474
Total comprehensive
income — 387 — 227 23 — 2) 248 635
Share based compensation 18 — — 26 — — — — — 26
Dividends 19 — (36) — — — — — — (36)
As at January 30, 2016 1,420 1,029 86 606 11 (56) 3 564 3,099

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at January 30, 2016, January 31, 2015 and February 2, 2014

Assets

Cash

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Other current assets

Assets of discontinued operations
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill
Pensions and employee benefits
Deferred tax assets

Investments in joint ventures
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Finance leases

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Provisions

Otbher liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Finance leases

Provisions

Pensions and employee benefits

Deferred tax liabilities

Investment in joint venture

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Retained earnings

Contributed surplus

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

(millions of Canadian dollars)

(restated — note 9)

January 30, January 31,2015  February 2, 2014
Note (Fiscal 2015) (Fiscal 2014)

8 507 168 21
512 212 137
9 3,415 2,319 2,031
194 100 102
— — 2
4,628 2,799 2,293
10 5,154 4,606 4,110
11 1,774 1,313 1,188
15 166 149 141
7 253 240 249
12 658 — —
16 15 13
12,649 9,122 7,994
13 451 246 513
14 25 19 19
1,494 945 585
1,020 603 489
132 130 152
148 115 149
16 126 86 11
— — 89
3,396 2,144 2,007
13 2,729 2,723 2,792
14 500 136 131
89 63 16
15 681 189 165
7 887 656 624
12 27 — —
16 1,241 737 226
9,550 6,648 5,961
19 1,420 1,420 1,420
1,029 678 481
86 60 43
564 316 89
3,099 2,474 2,033
12,649 9.122 7.994

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Operating activities
Net earnings for the year
Add: Income tax expense (benefit)
Deduct: Dilution gain from investment in joint venture
Add: Share of net loss in joint ventures
Add: Finance costs, net
Operating income
Net cash income taxes (paid) received
Interest paid in cash
Distributions of earnings from joint ventures
Items not affecting cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization
Net defined benefit pension and employee benefits expense
Other operating activities
Share of rent expense to joint ventures
Gain on contribution of assets to joint ventures
Gain on sale of investments in joint ventures
Gain on sale and leaseback transaction
Share based compensation
Settlement of share based compensation grants
Changes in operating working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in other assets
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables, accrued liabilities and provisions
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Investing activities
Capital investments
Proceeds from landlord incentives

Proceeds from lease terminations and other non-capital landlord incentives
Proceeds from sale of assets
Proceeds from sale and leaseback transaction
Proceeds from contribution of assets to joint ventures
Acquisition of Kaufhof Operating Business, net of cash acquired
Investment in joint ventures
Proceeds from sale of joint ventures’ equity
Other investing activities
Net cash inflow from investing activities
Financing activities
Long-term loans and borrowings:
Issuance
Repayments
Borrowing costs

Short-term loans and borrowings:
Net borrowings from (repayments to) asset-based credit facilities
Borrowing costs
Net decrease in other short-term borrowings

Payments on finance leases
Dividends paid
Net cash outflow for financing activities
Foreign exchange gain on cash
Increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

7

(restated — note 9)

January 30, 2016 January 31, 2015
Notes (Fiscal 2015) (Fiscal 2014)

387 233

7 132 22)
12 (164) —
12 139 —
6 188 262
682 473

a 4

147) (143)

12 114 —
5 460 344
17 6

an) (56)

12 (188) —
12 (168) —
12 (516) —

26 — (308)
18 31 17
18 *) —

(150) (142)

99 (78)

(52) (2)

(52) 326

103 106

18 547

(610) (426)
234 113

(376) (313)
22 71

— 35

26 — 650
12 1,134 —
4 (745) —
12 (299) —
12 712 —

— 2
448 441

1,453 1,420

(1,626) (1,873)

(60) (48)

(233) (501)

158 (287)

— (2)

) 2)

156 (291)

(25) (20)

19 (36) (36)
(138) (848)
11 7
339 147
168 21
507 168




HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Hudson’s Bay Company (“HBC” or the “Company”) is a Canadian corporation amalgamated under the Canada Business
Corporations Act and domiciled in Canada.

On November 26, 2012, the Company completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of its common shares, which trade on
the Toronto Stock Exchange.

On November 4, 2013, the Company acquired Saks Incorporated (“Saks”) whereby all of the issued and outstanding shares
(other than shares owned by Saks and its subsidiaries) of Saks were purchased through Lord & Taylor Acquisition Inc. (“L&T
Acquisition”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for U.S.$16.00 per share in an all-cash transaction valued at U.S.
$2,973 million ($3,097 million), including debt assumed.

On July 9, 2015, the Company and RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust (“RioCan”) closed the first tranche of their joint venture,
RioCan-HBC Limited Partnership (the “RioCan-HBC JV”). The second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV closed on November
25,2015.

On July 22,2015, the Company and Simon Property Group Inc. (“Simon”) closed their joint venture, Simon HBC Opportunities
LLC (the “HBC-Simon JV”).

On September 30, 2015, prior to the acquisition discussed below, the HBC-Simon JV became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HBS Global Properties LLC (“the HBS Joint Venture™) (note 12).

On September 30, 2015, the Company and the HBS Joint Venture acquired GALERIA Holding (“Kauthof”) for €2,317 million
($3,490 million) (the “Kauthof Acquisition”) (note 4). The transaction was structured such that effectively, the Company acquired
the operating business and certain properties of Kaufthof (the “Kauthof Operating Business™) for €709 million ($1,068 million)
while the HBS Joint Venture acquired the property business (the “Kaufhof Property Business™) for €1,608 million ($2,422
million).

The Company owns and operates department stores in Canada and the United States under Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor, Saks
Fifth Avenue, Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH (“OFF 5TH”), Find @ Lord & Taylor and Home Outfitters banners. In Europe, its
banners include GALERIA Kauthof, Galeria Inno, as well as Sportarena, together the “Kauthof Banners”. The address of the
registered office of HBC is 401 Bay Street, Suite 500, Toronto, ON, M5SH 2Y4.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements for the 52 weeks ended January 30, 2016 were authorized for issuance by the Board of
Directors of HBC on April 4, 2016.

b) Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
the statements of earnings. In accordance with IFRS, the Company has:

*  provided comparative financial information; and

» applied the same accounting policies throughout all periods presented, except as discussed in note 9.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. These areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant are disclosed in note 3.



c) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of HBC and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions, balances, revenues and expenses have been eliminated.

d) Fiscal year

The fiscal year of the Company consists of a 52 or 53 week period. Fiscal years 2015 and 2014 represent 52 week periods ended
on January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, respectively. References to years in the consolidated financial statements and notes
to the consolidated financial statements relate to fiscal years rather than calendar years.

e) Foreign currency translation

i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is HBC’s functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Company.

ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the foreign exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date foreign exchange
rates are recognized in net earnings, except when included in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow or
net investment hedges.

iii) Foreign operations

The results and financial position of L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries including Lord & Taylor Holdings LLC
(“L&T”) and Saks, which have a U.S. dollar functional currency, and the Kaufthof Operating Business, which has a
Euro functional currency, are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing foreign exchange rate at the date of each balance
sheet;

» revenues and expenses are translated at average foreign exchange rates;
*  equity transactions are translated at foreign exchange rates on the date the transactions occur; and

« all resulting foreign exchange translation differences are recognized as a currency translation
adjustment in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

) Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the fair value of the assets acquired
(including cash), liabilities assumed, any contingent consideration and equity interests issued by the Company.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed in the period as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, all measured as at the acquisition date. Goodwill is not amortized.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs based on the level at which it is monitored
by management. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operations within that unit are disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the CGU retained.



2) Cash

Cash consists of cash on hand, deposits in banks and short-term deposits with maturities of less than 3 months and includes
restricted funds. Restricted cash represents amounts deposited in escrow accounts which are maintained and managed by an
independent agent.

h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consisting of credit card issuer, vendor and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method
based on individual items. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price determined at the item level using gross profit
expectation and historical markdown rates for similar items in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs required to
sell.

Costs comprise all variable costs, and certain fixed costs, incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition.
Storage and administrative overheads are expensed as incurred. Supplier rebates and discounts are recorded as a reduction in
the cost of purchases unless they relate to a reimbursement of specific incremental expenses.

Merchandise that is subject to consignment or licensee (concession) agreements is not included in inventories.

i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Freehold
land is stated at cost less any impairment loss. Cost includes expenditures that can be directly attributed to the acquisition of the
asset and capitalized borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost can be reliably
measured. The carrying amount of the replaced asset is derecognized.

Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation commences when the assets are available for use
and is recognized on a straight-line basis to depreciate the cost of the assets to their estimated residual value over their estimated
useful lives. When significant parts of an asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate components of the
asset and depreciated over their respective estimated useful lives.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods
Buildings up to 50 years
Leasehold improvements up to 20 years
Fixtures and fittings up to 20 years
Assets held under finance leases up to 50 years

Although the table reflects maximum amortization periods, most assets are amortized over shorter periods. The assets’ useful
lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

k) Intangible assets

Private label brands and banner names with indefinite lives are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and
are not amortized.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. These assets
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods
Software including internally developed costs up to 7 years
Banner names indefinite
Private label brands indefinite
Credit cards up to 5 years
Favourable lease rights up to 75 years

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company,
including employee costs, are recognized as intangible assets.

)} Interest in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Gains on contribution of assets to joint ventures that were leased back by the Company are recognized to the extent of the third
party ownership interest in the joint ventures. The accounting treatment of the recognized gains is determined based on lease
classification, as described in note 2(0).

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in a joint
venture is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Company’s share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Company’s
interest in that joint venture, the Company discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized
only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its
investment in its joint venture arrangements. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in its joint ventures is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as
‘Share of net earnings (loss) in joint ventures’ in the consolidated statement of earnings.

The Company has investments in joint ventures that are structured using separate vehicles that give each party to the arrangement
rights to the net assets of the joint venture.

The Company reclassifies its share of inter-company rental income from its share of earnings in the joint ventures to rent expense
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”).

m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill
are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may be
impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”) and value in use. The FVLCD of an
asset is assessed, where practicable, by external valuators. Value in use is estimated as the present value of the future cash flows
that the Company expects to derive from the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are largely independent cash inflows (CGUs). With the exception of certain corporate assets, which are
tested at the entity level, all assets are tested for impairment at the store level asset grouping.

Any impairment loss identified for a particular CGU is allocated to the assets within that unit on a pro-rata basis, except where
the recoverable amount of an asset is based on FVLCD, in which case no portion of the impairment loss is allocated to that asset.
Any impairment charge is recognized in net earnings in the year in which it occurs. Where an impairment loss subsequently
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reverses due to a change in the original estimate, the impairment loss is reversed but is restricted to increasing the carrying value
of the relevant assets to the carrying value that would have been recognized had the original impairment not occurred.

n) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisions are estimates and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent
on future events. Any difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period when
such determination is made. Recoveries from third parties and other contingent gains are recognized when realized.

i) Self-insurance

The Company purchases third party insurance for automobile, product, workers’ compensation, medical and general
liability claims that exceed a certain dollar level and is responsible for the payment of claims below these insured limits.
Provisions for self-insurance are determined actuarially on a discounted basis based on claims filed and an estimate of
claims incurred but not yet reported.

ii) Restructuring

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognized when the Company has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

iii) Onerous leases and contracts

Provisions for onerous leases are recognized when the Company believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting future
lease obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under the lease. Provisions for onerous contracts
are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under that contract, and only after any impairment losses on assets dedicated to that contract have been
recognized. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

iv) Asset retirement obligations

Assetretirement obligations are recognized for operating leases where the Company has alegal or constructive obligation
to remove leasehold improvements and replace or remove other structures at the end of the lease term, and for owned
locations and at locations subject to ground leases with similar requirements. Obligations are also booked for owned
properties for constructive or legal obligations (such as environmental remediation). The obligation is measured at the
present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and capitalized and amortized over
the useful life of the asset to which it relates.

v) Legal

Legal provisions are recognized where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that there
will be an outflow of economic resources and the amount can be reliably estimated.

0) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Company are classified as
finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over
the lesser of the economic life of the asset or the lease term.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to net earnings on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. The lease term includes renewals where management is reasonably certain the renewal option will be exercised.

The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the substance of the transaction and whether the sale
price reflects fair value. For sale and finance leasebacks, any gain or loss from the sale is deferred and amortized over the term
of the lease. For sale and operating leasebacks, if the transaction is established at fair value, any gain or loss is recognized
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immediately. If the sale price is below fair value, any gain or loss is recognized immediately except that if the loss is compensated
for by future lease payments at below market price, the loss is deferred and amortized in proportion to the lease payments over
the term of the lease. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortized over the term of
the lease.

pP) Income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognized on taxable temporary differences arising from differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is recognized for all
taxable temporary differences, except to the extent where it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit. Deferred income tax is determined using income tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets have been recognized in respect of non-capital losses and temporary differences giving rise to deferred
income tax assets because it is expected that these assets will be recovered by way of reversal of taxable temporary differences
and management’s expectation of future taxable profits within the loss expiry period.

Income tax expense or benefit comprises current and deferred income taxes. Income tax is recognized in net earnings, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. The income tax expense
or benefit is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the consolidated balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only netted when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to realize or settle current tax assets or liabilities
simultaneously in future periods.

qQ Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages, salaries (including non-monetary benefits), vacation entitlement and bonuses are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are recognized in SG&A as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term bonus plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
to this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be reliably estimated.

ii) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions (both defined contribution and defined benefit) and non-pension post-
retirement benefits (medical and life insurance benefits for retirees). The Company reports its obligations under these
plans net of any plan assets.

The asset or liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheets in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past service
costs are recognized in SG&A during the year in which they arise. For funded plans, surpluses are recognized only to
the extent that the surplus is considered recoverable. Recoverability is primarily based on the extent to which the
Company can unilaterally reduce future contributions to the plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Contributions
are recognized as employee benefit expenses are incurred, which are as the related employee services are rendered.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits

The Company provides long-term disability benefits to certain employees dependent on the legal employer. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional on the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs
of these benefits are recognized when an event occurs that causes the long-term disability. Actuarial gains and losses
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r)

arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in net earnings in the period
in which they arise. These obligations are calculated annually.

iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense and a liability at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

v) Share based payments

The Company operates share based incentive plans under which it receives services from certain employees as
consideration. For equity settled awards, the fair value of the grant of equity interests is recognized as an expense over
the period that the related service is rendered with a corresponding increase in equity. For cash-settled awards, the fair
value of the liability is remeasured at the end of each reporting period, with the change in fair value recognized as an
expense over the period that the related service is rendered. Certain awards provide the Company with a choice of
settlement in cash or by issuing equity. In these cases, the award is accounted for as a cash-settled award when the
Company has a present obligation to settle in cash.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity interests granted. The total
amount expensed is recognized over the vesting period on a tranche basis, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the estimate of the number of equity interests
that are expected to vest is revised. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, is recognized in SG&A.

Financial assets

Financial assets have been classified in one of the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed immediately to net earnings. Subsequent changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recorded in net earnings.

ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than twelve months after
the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Company has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The Company’s non-derivative financial assets are classified and measured as follows:

Asset Category
Cash Loans and receivables
Restricted cash Loans and receivables
Short-term deposits Held-to-maturity
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables
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iv) Impairment

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indicator that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of an asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

v) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

s) Financial liabilities

Trade payables and financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued liabilities are recognized initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Loans and borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognized in net earnings as finance costs over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method, unless related
to a qualifying asset (note 2(t)).

Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

t) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain
derivatives as:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);
(b) hedges of foreign currency exposure (net investment hedge); and/or

(c) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge).

When a derivative financial instrument is not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, all changes in its fair value are
recognized immediately in net earnings.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Company also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the maturity of the remaining
hedged item is more than twelve months and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is
less than twelve months.

The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The Company had cash flow hedges outstanding as
at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015.
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in net earnings
within SG&A. Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are recycled in net earnings in the periods when the hedged
item affects earnings.

When a forecasted transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory or property,
plant and equipment), the gains and losses previously deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income are transferred from
equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognized in cost
of sales in the case of inventory or in depreciation in the case of property, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in accumulated other comprehensive income and is recognized when the
forecasted transaction is ultimately recognized in net earnings. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income is immediately transferred to net earnings.

Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of derivatives embedded in a host contract and derivatives that are not distinguished in a hedging
relationship are recognized immediately in net earnings. Embedded derivatives (elements of contracts whose cash flows move
independently from the host contract) are required to be separated and measured at their respective fair values unless certain
criteria are met. The Company has recorded the fair value of embedded derivatives in HBC’s U.S. dollar denominated purchase
orders with certain non-U.S. based vendors. The fair value of these embedded derivatives is recorded in financial assets or
financial liabilities, depending on the embedded derivative’s fair value.

In connection with the acquisition of Saks, the Company also issued warrants. Certain features of the warrants result in their
presentation as derivative financial liabilities that are classified as fair value through profit or loss and recorded at fair value.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets if:

*  There is currently a legally enforceable right to offset recognized amounts; and
*  There is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized to the cost of
the asset. Qualifying assets are those that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in net earnings in the period in which they occur.

V) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of sales tax and estimated returns.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Company and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The
Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

i) Retail merchandise sales

Revenue consists of sales through retail stores of the banners operated by the Company and includes sales through the
Company’s e-commerce (“Digital Commerce”) operations. Merchandise sales through retail stores are recognized at
the time of delivery to the customer which is generally at point of sale. Merchandise sales through Digital Commerce
are recognized upon estimated receipt by the customer.

It is the Company’s policy to sell merchandise to the customer with a right to return within a specified period.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns. Where it is determined that the Company
acts as an agent rather than a principal in a transaction, revenue is recognized to the extent of the commission.
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ii) Gift cards

Through its retail stores, websites and selected third parties, the Company sells gift cards that have no administrative
fee charges or expiration dates. No revenue is recognized at the time gift cards are sold. Revenue is recognized as a
merchandise sale when the gift card is redeemed by the customer.

The Company also recognizes income when the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the customer is remote
(“gift card breakage™). Gift card breakage is estimated based on historical redemption patterns and is recognized in
proportion to the redemption of gift card balances.

W) Credit operations
Legacy agreements

Under the legacy credit agreements, the Company earned royalty payments from credit card issuers based on the total of Company
and other sales charged to either the Private Label Credit Cards (“PLCC”) or MasterCard. Royalty rates changed based on the
year-to-date credit volume of out-of-store credit card sales. The Company also received bounty payments from credit card issuers
for each approved PLCC or MasterCard account. Bounty and royalty payments were recognized based on expected or actual
performance over the life of the credit card agreements. With respect to the legacy credit agreement for Saks, the Company
earned a blend of royalty payments, bounty payments and shared in the income and losses of the legacy credit program. In
addition, pursuant to a servicing agreement with a credit card issuer, the Company received compensation for providing key
customer service functions including new account openings, transaction authorizations, billing adjustments and customer
inquiries. All credit card revenues related to the legacy credit agreements are included as a reduction of SG&A in the consolidated
financial statements. The Company had no risk of credit loss on the credit card receivables in the underlying portfolio.

New credit card program

The Company entered into a new credit card program that replaced the legacy credit card programs. Under this program, the
Company shares in the income and losses of the credit card program related to private label and co-branded credit cards at
Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor and Saks. The new credit card program was effective as of January 1, 2015 with respect to Hudson’s
Bay and Saks. In June 2015, the Company completed the transition to include Lord & Taylor’s active participation to the program.
Income related to the new program is included in SG&A.

X) Vendor allowances

The Company receives cash or allowances from vendors, the most significant of which are in respect of markdown allowances,
volume rebates and advertising. Such amounts are recorded as a reduction of the cost of purchases.

Rebates that are based on specified cumulative purchase volumes are recognized if the rebate is probable and reasonably estimable;
otherwise these rebates are recognized when earned. These rebates are applied as a reduction of the cost of purchases.

Y) Loyalty programs

Award credits are accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore, part
of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits. This allocation is reported as deferred revenue
until the award credits are redeemed by the customer. The amount deferred is based on points outstanding that the Company
estimates will be redeemed by customers and the estimated fair value of those points. The points expected to be redeemed are
based on many factors, including an actuarial review, where required, of customers’ past experience and trends.

z) Future accounting standards not yet adopted
Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“IFRS 97), which brings together the classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 — Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”).

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model under which they are managed and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner as
under IAS 39, except that financial liabilities measured at fair value will have fair value changes resulting from changes
in the entity’s own credit risk recognized in other comprehensive income instead of net earnings.
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Impairment

The measurement of impairment of financial assets is based on an expected credit loss model. It is no longer necessary
for a triggering event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. IFRS 9 also includes new disclosure
requirements about expected credit losses and credit risk.

Hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting model more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures. The new model will provide more
opportunities to apply hedge accounting to reflect actual risk management activities.

IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
The Company is assessing the potential impact of this standard.

Revenue

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”), which provides a comprehensive
framework for recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers, excluding contracts within
the scope of the standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial instruments. IFRS 15 is to be applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact
of IFRS 15.

Joint Arrangements

In May 2014, the IASB amended IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (“IFRS 117) to require that a joint operator accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant IFRS 3 — Business Combinations principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that
a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments
do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate
controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional
interests in the same joint operation. The amendments to IFRS 11 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016, and must be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has concluded that the amendment will
not have an impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

Leases

In January 2016, the IASB issued the final publication of the IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”), standard which is to replace the
current IAS 17 lease accounting standard and related interpretations. IFRS 16 is required to be adopted either retrospectively or
by recognizing the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment to opening equity at the date of initial
application. IFRS 16 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2019 with earlier adoption permitted if IFRS
15 has also been adopted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of IFRS 16.

NOTE 3. CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, and the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities, and reporting of income and expenses, that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ materially from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Business combinations

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination is estimated based on information available at
the date of acquisition and involves considerable judgment in determining the fair values assigned to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed on acquisition. The determination of these fair values involves analysis
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including the use of discounted cash flows, estimated future margins, future growth rates, market rents and capitalization rates.
There is measurement uncertainty inherent in this analysis and actual results could differ from estimates.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Current selling price and historical trends for estimating future
markdowns are utilized to estimate net realizable value. Inventory valuation also incorporates a write-down to reflect future
losses on the disposition of obsolete merchandise.

Inventory is adjusted to reflect estimated losses (“shortage”) incurred since the last inventory count. Shortage is estimated based
on historical experience as a percentage of sales for the period from the date of the last inventory count to the end of the fiscal
year.

Loyalty programs

Where loyalty award credits are issued in connection with a sales transaction that includes the loyalty program, a portion of the
revenue has been deferred based on expected redemptions of points outstanding (note 2(y)). The amount of revenue deferred
relating to the loyalty programs is sensitive to changes in customer behaviour and the impact of changes in the loyalty programs.
Deferred revenue reported in the consolidated balance sheets relates entirely to the loyalty programs.

Impairment and reversal of impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are subject to impairment and impairment reversal reviews based on whether current or future events and
circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be more or less than their carrying value. In certain instances, the
recoverable amount is based on a calculation of expected future cash flows which includes management assumptions and
estimates of future performance.

Impairment of goodwill

The Company uses judgment in determining the grouping of assets to identify its CGUs for purposes of testing for impairment
of goodwill. In testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. The calculations for impairment testing involve significant estimates
and assumptions. Items estimated include cash flows, discount rates and assumptions on revenue growth rates. These estimates
could affect the Company’s future results if the current estimates of future performance and fair values change. Judgment is also
exercised to determine whether an indication of impairment is present that would require the completion of an impairment test
in addition to the annual testing.

Valuation of warrants

In connection with the acquisition of Saks, the Company issued warrants. The classification of these instruments as financial
liabilities is an area of significant judgment. The Company records a mark-to-market valuation adjustment on the warrants as
finance costs based on a valuation at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for various items including asset retirement obligations, general insurance liability and termination
costs. Asset retirement obligations are based on uncertain estimates of remediation and the timing of the remediation. The
Company purchases third party insurance for automobile, product, workers’ compensation, medical and general liability claims
that exceed a certain dollar level and is responsible for the payment of claims below these insured limits. The self-insurance
provision is based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported.

In the context of provisions for onerous contracts including leases, the Company uses judgment in determining when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the
contract.

Sales returns

Sales returns are estimated on the basis of historical returns and are recorded so as to allocate them to the same period as the
original revenue is recorded.

Share based compensation

The Company operates a share option plan, phantom share plan, restricted share unit plan, performance share unit plan,
performance restricted share unit plan and profits interests plan for employees. The grant date fair values are calculated using
valuation models, which use a number of assumptions and estimates, including expected volatility, the risk-free interest rate,
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the dividend yield, the non-marketability discount and the expected life of the grants. Details of these assumptions and estimates
are set out in note 18.

Income taxes

The Company recognizes expected liabilities for income taxes based on an estimation of the likely income taxes due, which
requires judgment as to the ultimate income tax determination of certain items. In addition, the Company has made estimates
of future profitability in relation to an assessment of the recoverability of income tax losses. Details of the income tax expense
and deferred taxes are set out in note 7.

Pensions and employee benefits

The Company operates various defined benefit plans for its employees. The present value of the plans’ liabilities recognized at
the balance sheet date and net financing charges recognized in net earnings are dependent on the interest rate of high quality
corporate bonds. Other key assumptions within this calculation are based on market conditions or estimates of future events,
including mortality rates, as set out in note 15.

Lease accounting

The Company leases a significant number of store locations as part of its operations. The determination of classification between
finance and operating leases requires the exercise of management judgment, including estimates of fair value, the useful and
economic lives of the leased assets, the existence of lower than market renewal options and appropriate discount rates. Operating
and finance leases are discussed in note 14.

Management judgment is also exercised in the assessment of sale and leaseback transactions, including the determination of
leaseback classification between finance and operating leases, the fair value of the leased back property and appropriate discount
rates.

Joint ventures

Judgment is used by management when determining what subsidiaries or entities to consolidate in the financial statements.
Subsidiaries or entities are typically consolidated when the Company has control over the entities. In determining if control
exists, management considers various factors including whether the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity either through an agreement or by voting rights, exposure or rights to variable
returns from the Company’s involvement with the entity, and the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of
the Company’s returns.

The Company holds an 89.7% ownership interest in its joint arrangement with RioCan and 67.4% ownership interest in its joint
arrangement with Simon and other non-controlling third party investors. Based on the contractual terms of each arrangement,
the Company identified the relevant activities of each joint venture and determined that all significant decisions require the joint
consent of both parties to each of the joint arrangements formed. The Company has assessed its rights and obligations arising
from the joint arrangements by considering the structure and legal form of the arrangements, the terms agreed by the parties and
other facts and circumstances. Based on this assessment, the arrangements have been classified as joint ventures. The Company
will reassess the existence of joint control and the joint venture classification should facts and circumstances change. Gains
recognized upon the initial contributions into each joint venture were determined based on determinations of fair value that
incorporated assumptions from a market participant’s perspective under market conditions that existed at the measurement date.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of the initial contributions made by HBC into
each of the joint venture arrangements formed.

NOTE 4. ACQUISITION OF GALERIA HOLDINGS

On September 30, 2015, the Company and the HBS Joint Venture acquired Kaufhof for a purchase price of €2,317 million
($3,490 million) from Metro AG (“METRO”) and Asset Immobilienbeteiligungen GmbH (“AIB”). The Company and the HBS
Joint Venture paid cash for all of METRO and AIB’s shares in the department store business and non-store multi-channel retailing
business that operate under the brands of the Kaufhof Banners. A nominal amount of shares in certain property companies of
the acquired Kaufhof Operating Business and the Kauthof Property Business were held as at the acquisition date by METRO,
AIB, or third parties.

The transaction was structured in a manner such that HBC effectively acquired the Kauthof Operating Business while the HBS
Joint Venture acquired the Kaufhof Property Business (note 12). Both transactions are intended to drive growth going forward
consistent with the Company’s previously announced fiscal 2014 strategic initiatives; namely through global and all-channel
growth in both its retail and real estate businesses.
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The acquisition of the Kaufhof Operating Business by the Company was financed through proceeds from the U.S. Term Loan
B facility (note 13).

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the consideration given and the fair value assigned to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed of the Kauthof Operating Business:

(millions) € Euros $ CAD
Cash 214 323
Inventories 518 780
Property, plant and equipment 700 1,055
Intangible assets 344 519
Other assets 136 203
Finance leases (145) (218)
Provisions (43) (64)
Deferred tax liabilities (32) (49)
Pensions and employee benefits (318) (479)
Other liabilities (665) (1,002)
Total identifiable net assets acquired and cash consideration given 709 1,068

The total Kauthof purchase price of €2,317 million ($3,490 million) is subject to certain adjustments to the fair values assigned
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed (“the purchase price adjustment period”) as agreed upon between the Company
and METRO, which could result in a final amount paid that is higher or lower than the purchase price disclosed above. The
purchase price adjustment period was 90 business days from September 30, 2015, within which the Company’s proposed
adjustment was submitted and is currently in negotiation. We expect the purchase price to be finalized in the first quarter of
fiscal 2016.

The Company has not yet finalized the purchase price allocation including any potential goodwill and therefore, the information
disclosed above for identifiable net assets acquired is subject to change.

During the thirteen weeks ended January 30, 2016, the Company identified measurement period adjustments based on new
information relating primarily to inventories and finance leases. The impacts of the adjustments to previously reported amounts
are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) Sep 30, 2015
Increase in inventories 18
Decrease in intangibles (18)
Decrease in property, plant and equipment (18)
Decrease in finance leases 18

Retail sales and a net loss of the Kaufhof Operating Business included in the consolidated statement of earnings for fiscal 2015
are $1,869 million and $3 million, respectively.

The Company has incurred acquisition-related costs (including costs related to the acquisition of the Kaufhof Property Business
by the HBS Joint Venture) of $149 million related to external legal fees, consulting fees, due diligence costs and investment
banking fees of which $58 million was deferred and is being amortized within finance costs. The remaining costs of $91 million
have been included in SG&A in the consolidated statements of earnings.
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NOTE 5. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

(millions of Canadian dollars)

2015 2014
Property, plant and equipment 360 271
Intangible assets 103 77
Deferred credits “) 4)
Other 1 —
460 344
NOTE 6. FINANCE COSTS
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Interest expense on long-term borrowings 124 120
Interest expense on short-term borrowings 23 22
Interest expense on finance leases 24 12
Write-off of deferred financing costs (note 13) 50 52
Net interest on pensions and employee benefits (note 15) 6 1
Penalties and fees on term loans (note 13) — 12
Interest income 2) (1)
Total interest expense, net 225 218
Saks acquisition-related finance (income) costs (note 17) 37 44
188 262

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The major components of the income tax expense (benefit) and the statutory income tax rate for fiscal 2015 and 2014 are as
follows:

(restated -
note 9)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Current tax expense 45 8
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 87 (30)
Income tax expense (benefit) 132 (22)
Statutory income tax rate 26.5% 26.3%

Reconciliations of the income tax expense (benefit) at the above rates with the amounts presented in the consolidated statements
of earnings are as follows:

(restated -
note 9)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Earnings before income tax 519 211
Income tax expense calculated at statutory income tax rate 138 55
Change in income taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences (40) (34)
Effect of international tax rate differentials 39 (38)
Increase in valuation allowance — 1
Adjustments related to prior years Q) ®)
Other — 2
Income tax expense (benefit) 132 (22)
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The changes in the components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for fiscal 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Year ended January 30, 2016

Assumed Recognized
through Recognized in other Net foreign
Jan 31, business in net comprehensive  Recognized currency Jan 30,
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 combination earnings income in equity exchange 2016
Property, plant and equipment (582) (231) (52) — 152 (64) (777)
Investment in joint ventures — — (244) — (150) — (394)
Employee benefits 17 — 3 — — — 20
Pensions 1 117 14 6) — 5 131
Other assets (196) an 124 — ?2) (28) 119)
Long-term liabilities and other 106 82 5 — — 3 196
Tax losses and other carryforward
amounts 253 — 63 — — 9 325
401) 49) (87) 6) — (75) (618)
Valuation allowance 15) — — — — 6)) (16)
Net deferred tax liabilities (416) 49) 87) 6) — (76) (634)
Comprising:
Deferred tax assets 240 253
Deferred tax liabilities (656) (887)
(416) (634)
Year ended January 31, 2015 (restated - note 9)
Recognized
Recognized in other Net foreign
Feb 2, in net comprehensive currency Jan 31,
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 earnings income exchange 2015
Property, plant and equipment (466) (40) — (76) (582)
Employee benefits 22 (6) 1 — 17
Pensions ®) 4 3 2 1
Other assets (217) 48 1 (28) (196)
Long-term liabilities and other 62 34 4 6 106
Tax losses and other carryforward amounts 245 ©) — 17 253
(362) 31 9 (79) 401)
Valuation allowance (13) ) — )] (15)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets (375) 30 9 (80) (416)
Comprising:
Deferred tax assets 249 240
Deferred tax liabilities (624) (656)
(375) (416)

The realization of the deferred income tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the years in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Based on management’s projection of future taxable income and tax
planning strategies, management expects to realize these net deferred income tax assets in advance of expiry.

The amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interests in joint
arrangements for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized is $266 million as at January 30, 2016 (January 31,

2015: nil).
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As at January 30, 2016, the Company’s taxable entities have non-capital tax losses carried forward of $1,032 million available
in the United States, Canada and Germany as follows (millions of Canadian dollars):

Available until year ending

January 2026 67
January 2027 109
January 2028 233
January 2029 20
January 2030 60
January 2031 43
January 2032 7
January 2033 111
January 2034 194
January 2035 98
January 2036 90

1,032
NOTE 8. CASH

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, cash includes restricted cash of $94 million (2014: $15 million).
NOTE 9. INVENTORIES

Inventories on hand at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015 were available for sale. The cost of merchandise inventories
recognized as expense for fiscal 2015 was $6,638 million (2014: $4,901 million). The write-down of merchandise inventories
below cost to net realizable value as at January 30, 2016 was $86 million (January 31, 2015: $48 million). There was no reversal
of write-downs previously taken on merchandise inventories that are no longer estimated to sell below cost. Inventory has been
pledged as security for certain borrowing agreements as described in note 13.

Change in accounting policy

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company changed its policy with respect to the valuation of Saks’ inventory from
the retail method to cost, as well as, the method of calculating the adjustment required to value inventory to its net realizable
value. The change in policy was implemented retrospectively to February 2, 2014. The Company was unable to quantify the
impact of the accounting change prior to February 2, 2014 as data required for this was not historically maintained at the necessary
level of detail.

Prior to February 2, 2014, item cost was determined using the retail method, which reduced the selling price of inventories to
cost using the application of average department mark-up. The adjustment to net realizable value was then calculated by assessing
department aging and mark down status of items in the department. Subsequent to February 2, 2014, cost is determined using
the weighted average cost (cost method) on an individual style basis. The net realizable value calculation is now performed
integrating item level analysis as well as aging and markdown status.

As of February 2, 2014, January 31, 2015 and for fiscal 2014 the impact of this change in policy is as follows:
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(millions of Canadian dollars) Jan 31,2015  Feb 2,2014
Decrease in inventories (30) (17)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (12) @)
Decrease in retained earnings (15) (10)
Decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income 3) —
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Decrease (increase) in cost of sales 13 )
(Increase) decrease in income tax expense 5) 3
Increase (decrease) in net earnings for the year 8 (5)
Decrease in currency translation adjustment (1) 3)
Increase (decrease) in total comprehensive income 7 )
Earnings (loss) per common share - basic and diluted 0.04 (0.03)
NOTE 10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended January 30, 2016

Assets
held under
Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance

(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 1,076 2,374 641 1,076 321 5,488
Additions — 57 219 290 158 724
Acquired through business combination 184 145 218 282 226 1,055
Disposals including transfer to joint

ventures (280) (1,237) (82) 41 (6) (1,646)
Net foreign currency exchange 84 142 51 94 31 402
Balance at end of year 1,064 1,481 1,047 1,701 730 6,023
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
Balance at beginning of year 5 288 155 368 66 882
Depreciation expense — 81 72 170 37 360
Impairment losses — — — 1 — 1
Eliminated on disposal including transfer

to joint ventures (5) (347) (32) 41 (6) (431)
Net foreign currency exchange — 6 12 35 4 57
Balance at end of year — 28 207 533 101 869
Net book value at end of year 1,064 1,453 840 1,168 629 5,154
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Year ended January 31, 2015

Assets
held under

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance
(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 1,055 2,085 456 801 283 4,680
Additions — 55 134 199 5 393
Disposals 97 41 4 2n — (163)
Net foreign currency exchange 118 275 55 97 33 578
Balance at end of year 1,076 2,374 641 1,076 321 5,488
Accumulated depreciation and

1mpairment

Balance at beginning of year 5 185 103 239 38 570
Depreciation expense — 86 45 115 25 271
Impairment losses — — 1 — — 1
Eliminated on disposal — (15) (6) (18) — 39)
Net foreign currency exchange — 32 12 32 3 79
Balance at end of year 5 288 155 368 66 882
Net book value at end of year 1,071 2,086 486 708 255 4,606

Certain property, plant and equipment have been pledged as security for borrowings as further described in note 13. There were
$184 million in material capital commitments, net of leasehold improvement allowances as at January 30, 2016.

NOTE 11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Year ended January 30, 2016

Favourable Plrzg:lte Banner Credit

(millions of Canadian dollars) Goodwill  Software lease rights brands names cards Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 237 382 415 61 444 32 1,571
Additions — 90 — — — — 90
Acquired through business combination — 114 139 35 231 — 519
Disposals including transfer to joint ventures — ®)] (185) — — — (190)
Net foreign currency exchange 24 22 29 7 48 3 133
Balance at end of year 261 603 398 103 723 35 2,123
Accumulated amortization and

impairment
Balance at beginning of year — 190 60 — — 8 258
Amortization expense — 70 27 — — 6 103
Disposals including transfer to joint ventures — 3) (25) — — — (28)
Net foreign currency exchange — 9 6 — — 1 16
Balance at end of year — 266 68 — — 15 349
Net book value at end of year 261 337 330 103 723 20 1,774
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Year ended January 31, 2015

Private

Favourable label Banner Credit

(millions of Canadian dollars) Goodwill Software lease rights brands names cards Total
Cost

Balance at beginning of year 208 314 364 53 389 28 1,356
Additions — 49 — — — — 49
Net foreign currency exchange 29 19 51 8 55 4 166
Balance at end of year 237 382 415 61 444 32 1,571
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance at beginning of year — 139 28 — — 1 168
Amortization expense — 46 25 — — 6 77
Net foreign currency exchange — 5 7 — — 1 13
Balance at end of year — 190 60 — — 8 258
Net book value at end of year 237 192 355 61 444 24 1,313

The banner names and private label brands have been assigned an indefinite useful life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the assets are expected to generate net cash inflows and the Company’s intention is to continue to utilize these
trade names for the foreseeable future.

NOTE 12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
The following table summarizes the details of the RioCan-HBC JV, HBS Joint Venture and other joint venture:

2015
(millions of Canadian dollars) Principal Activity Principal Place of Business Ownership Interest Carrying Value
RioCan-HBC JV Real estate investment Canada 89.7% 27
HBS Joint Venture Real estate investment United States, Germany 67.4% 545
Other joint venture Real estate investment United States, Germany 67.4% 113

631

RioCan-HBC JV

Upon closing of the first tranche of the joint venture with RioCan, HBC contributed 7 properties with a combined value of
approximately $1.3 billion. Based on RioCan’s interest in the joint venture, the total gain on contribution of the owned and
ground-leased properties to the RioCan-HBC JV was $150 million of which $18 million was deferred and recorded in non-
current other liabilities. The Company also received cash proceeds of $352 million from the RioCan-HBC JV which it primarily
used to repay the Senior Term Loan B and the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

On November 25, 2015, HBC had closed the second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV which resulted in the Company indirectly
contributing 3 additional ground-leased properties consisting of Yorkdale Shopping Centre, Scarborough Town Centre, and
Square One with a value of approximately $338 million (“YSS Properties”). The Company recorded a gain on the contribution
of these properties of approximately $35 million based on RioCan’s interest in the joint venture after the closing of the second
tranche. Additionally, as part of closing the second tranche of the RioCan-HBC JV, the Company’s Yorkdale Mortgage of $47
million was assumed by an entity related to the RioCan-HBC JV.

The following provides additional information relating to the RioCan-HBC JV which includes the indirect contribution of the
YSS Properties as of November 25, 2015, for the periods indicated.
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The following table details the changes in the Company’s investment in the RioCan-HBC JV:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Equity investment as at the beginning of the year —
Investment in joint venture 30)
Share of net earnings from joint venture 37
Distributions from joint venture (34)
Equity investment as at the end of the year 27)

Summarized financial information of the RioCan-HBC JV and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the
consolidated balance sheets are set out below:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Cash 1
Non-current assets 1,897
Current financial liabilities Q)
Non-current financial liabilities (547)
Net assets at 100% 1,346
Company’s share of net assets in the RioCan-HBC JV 1,207
Less gain on contributions of assets to the RioCan-HBC JV not recognized related to Company’s ownership

interest (1,234)

Company’s carrying value investment in the RioCan-HBC JV 27

Summarized statement of earnings of the RioCan-HBC JV:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Revenue 58
Property operating costs (6)
Depreciation and amortization (21)
Finance income 6
Finance costs 8)
Net earnings and total comprehensive income at 100% 29
Company’s share of net earnings in the RioCan-HBC JV prior to adjustment 25
Adjustment for the Company’s share of depreciation on the fair value increment of the contributed properties 12
Company’s share of net earnings from the RioCan-HBC JV 37
Rf\(;lassiﬁcation of rental income to SG&A related to the Company’s ownership interest in the RioCan-HBC @)
Company’s share of net loss in the RioCan-HBC JV 3)

HBS Joint Venture

Upon closing of the HBC-Simon JV on July 22, 2015, HBC contributed forty-two properties with a combined value of
approximately $2.1 billion. Based on Simon’s interest in the joint venture, the total gain on contribution of the owned and ground-
leased properties to the HBC-Simon JV was $1 million. The Company also received cash proceeds of $782 million from the
HBC-Simon JV which is used to repay the Senior Term Loan B in full and to partially repay the outstanding balance on its U.S.
Revolving Credit Facility.

On September 30, 2015, HBC and Simon exchanged their partnership units in the HBC-Simon JV, on a one-for-one basis, for
partnership units of the newly formed HBS Joint Venture. As a result, the HBC-Simon JV became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the HBS Joint Venture.

The equity transactions resulting from the Kauthof Acquisition (note 4) at the HBS Joint Venture resulted in HBC realizing a
dilution gain of $164 million. The gain is primarily attributable to Simon’s capital contribution of $231 million and the impact
of HBC’s increased net investment in the HBS Joint Venture which resulted in a reduction to HBC’s ownership interest from
99.9% to 91.8%.
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On September 30, 2015, as part of the Kauthof Acquisition, the HBS Joint Venture acquired the Kaufhof Property Business for
€1,608 million ($2,422 million). The transaction resulted primarily in the acquisition of forty properties. One additional property
was acquired for €154 million subsequent to the closing of the transaction.

The acquisition by the HBS Joint Venture was primarily financed through the incurrence of real estate debt in the amount of
€1,184 million. Additional real estate debt was used to finance the property acquired subsequent to the closing of the transaction.
The remainder was financed using equity contributions and existing cash at the HBS Joint Venture.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the consideration given and the fair value assigned to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed of the Kaufhof Property Business:

(millions) € Euros $ CAD
Cash 152 229
Current assets 40 60
Non-current assets 1,927 2,902
Current liabilities (226) (341)
Non-current liabilities (285) (428)
Total identifiable net assets acquired and consideration given 1,608 2,422

On November 17, 2015, the Company sold a portion of its equity investment in the HBS Joint Venture for proceeds of U.S.$515
million to third party investors. Proceeds from the equity sale, together with cash on hand, were used to reduce U.S. Term Loan
B from U.S.$1,085 million to U.S.$500 million (note 13). As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on the
equity sale of $495 million and decreased its ownership interest in the HBS Joint Venture to 67.4%.

The following table details the changes in the Company’s investment in the HBS Joint Venture:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Equity investment as at the beginning of the year —
Investment in joint venture 597
Share of net earnings from joint venture 12
Dilution gain from changes in equity interest 164
Sale of a portion of investment in joint venture (191)
Distributions from joint venture (80)
Other 43
Equity investment as at the end of the year 545

Summarized financial information of the HBS Joint Venture and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in
the consolidated balance sheet are set out below:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Cash 144
Other current financial assets 18
Non-current assets 5,710
Current liabilities 32)
Current financial liabilities (235)
Non-current liabilities (423)
Non-current financial liabilities 3,319
Net assets at 100% 1,863
Company’s share of net assets in the HBS Joint Venture 1,256
Less gain on contribution of assets to the HBS Joint Venture not recognized related to Company’s ownership

interest (711)

Company’s carrying value investment in the HBS Joint Venture 545
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Summarized statement of earnings of the HBS Joint Venture:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015
Revenue 191
Property operating expenses 19)
General and administrative expenses (64)
Depreciation and amortization (50)
Finance income 1
Finance costs 57)
Income tax benefit 1
Net earnings at 100% 3

Company’s share of net earnings in the HBS Joint Venture prior to adjustment —
Adjustment for the Company’s share of depreciation on the fair value increment of the contributed

properties 12
Company’s share of net earnings from the HBS Joint Venture 12
Reclassification of rental income to SG&A related to the Company’s ownership interest in the HBS Joint

Venture (148)
Company’s share of net loss in the HBS Joint Venture (136)

Other joint venture

In addition, during fiscal 2015, the Company contributed $116 million to its other joint venture. In conjunction with the sale
of a portion of the equity investment in the HBS Joint Venture on November 17, 2015, the Company also sold 24.4% of its
equity investment in its other joint venture for U.S.$18 million and recognized a gain on the equity sale of $21 million.

NOTE 13. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

a) Current loans and borrowings

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, current loans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
HBC Revolving Credit Facility — 159
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility 464 108
Current portion of long-term loans and borrowings 7 4
471 271
Less: unamortized costs (20) (25)
451 246

HBC Revolving Credit Facility

HBC is the borrower on an asset based credit facility (the “HBC Revolving Credit Facility”’) with Bank of America, N.A. as the
administrative agent and collateral agent, made available through a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”).

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and eligible credit
card receivables of HBC, excluding L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries and any real estate subsidiaries. The HBC Revolving
Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes and can be drawn in both U.S. and Canadian dollars. The HBC
Revolving Credit Facility has multiple interest rate charge options that are based on the Canadian prime rate, the Canadian
Dealer Offered Rate (“CDOR”), U.S. index rate and the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

As the HBC Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures
and other general corporate purposes, it has been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and
borrowings. However, the Company is not required to repay any balance outstanding until the maturity date of December 17,
2019.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receivable in
Canada. The Credit Agreement contains a number of representations and warranties and positive and negative covenants. These
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provisions include, among other things, placing certain conditions and restrictions on making dividend payments and financial
maintenance covenants. The Credit Agreement also contains extensive reporting requirements and a number of events of default.

HBC was in compliance with all covenants contained in the Credit Agreement as at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015.

The effective interest rate based on the average balance drawn and finance costs of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility for fiscal
2015 and 2014 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis 125 53
Finance costs 6 8
Effective interest rate 4.9% 15.1%

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, details of the borrowing base availability on the HBC Revolving Credit Facility
were as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Gross borrowing base availability 495 457
Drawings — (159)
Outstanding letters of credit (13) 9)
Borrowing base availability net of drawings and letters of credit 482 289

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility

L&T Acquisition is the borrower on an asset based credit facility (“U.S. Revolving Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A.
as the administrative agent and collateral agent.

This revolving line of credit is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and accounts receivable
of L&T, Saks and their respective subsidiaries (other than real estate subsidiaries). The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available
to finance working capital needs, capital expenditures, operating activities and to support the issuance of standby letters of credit.
The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility has multiple interest rate charge options that are based on the U.S. prime rate, Federal Funds
rate and LIBOR.

As the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures
and other operating activities, it has been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and borrowings.
However, the Company is not required to repay any balance outstanding until the maturity date of November 4, 2018.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility agreement contains restrictive covenants including restrictions on the incurrence of
indebtedness, financial maintenance covenants, and restrictions on payments to affiliates and shareholders and also includes
events of default, representations and warranties.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receivables in
the United States (L&T Acquisition and Saks and certain of their respective subsidiaries).

The effective interest rate based on the average balance drawn and finance costs of the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility for fiscal
2015 and 2014 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis 311 389
Finance costs 15 14
Effective interest rate 4.7% 3.6%
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As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, details of the borrowing base availability on the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility
were as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Gross borrowing base availability 1,541 1,348
Drawings (464) (108)
Outstanding letters of credit (28) (19)
Borrowing base availability net of drawings and letters of credit 1,049 1,221

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility contains certain non-financial operating covenants. L&T Acquisition was in compliance
with all covenants as at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015.

In accordance with the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility, L&T Acquisition is limited in its ability to make distributions of earnings
or returns of capital to its parent.

Subsequent to January 30, 2016, both the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility were replaced
by the Global Revolving Credit Facility (note 27).

b) Long-term loans and borrowings

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, long-term loans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Senior Term Loan B — 826
U.S. Term Loan B 700 —
Yorkdale Mortgage — 48
Lord & Taylor Mortgage 349 318
Saks Mortgage 1,760 1,599
Other loans 10 10
2,819 2,801
Less: unamortized costs (83) (74)
Less: amounts due within one year @) 4
2,729 2,723

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:

2016 7
2017 348
2018 3
2019 3
2020 3
Thereafter 2,455

2,819

Senior Term Loan B

On November 4, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement for a U.S.$2.0 billion senior secured term loan facility (“Senior
Term Loan B”’) with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent.

Senior Term Loan B was scheduled to mature on November 4, 2020 and carried an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum.
The agreement was structured such that LIBOR was deemed to be not less than 1% per annum (“LIBOR Floor”). Senior Term
Loan B was subject to mandatory prepayments. The term loan was secured by a second priority security interest over all inventory
and accounts receivables, a first priority security interest over substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid U.S. $150 million of Senior Term Loan B (note 26). In connection with the repayment, $5
million of deferred financing costs were written off and $1 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were incurred (note
6).

On December 3,2014, HBCrepaid U.S. $1.2 billion of Senior Term Loan B using proceeds from the Saks Mortgage. In connection
with the repayment, $34 million of deferred financing costs were written off (note 6).

On July 9, 2015 and July 23, 2015, HBC repaid U.S.$150 million and U.S.$500 million, respectively, of Senior Term Loan B
using proceeds from the contribution of assets to joint ventures (note 12). In connection with the repayment, $18 million of
deferred financing fees were written off (note 6).

Junior Term Loan

Concurrently with obtaining the Senior Term Loan B, the Company obtained an incremental junior secured term loan facility
of U.S.$300 million (the “Junior Term Loan”). The Junior Term Loan was scheduled to mature on November 4, 2021 and had
an initial interest rate of LIBOR (with a LIBOR Floor) plus 7.25% per annum. The remaining credit terms of the Junior Term
Loan were substantially consistent with Senior Term Loan B with the exception that the Junior Term Loan was not subject to
Senior Term Loan B’s previously required quarterly principal repayments.

The Junior Term Loan was secured by a third priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receivable, a second
priority security interest over substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries.
Proceeds from the Junior Term Loan were used to finance the acquisition of Saks.

On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid the Junior Term Loan in full (note 26). In connection with the repayment of the Junior Term
Loan, $13 million of deferred financing costs were written off and $11 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were
incurred (note 6).

U.S. Term Loan B

On September 30, 2015, the Company entered into a U.S.$1,085 million senior secured term loan facility (“U.S. Term Loan B”)
with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent.

U.S. Term Loan B matures September 30, 2022 and carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum. The agreement is
structured such that LIBOR will be deemed to be not less than 1% per annum (“LIBOR Floor”). U.S. Term Loan B is subject
to mandatory prepayments. The term loan is secured by a second priority security interest over inventory and accounts receivables,
a first priority security interest over substantially all other assets of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (excluding real
estate subsidiaries) as well as a pledge of the shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company and certain of their subsidiaries.

On November 17, 2015, HBC repaid U.S. $585 million of U.S. Term Loan B using cash on hand and proceeds from the sale of
its equity investment in the HBS Joint Venture and other joint venture (note 12). In connection with the repayment, $32 million
of deferred financing costs were written off (note 6).

Yorkdale Mortgage

On May 22,2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Murray & Company Holdings Limited for a $50 million mortgage
(the “Yorkdale Mortgage”). The Yorkdale Mortgage matures on May 22, 2023, bears interest at 4.89% per annum over a twenty-
five year amortization schedule and is secured by a first mortgage of a leasehold interest of the Hudson’s Bay store at the Yorkdale
Shopping Centre in Toronto, Ontario. On December 1, 2014, Murray & Company Holdings Limited assigned the mortgage to
GMI Servicing Inc.

On November 25, 2015, as part of the YSS contribution, the Yorkdale Mortgage was assumed by an entity related to the RioCan-
HBCJV.

Lord & Taylor Mortgage

On September 7, 2012, LT 424 LLC (“LT 424”), which is an indirect subsidiary of L&T, entered into a U.S.$250 million
syndicated floating rate senior mortgage loan with an affiliate of CIBC World Markets Inc. as the administrative agent of the
syndicate of lenders, which matures on September 10, 2017 (the “Lord & Taylor Mortgage”).

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage is guaranteed by L&T. Interest is charged at a rate of LIBOR plus 3%. The mortgage had no
mandatory principal repayments during the first 3 years, with monthly amortization payments required during the final 2 years,
based upon a thirty year straight line amortization schedule with an interest rate of 7%. LT 424 has the ability to prepay the Lord
& Taylor Mortgage with a fee to the lenders of 1% (2% fee after the initial 2 years decreased to 1% after 3 years). After September
10, 2016, prepayments can be made without a fee. Any prepayments are applied to reduce the then remaining scheduled
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installments. As security for the Lord & Taylor Mortgage, LT 424 granted a first priority mortgage on the Fifth Avenue Lord &
Taylor property.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage contains representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants, reporting requirements
and events of default. As at January 30, 2016 and January 31,2015, the borrower, LT424, was in compliance with the covenants
contained in the Lord & Taylor Mortgage.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the floating portion
of the interest rate related to the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at 0.85%. The swap arrangements are being accounted for as a cash
flow hedge (note 17).

Saks Mortgage

On December 3, 2014, Saks Flagship Real Property LLC (“Saks Flagship”), an indirect subsidiary of Saks, obtained a U.S.
$1,250 million, twenty year mortgage on the ground portion of its Saks Fifth Avenue flagship store in New York City, located
at 611 Fifth Avenue (the “Saks Mortgage”) with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent.

The Saks Mortgage matures December 3, 2034, carries a fixed interest rate of 4.39% and requires interest only payments. The
mortgage is secured by a first mortgage lien on the fee interest in the property, together with all ground lease rents, profits and
revenue.

Net of associated fees and expenses, all proceeds from the Saks Mortgage were utilized to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2
billion of Senior Term Loan B on December 3, 2014.

The Saks Mortgage contains representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants, reporting requirements and events
of default. As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, the borrower, Saks Flagship, was in compliance with the covenants
contained in the Saks Mortgage.

NOTE 14. LEASES
Operating lease arrangements

The Company conducts a substantial part of its operations from leased stores in shopping and power centres, and also leases
warehouse facilities, administrative facilities and equipment.

Many of the Company’s store leases require equal monthly rent payments over the lease term. However, numerous store lease
agreements include rent holidays, rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions that require additional payments
based on a percentage of sales in excess of specified levels. Rent for renewal periods of the Company’s leases varies.

Rental expense related to operating leases charged to earnings in fiscal 2015 was $391 million (2014: $257 million).
Minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases

The future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:

2016 968
2017 989
2018 956
2019 916
2020 885
Thereafter 11,459
Total minimum lease payments 16,173

For those leases which have been assigned to Target Corporation or its affiliates (“Target”) and for which the Company remains
the lessee on the master lease agreement, HBC has guaranteed the commitment over the remaining term of the lease (note 24).
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Finance leases

The future required minimum gross rental payments under finance leases for property and equipment, and their net present
values as at January 30, 2016 are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Less than 1 year 64
Between 1 and 5 years 194
Thereafter 1,603
Total minimum lease payments 1,861
Less: imputed interest (1,336)
Total finance lease obligations 525
NOTE 15. PENSIONS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Aggregate information about the Company’s Canadian (“CDN”), U.S. and European pension and benefit plans are presented
below. The U.S. pension plans are sponsored by Saks for which there are no future benefit accruals for all remaining participants.
Both L&T and Saks sponsor defined contribution plans (401(k) retirement savings plans) which are discussed in the Defined
Contribution (“DC”) Pension Plans section below.

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets

2015 2014

CDN U.S. European CDN U.S.
Pension and Pension Pension Pension and Pension

(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefit Plans Plans Plans Benefit Plans Plans

Pension plan in surplus position 166 — — 149 —
Pension and benefit plans in deficit positions 107) (56) 475) (116) (46)

Less: current portion 3 1 — 3 1
(104) (55) (475) (113) (45)

Other long-term employee benefits liability (25 — (22) (31) —
Pension and employee benefits asset (liability) 37 (55) 497) 5 (45)

The current portion of the pension and employee benefits liability is included in other payables and accrued liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Employer contributions to defined benefit pension plans in fiscal 2016 will approximate $2 million.

Funding requirements for European Pension Plans vary by country. While Belgium has aminimum funding requirement, Germany
does not.
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Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

2015 2014
CDN U.S. European CDN us.

Pension and Pension Pension Pension and Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefit Plans’ Plans Plans Benefit Plans’ Plans
Fair value at beginning of year 1,264 151 — 1,213 135
Acquired through business combination — — 83 — —
Return on plan assets (excluding interest) — (C)) — 65 8
Interest income 18 4 — 103 4
Employer contributions 4 — — 4 —
Employee contributions 9 — 1 10 —
Administration costs 2) A3 — 3) 2)
Benefits paid 92) 14) Q) (128) (14)
Net foreign currency exchange — 14 2 — 20
Fair value at end of year 1,201 143 81 1,264 151
! Includes defined contribution plan assets of $498 million (January 31, 2015: $527 million).
Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligation

2015 2014
CDN U.S. European CDN U.S.

Pension and Pension Pension Pension and Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefit Plans® Plans Plans Benefit Plans’ Plans
Balance, beginning of year 1,231 197 — 1,176 166
Assumed through business combination — — 540 — —
Current service cost 17 — 3 17 —
Past service cost — — — 1 —
Settlements — — — (12) —
Employee contributions 9 — 1 10 —
Interest expense 17 5 4 101 5
Benefits paid 92) (14) 5) (128) (14)
Change in demographic assumptions — 3 — 2 4
Change in financial assumptions 39) (10) 8 72 12
Experience adjustments a) — 1 ®) 1
Net foreign currency exchange — 18 4 — 23
Balance, end of year 1,142 199 556 1,231 197

2 Includes defined contribution plan liabilities of $498 million (January 31, 2015: $527 million).

Cumulative Actuarial Gains (Losses)

The cumulative actuarial gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income for the Company’s plans are as follows:

2015 2014
CDN U.S. European CDN U.S.
Pension and Pension Pension Pension and Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefit Plans Plans Plans Benefit Plans Plans
Cumulative amount, beginning of year 10) ® — 9 1
Net actuarial gains (losses) recognized 40 ?2) 9 (D 9
Cumulative amount, end of year 30 (10) (&) (10) ()
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Pension and Benefit Plan Expense

Fiscal 2015 and 2014 pension and benefit plan expense is comprised of the following:

2015 2014
CDN U.S. European CDN US.
Pension and Pension Pension Pension and Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefit Plans Plans Plans Benefit Plans Plans
Current service cost 17 — 3 17 —
Past service cost — — — 1 —
Settlements — — — (12) —
Administration costs 2 — 3
Net expense recognized in SG&A 19 3 9
Interest income on plan assets (18) “) — (103) 4
Interest expense on plan obligations 17 5 101 5
Net (income) expense recognized in finance costs 6)) 1 2 1
Net expense recognized in net earnings 18 4 7 7 3
Changes in demographic assumptions — 3 — 2 4
Changes in financial assumptions 39 (10) 8 72 12
Experience adjustments (0] — 1 ®) 1
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) — 9 — (65) (8)
Net (income) expense recognized in other comprehensive
income 40) 2 9 1 9
Net (income) expense recognized in comprehensive income 22) 6 16 8 12

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Included in CDN Pension Plans’ current service cost above is a $12 million expense in fiscal 2015 (2014: $12 million) that

represents contributions made in connection with the defined contribution plans.

In fiscal 2015, Saks and L&T contributed $12 million (2014: $10 million) to their U.S. defined contribution plans.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

During fiscal 2015, the Company paid $7 million (2014: $6 million) related to its other long term employee benefits.

Actuarial Assumptions

HBC and its non-executive employees contribute in equal amounts to HBC’s defined contribution plans. The defined benefit
plans are funded by employee contributions, as a percentage of salary, and by HBC to support the actuarial based pension
benefits. The defined benefit plans provide benefits based on members’ earnings and service.

The Company’s pension and benefits obligation and expense are dependent on the assumptions used in calculating these amounts.
These assumptions include discount rate, rate of compensation increase and overall Canadian health care cost trend rate.
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2015 2014
CDN CDN
Pension and Pension and
Benefits Plans and U.S. Benefit Plans and U.S.
Other Long Term Pension European Pension  Other Long Term Pension
Benefits Plans Plans Benefits Plans
Defined benefit obligations, end of the fiscal
year:
Discount rate 3.20%-3.90% 3.60% 1.50% -2.53% 2.75%-3.40%  2.90%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% N/A N/A 3.00% N/A
Pensions-in-payment increase rate N/A N/A 1.50% N/A N/A
Net benefit expense for the fiscal year:
Discount rate 2.75% -3.40% 2.90% 2.20% -2.60% 3.60% -4.40%  3.80%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% N/A N/A 3.00% N/A
Health care trend rate:
Defined benefit obligations, end of the
fiscal year
Immediate 6.32% N/A N/A 6.43% N/A
Ultimate 4.50% N/A N/A 4.50% N/A
Net benefit expense for the fiscal year
Immediate 6.43% - 6.50% N/A N/A 6.04% N/A
Ultimate 4.50% N/A N/A 4.50% N/A
Life expectancy (years):
Life expectancy from age 65
Male 86.6 85.9 N/A 86.5 85.9
Female 89.0 87.6 N/A 89.0 87.5
Defined Benefit Obligation by Participant Status
2015 2014
CDN CDN
Pension and Pension and
Benefit Plans and U.S. Benefit Plans and U.S.
Other Long Term Pension European Pension  Other Long Term Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefits® Plans Plans Benefits® Plans
Active members 159 54 296 230 57
Vested deferred members 65 64 25 59 60
Retirees 456 81 235 459 80
Total 680 199 556 748 197

* Excludes plan liabilities of $498 million (January 31, 2015: $527 million) for defined contribution plan participants.
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Assets by Class and Level

Supplemental information regarding the assets of the Company’s pension plans by class and level according to the fair value
hierarchy (see note 17) is presented below:

2015 2014
(millions of Canadian dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CDN Pension Plans
Short-term and cash 37 1 — 48 51 11 — 62
Canadian equities 56 — — 56 62 — — 62
Foreign equities 60 — — 60 80 — — 80
Real estate equities — — 11 11 — — 15 15
Private equity funds and other — — 219 219 — — 185 185
Pooled funds — 807 — 807 — 860 — 860
153 818 230 1,201 193 871 200 1,264
U.S. Pension Plans
Pooled funds — 143 — 143 — 151 — 151
European Pension Plans
Fixed interest securities 27 — — 27 — — — —
Assets held by insurance company — 54 — 54 — — — —
27 54 — 81 — — — —

Sensitivity analysis

The following table provides a sensitivity analysis of changes in the health care trend rate, discount rate, rate of compensation
and life expectancy assumptions. The impacts of the sensitivity analysis are shown as increases (decreases) to defined benefit
obligations. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of key assumptions simultaneously. Changes in one factor
may result in changes in another, which could amplify or reduce the impact of such assumptions.

2015 2014
CDN CDN
Pension and Pension and
Benefit Plans and U.S. Benefit Plans and U.S.
Other Long Term  Pension  European Pension  Other Long Term  Pension

(millions of Canadian dollars) Benefits Plans Plans Benefits Plans
Health care trend rate

Effect of 1% increase 3 N/A N/A 4 N/A

Effect of 1% decrease ?2) N/A N/A 2) N/A
Discount rate

Effect of 1% increase (68) (14) (78) (75) (13)

Effect of 1% decrease 82 15 100 94 15
Rate of compensation/inflation

Effect of 1% increase 5 N/A N/A 5 N/A

Effect of 1% decrease 3) N/A N/A @) N/A
Pensions-in payment increase rate

Effect of 0.25% increase N/A N/A 15 N/A N/A

Effect of 0.25% decrease N/A N/A 15) N/A N/A
Life expectancy

Effect of 1 year increase 20 4 N/A 23 4

Effect of 1 year decrease (21) 4 N/A (23) @)
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Supplementary executive retirement plan

The Company guarantees an annual pension to certain executives in the supplementary executive retirement plan (the “SERP”)
which is included in the CDN Pension Plans defined benefit obligation presented earlier. The Company’s guaranteed obligation
pursuant to the SERP for service up to November 10, 2005 is secured by a trust fund for certain members. Total assets of the
trust fund as at January 30, 2016 were $66 million (January 31, 2015: $71 million). The obligation in respect of service after
November 10, 2005 is not secured.

Effective September 30, 2015, benefits under the existing defined benefit SERP ceased and members began accruing benefits
under the DC SERP.

In addition, the Company has a U.S. DC SERP which is offered to certain executives.

NOTE 16. OTHER LIABILITIES
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Deferred landlord incentives 745 356
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback transaction 232 242
Operating lease intangible liability 123 —
Deferred proceeds from lease terminations 65 49
Income taxes payable 50 8
Financial liabilities 37 70
Other liabilities 115 98
1,367 823
Current 126 86
Non-current 1,241 737
1,367 823

Included in other liabilities is an interest-free advance of $38 million (2014:
million with a final balloon payment on June 17, 2017.
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NOTE 17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides a comparison of carrying and fair values of certain financial instruments as at January 30, 2016
and January 31, 2015:

2015 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(millions of Canadian dollars) Value Value Value Value
Classified as fair value through profit or loss
Embedded foreign currency derivatives'” — — (1 (1
Warrants® (31) (31) (68) (68)
Financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts® 17 17 22 22
Interest rate swaps(l) a a (N (N
Classified as other liability
HBC Revolving Credit Facility — — (159) (159)
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility (464) (464) (108) (108)
Senior Term Loan B — — (826) (830)
U.S. Term Loan B (700) (699) — —
Yorkdale Mortgage — — (48) (48)
Lord & Taylor Mortgage (349) (349) (318) (318)
Saks Mortgage (1,760) (1,760) (1,599) (1,599)
Other liability (note 16) 38) 38) (65) (63)
[€))] Included in other liabilities — current
2) Included in other liabilities — non-current
3) Included in other current assets

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, the fair value of all other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their
carrying value due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility, U.S. Revolving Credit Facility, Senior Term Loan B, U.S. Term Loan B,
Yorkdale Mortgage, Lord & Taylor Mortgage and Saks Mortgage are valued using a discounted cash flow model, taking into
consideration the fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed interest rate spreads on similar debt
available in the market at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts and warrants reflect the estimated amounts the Company
would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the reporting date, and are determined using valuation techniques based
on observable market input data. The fair values of embedded foreign currency derivatives reflect the estimated amounts the
Company would receive or pay to settle forward foreign exchange contracts with similar terms using valuation techniques using
observable market input data.

The change in fair value of financial instruments designated as fair value through profit or loss that has been recognized in net
earnings for the year is income of $37 million (2014: cost of $44 million) relating to warrants.

The fair value of financial instruments are classified and measured according to the following fair value hierarchy:
e Level I: fair value measurement using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2: fair value measurement using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or
indirectly observable; and

*  Level 3: fair value measurement using unobservable inputs in which little or no market activity exists, therefore, requiring
an entity to develop its own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing.

All financial instruments measured at fair value are valued using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability and are therefore categorized as Level 2 according to the fair value hierarchy.
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Fair values of Level 2 financial instruments are determined using valuation models which require the use of inputs. Those inputs
are based on external, readily observable market inputs, including factors such as interest rate yield curves, currency rates and
price and rate volatilities, as applicable. Interest rate derivatives are valued using a discounted cash flow model based on market
interest rate curves at the period-end date. The forward foreign currency contracts and embedded derivatives are valued based
on the difference between contract rates and spot rates at the period-end date, discounted to reflect the time-value of money.
The interest rate swaps are valued based on the difference between the exercise rate and the spot rate, volatility of exchange
rates and market interest rates at the period-end date. Warrants are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model utilizing
inputs including maturity, dividend yield, share price and volatility.

Capital management

The Company includes the following items in its definition of capital:

(restated —
note 9)

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Short-term loans and borrowings 451 246
Finance leases - current portion 25 19
Long-term loans and borrowings 2,729 2,723
Finance leases - non-current portion 500 136
Share capital 1,420 1,420
Contributed surplus 86 60
Retained earnings 1,029 678
6,240 5,282

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain ample liquidity to support the operations of the Company,
prudently utilize long-term debt to finance the Company’s long-term assets and investments and provide adequate returns to its
shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure, and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions and its
strategic objectives. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new equity interests, incur additional debt or sell assets to reduce debt.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk from its use of financial instruments. The following is a description
of those risks and how the exposures are managed:

a) Credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises if a debtor or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations,
and arises principally from short-term deposits, receivables, and derivative instruments that are in a gain position. Credit risk is
mitigated by various techniques including selecting counterparties based on acceptable credit ratings and minimizing the
concentration of positions with individual counterparties. There is no concentration of accounts receivable balances. The
Company does not consider its exposure to credit risk to be material.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual and projected cash flows, taking into account the seasonality of the
Company’s working capital needs, sales and earnings. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility, the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility
and the bank overdraft facilities are used to maintain liquidity.
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Undiscounted contractual maturities (including interest) of the Company’s financial liabilities are as follows:

Loans and Other

(millions of Canadian dollars) Derivatives borrowings liabilities Total
Fiscal year:
2016 1 607 27 635
2017 — 477 11 488
2018 31 115 — 146
2019 — 115 — 115
2020 — 115 — 115
Thereafter — 3,589 — 3,589

32 5,018 38 5,088

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility matures December 17, 2019 and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility matures November 4,
2018. These amounts have been reflected as due in fiscal 2016 in the table above to be consistent with presentation in the
consolidated balance sheets.

c) Market risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk:
i Foreign currency risk

HBC is a Canadian dollar functional currency entity that purchases a significant amount of inventory for its Canadian operations
in U.S. dollars. HBC enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the foreign exchange risk with respect to these
U.S. dollar denominated purchases. The forward foreign exchange contracts are designated and accounted for as a cash flow
hedge of U.S. dollar purchases.

In accordance with the Company’s risk management policy, HBC may hedge up to 100% of all foreign currency transactions
and economic exposures that are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, or deemed as firm commitments (e.g. purchase
orders that have been issued for goods and services in foreign currency). It may further hedge up to 70% of forecasted transactions
(anticipated transactions for which there are no firm commitments). HBC’s net U.S. dollar exposure is determined based on
entities with the Canadian dollar as their functional currency.

HBC’s net U.S. dollar exposure as at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, excluding its investment in L&T Acquisition, is
as follows:

U.S. Dollar Exposure (millions of U.S. dollars) 2015 2014
Trade payables (112) (60)
HBC Revolving Credit Facility — (125)
Senior Term Loan B — (650)
U.S. Term Loan B (500) —
Outstanding purchase orders (20) (22)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 266 176
U.S. dollar denominated inter-company receivables 255 886
Total exposure 1) 205

For fiscal 2015, HBC recorded a loss of $15 million (2014: gain of $11 million) relating to the translation or settlement of foreign
currency denominated monetary items.

The estimated gains and losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges expected to be reclassified to earnings within the
next twelve months is a net gain of $7 million.

The Company’s net investments in L& T Acquisition and the Kaufhof Operating Business, whose functional currencies are U.S.
dollar and Euros, respectively, present foreign exchange risks to HBC. The Company used a net investment hedge to mitigate
a portion of the U.S. dollar foreign exchange risk by originally designating U.S.$800 million of Senior Term Loan B as a hedge
of the first U.S.$800 million of net assets of L& T Acquisition. In fiscal 2014, the hedge was reduced to U.S.$350 million upon
pay down of certain debt (note 26) and, further, to nil upon pay down of Senior Term Loan B (note 13). Senior Term Loan B
was repaid in full during fiscal 2015 using proceeds from the joint ventures, which resulted in the disposal of the hedging
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instrument previously designated as part of the net investment hedge. Foreign currency translation of the net earnings (loss) of
L&T Acquisition and the Kaufhof Operating Business impacts consolidated net earnings. Foreign currency translation of HBC’s
investments in L&T Acquisition and the Kaufhof Operating Business impacts other comprehensive income.

In connection with the Kaufhof Acquisition, the Company had previously entered into 2 separate forward foreign exchange
contracts (the “FX forward contracts”) during the thirteen weeks ended August 1, 2015 that resulted in the Company eliminating
its foreign currency exposure on a portion of the proceeds that were to be used in the Kaufhof Acquisition. Each FX forward
contract was designated as a hedge of the exposure to changes in USD/EUR related to the then planned acquisition of Kauthof
denominated in Euro. Each hedging relationship was assessed to be highly effective throughout the designated hedging period
which ended on September 30, 2015, the Kaufhof Acquisition Date.

The FX forward contracts generated a loss of $6 million (and $2 million of deferred taxes) which, prior to the close of the
transaction, was included in other comprehensive (loss) income and represents the mark-to-market adjustment to fair value from
the date of execution of each FX forward contracts to September 30, 2015. Upon close of the Kaufhof Acquisition, this amount
was included as part of the purchase price allocation of the Kauthof Property Business acquired by the HBS Joint Venture.

On an annualized basis, after considering the Company’s hedge of its exposure to foreign currency risk, a strengthening of the
U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar by 1% at January 30, 2016 would have impacted net earnings for fiscal 2015 by nil (2014:
nil).

On an annualized basis, a strengthening of the Euro against the Canadian and U.S. dollar by 1% at January 30, 2016 would have
impacted net earnings for fiscal 2015 by $6 million.

ii. Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During fiscal 2015 and 2014, the Company’s variable rate borrowings were
denominated in both U.S. and Canadian dollars.

Cash flow interest rate risk is mitigated by the use of interest rate swaps.

The Senior Term Loan B, U.S. Term Loan B, U.S. Revolving Credit Facility and the Lord & Taylor Mortgage all have a variable
component to interest based on LIBOR. There is exposure to interest rate cash flow risk if variable rates rise.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the interest rate related
to the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at 3.85%. The interest rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge. The net interest income
received under this arrangement is included in finance costs. The arrangements have an effective date of September 7, 2012
and a maturity date of September 10, 2017.

An increase of 100 basis points in LIBOR over the past year would have decreased net earnings for fiscal 2015 by $6 million
(2014: $5 million). This sensitivity analysis does not include the impact that an increase of 1% in LIBOR rates would have on
the fair value of the interest rate swaps.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility described in note 13 bears interest at a variable rate based on the selected interest rate charge
option plus a fixed spread. HBC is exposed to interest rate cash flow risk as the variable rate rises.

On an annualized basis, an increase of 100 basis points in the selected interest rate over the past year would have decreased net
earnings for fiscal year 2015 by $1 million (2014: nil).

iii. Other risks

Certain features of the warrants issued in connection with the acquisition of Saks result in the warrants being presented as
derivative financial liabilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets.

In relation to the 1.5 million warrants issued concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement (‘“Merger Agreement
Warrants”) to H.S. Investment L.P. (“HSILP”), an entity affiliated with Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board, during fiscal
2015, the Company recognized finance related income of $8 million (2014: cost of $10 million) representing mark to market
adjustments to fair value as at January 30, 2016. As at January 30, 2016, the fair value of the Merger Agreement Warrants was
$7 million (January 31, 2015: $15 million).

In relation to the 5.25 million warrants issued to HSILP and West Face Long Term Opportunities Global Master L.P. (“WF
Fund”), a fund advised by West Face Capital Inc., on November 4, 2013 upon closing of the acquisition of Saks (“Acquisition
Warrants”), the Company recognized finance related income during fiscal 2015 of $29 million (2014: cost of $34 million)
representing mark to market adjustments to fair value as at January 30, 2016. As at January 30, 2016, the fair value of the
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Acquisition Warrants was $24 million (January 31, 2015: $53 million). The Company will continue to record mark to market
gains and losses on the warrants until the earlier of the date of exercise or expiry.

The fair values of the warrants were determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the assumptions outlined
in the table below:

Share price — January 30, 2016 $17.30
Share price — January 31, 2015 $23.42

Jan 30,2016  Jan 31, 2015

Expected volatility 42% 45%

Dividend yield 1.16% 0.85%

Risk free interest rate 0.49% 0.5%

Expected life — Merger Agreement Warrants 2.5years 3.5 years

Expected life — Acquisition Warrants 2.8 years 3.8 years
NOTE 18. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

Option plan

The Company grants options to certain employees that allow each participant to exercise their share options to either subscribe
for common shares or receive a cash payment at the option of the Company. The cash payment is calculated as the difference
between the market price of the common shares as at the exercise date and the exercise price of the share option. The exercise
price of each option equals the weighted average of the share price for the 5 day period preceding the date of grant. The Company
uses the fair value method to account for share options issued which is established on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model.

Senior executive options vest 50% in each of the fourth and fifth year following the grant date. The options have 7 to 10 year
terms and will be forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-five days
in the event of a voluntary resignation or termination without cause. Share options are subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if
the grantee’s employment is terminated. Of the senior executive options outstanding, 1,623,907 (2014: 1,864,437) shares have
a performance condition and vest only if the weighted average closing share price for the twenty trading day period ending on
the vesting date is at least 50% higher than the offering price of the company’s IPO or if such performance condition is met after
the vesting date but prior to the expiry date.

Senior executive option transactions were as follows:

2015 2014
Weighted average Weighted average
Number of options exercise price Number of options exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year 8,945,597 $18.07 6,562,603 $17.13
Granted 3,488,062 $25.64 3,264,118 $19.70
Forfeited (1,776,723) $19.11 (881,124) $17.14
Outstanding at end of year 10,656,936 $20.37 8,945,597 $18.07

Share options exercisable at end of year — — — —

During fiscal 20135, the grant date fair value of senior executive options granted was $22 million (2014: $16 million).
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The following table summarizes information about the senior executive share options outstanding and exercisable as at January
30, 2016:

Weighted average

Number of co;fll'gz:ﬁlal:glife Weighted average = Number exercisable = Weighted average
Range of exercise prices outstanding options (years) exercise price at Jan 30, 2016 exercise price
$16.00 to $16.49 382,256 7.0 $16.28 — —
$17.00 to $17.49 5,278,758 6.7 $17.01 — —
$17.50 to $17.99 937,610 53 $17.61 — —
$23.50 to $23.99 2,172,995 6.3 $23.73 — —
$24.00 to $24.49 100,000 6.7 $24.22 — —
$28.00 to $28.49 1,785,317 6.4 $28.34 — —
Total 10,656,936 6.5 $20.37 — —

Options issued to other management have a vesting period of 3 years and have a 7 year term with no performance condition.
The options are forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-five days in
the event of a voluntary resignation or termination without cause. Share options are subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the
grantee’s employment is terminated.

Other management option transactions were as follows:

2015 2014
Weighted average Weighted average
Number of options exercise price Number of options exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,729,400 $17.35 969,600 $17.03
Granted 516,800 $27.13 1,042,400 $17.65
Forfeited (402,600) $19.09 (282,600) $17.33
Outstanding at end of year 1,843,600 $19.72 1,729,400 $17.35
Share options exercisable at end of year 563,600 $17.00 — —

During fiscal 2015, the grant date fair value of other management options granted was $3 million (2014: $5 million).

The following table summarizes information about the other management share options outstanding and exercisable as at January
30, 2016:

‘Weighted average
remaining
Number of contractual life Weighted average  Number exercisable ~ Weighted average
Range of exercise prices outstanding options (years) exercise price at Jan 30, 2016 exercise price
$16.00 to $16.49 16,000 7.0 $16.28 — —
$17.00 to $17.49 780,400 4.1 $17.04 563,600 $17.00
$17.50 to $17.99 597,600 53 $17.61 — —
$23.50 to $23.99 105,600 6.6 $23.86 — —
$28.00 to $28.49 344,000 6.4 $28.34 — —
Total 1,843,600 5.1 $19.72 563,600 $17.00

The assumptions used to measure the fair value at the grant date of senior executive and other management options granted
during fiscal 2015 and 2014 under the Black-Scholes option pricing model at the grant date were as follows:

2015 2014
Expected dividend yield 0.7% to 1.2% 0.9% to 1.2%
Expected share price volatility 28.0% to 31.2% 24.1% to 35.8%
Risk-free interest rate 0.4% to0 0.8% 1.0% to 1.6%
Expected life of options (years) 5.0 5.0t0 6.5
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Phantom share plan

The Company grants phantom shares to certain employees. During fiscal 2015, the Company granted 109,250 (2014: 183,150)
phantom share units with a grant date fair value of $3 million (2014: $3 million). Phantom share units have a vesting period of
3 years that will be settled in common shares of the Company or in cash at the Company’s option. As at January 30, 2016,
172,100 (January 31, 2015: 271,125) phantom share units were outstanding.

Restricted share units

The Company grants restricted share units (“RSUs”) to certain employees. During fiscal 2015, the Company granted 112,874
(2014: 272,252) RSUs with a term of 3 years, all of which are expected to vest. The grant date fair value of the RSUs was $3
million (2014: $5 million) and was determined based on the Company’s share price at the date of the grant. RSUs were granted
under similar terms and conditions as those granted concurrently with the IPO. As at January 30, 2016, 299,103 (January 31,
2015: 414,240) RSUs were outstanding.

Performance share units

Performance share unit (“PSUs”) transactions were as follows:

2015 2014
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,662,755 660,162
Granted 625,998 1,158,187
Forfeited (412,942) (155,594)
Outstanding at end of year 1,875,811 1,662,755
Weighted average contract life (years) remaining at end of year 1.4 2.0

During fiscal 2015, the grant date fair value of the PSUs granted was $18 million (2014: $20 million), of which $13 million
(2014: $15 million) is expected to vest. The fair value was determined based on the Company’s share price at the date of the
grant and adjusted to reflect non-entitlement of dividends to PSUs. The PSUs vest 3 years from the date of grant at the end of
that calendar year and are forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-
five days in the event of a voluntary resignation or termination without cause, subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the grantee’s
employment is terminated.

Deferred share units

The Company grants deferred share units (“DSUs”) to members of the Board of Directors. During fiscal 2015, the Company
granted 60,951 units (2014: 52,240) with a grant date fair value of $2 million (2014: $1 million). The fair value was determined
based on the Company’s share price at the date of grant. No Director will have the right to receive any benefit under the DSU
plan until the participant ceases to be a Director. As at January 30, 2016, 171,172 (January 31, 2015: 110,221) DSUs were
outstanding.

Performance restricted share units

On June 1, 2015 and December 14, 2015, the Company granted 1,470,724 and 140,609 performance restricted share units
(“PRSUSs”), respectively, to senior executives with a grant date fair value of $15 million and $423 thousand, respectively. In
addition, during fiscal 2015, the Company granted 10,632 PRSUs as dividend equivalents. The PRSUs vest if the Company’s
shares achieve at least a 10% Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) over the 5 year performance period from the date of grant and
the senior executive is still employed at the end of a service period of 7 years. The TSR is calculated using the sixty-day trading
day volume-weighted average stock price immediately prior to the beginning and ending of the 5 year performance period. If
this increase in TSR is not met, the PRSUs lapse without vesting. If this increase in TSR is met, but the Company is considered
to have materially over-performed or under-performed, which is defined as ranking within the top 25% or bottom 50% of the
TSR of peer companies (“Peer Group”) in both Canada and the United States, respectively, then at the discretion of the Company,
the number of PRSUs which vest can be adjusted upward by up to 25% (in the cases of over performance relative to the Company’s
Peer Group) or adjusted downward by up to 75% (in the cases of under-performance relative to the Company’s Peer Group).
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The fair value at grant date is estimated based on a risk-neutral Monte Carlo simulation model taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the PRSUs were granted and using the following assumptions:

June 1, 2015 Dec 14, 2015
Sixty-day volume-weighted average price at the performance period commencement date $26.85 $26.85
Share price return volatility 26.4% 31.3%
Volatility range of Peer Group (Canada) 17% - 25% 17% - 25%
Volatility range of Peer Group (United States) 23% -53% 24% - 55%
Exchange rate volatility (U.S. to Canadian) 5.64% 6.10%
Risk-free interest rate (Canada) 1.39% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate (United States) 1.71% 1.21%

Share based compensation expense

Total share based compensation expense for fiscal 2015 and 2014 is summarized as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Share options 15 11
PSUs 9 2
RSUs 3 2
Other share based compensation 4 2

31 17

(1) Includes phantom shares, DSUs and PRSUs.

During fiscal 2015, $5 million of forfeited share based compensation were settled.
NOTE 19. SHARE CAPITAL

As at January 30, 2016 the authorized shares of HBC consist of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number
of preferred shares issuable in series.

The holders of common shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the shareholders.

Common Shares

The common shares issued and outstanding is as follows:

Number Share Capital
(millions of Canadian dollars, except shares) of Shares 3
Issued and outstanding as at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015 182,100,001 1,420

During the year ended January 30, 2016, the Company declared and paid dividends to the holders of the common shares totaling
$36 million (2014: $36 million).

Preferred Shares

The preferred shares are issuable at any time and from time to time in one or more series. The Board of Directors are authorized
to fix before issue the number of, the consideration per share of, the designation of, and the provisions attaching to, the preferred
shares of each series, which may include voting rights. The preferred shares of each series will rank on parity with the preferred
shares of every other series and will be entitled to preference over the common shares and any other shares ranking junior to
the preferred shares with respect to payment of dividends and distribution of any property or assets in the event of the Company’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, whether voluntary or involuntary.

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, there were no preferred shares issued and outstanding.
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Warrants

As at January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015, the 6.75 million warrants issued to HSILP and WF Fund as consideration for the
equity commitments are outstanding. The warrants are exercisable into common shares of the Company at an exercise price of
$17.00 per warrant which in certain circumstances is subject to adjustment. The warrants expire on November 4, 2018.

NOTE 20. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Net earnings per common share and weighted average common shares outstanding are calculated as follows:

(restated -
note 9)
(millions of Canadian dollars or shares except per share amounts) 2015 2014
Net earnings for basic earnings per share 387 233
Impact of options and warrants 37 —
Net earnings for diluted earnings per share 350 233
Weighted average common shares outstanding 182 182
Dilutive effect of options and warrants 4 1
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 186 183
Earnings per common share
Basic 2.13 1.28
Diluted 1.88 1.27

Excluded from the computation of diluted net earnings per common share were 3,344,861 (2014: 7,321,079) potentially dilutive
instruments, as they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between HBC and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Details of transactions with other related parties are disclosed below.

On May 6, 2011, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a 2 year lease with SP 35 L.P. (the “Landlord”) for approximately
31,000 square feet in Shrewsbury, NJ. The lease was amended on January 17, 2013 to include 3 renewal options. The first 2
renewal options are for terms of 2 and 3 years at an annual cost of U.S.$440 thousand. The third renewal option is for a term
of 5 years at an annual cost of U.S.$484 thousand. The first and second renewal options were exercised. Amounts charged to
the Company under the rental arrangement for fiscal 2015 were U.S.$440 thousand (2014: U.S.$440 thousand). The Landlord
is an affiliate of National Realty & Development Corp. (“NRDC”). Richard and Robert Baker, the principals of NRDC, are
Directors of the Company.

On February 25,2014, the Company closed its agreement to sell its downtown Toronto flagship retail complex and the Simpson’s
Tower to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited, an affiliate of HSILP, for a purchase price of $650 million
(note 26). 2380162 Ontario Limited, a subsidiary of Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan and successor in interest to HSILP, is a
shareholder of the Company.

On May 18, 2015, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a 10 year lease with Mack Properties Co. No. 6 LLC (“Mack
Properties”) for approximately 35,000 square feet in Paramus, NJ. The lease has 2 renewal options for terms of 10 and 5 years,
respectively. The rent commencement date was November 19, 2015 and amounts charged to the Company under the rental
arrangement for the period ended January 30, 2016 were U.S.$175 thousand. Mack Properties is owned by William Mack, a
Director of the Company.

As at January 30, 2016, the Company has an outstanding receivable in the amount of $269 thousand (2014: $314 thousand) due
from Hudson’s Bay Trading Company, LP, a shareholder of the Company, with respect to the reimbursement of expenses for
services provided by HBC on their behalf. Subsequent to the end of the year, the Company received payment in full.

HBC has entered into vendor agreements with two related companies that are affiliated with Earl Rotman, a Director of the
Company. The agreements relate to menswear and womenswear sold in Saks and DSG (note 25). During fiscal 2015, HBC
purchased approximately $2 million of goods from these companies, and has committed to ordering approximately $2 million
for fiscal 2016.
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In connection with the closing of its agreements to sell and leaseback various U.S. properties to the HBS Joint Venture, HBC
paid for certain cash reserves and financing and operating expenses on behalf of the HBS Joint Venture for which the Company
received a promissory note in the amount of $8 million. The promissory note matures on July 22, 2016 and carries an interest
rate of 5% per annum. As at January 30, 2016, the promissory note had an outstanding balance of $4 million and was included
in trade and other receivables.

The Company entered into management agreements with the joint ventures upon their closing. Pursuant to the management
agreements, HBC is reimbursed for expenses relating to advisory and administrative services it provides to the RioCan-HBC
JV and the HBS Joint Venture. Reimbursement related to expenses for fiscal 2015 were $241 thousand.

As part of the acquisition of the Kaufhof Operating Business, the Company assumed a $22 million liability due to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the HBS Joint Venture. The liability relates to 2 properties the Company controls as a result of the acquisition.
In addition, the Company acquired options to purchase these properties that when exercised, would relieve this liability. This
liability has been included in other liabilities.

During fiscal 2015, the Company incurred rent expense of $226 million related to both the RioCan-HBC JV and the HBS Joint
Venture. As at January 30, 2016, other current assets included prepaid rent to the HBS Joint Venture of $13 million.

The Company has an outstanding receivable in the amount of $46 million, as at January 30, 2016, due from the HBS Joint
Venture with respect to transactions carried out on behalf of the Company.

All of the above amounts have been recorded at the exchange value of the transaction.
NOTE 22. COMPENSATION

The remuneration of key management personnel for fiscal 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Short-term benefits 23 10
Post-employment benefits 2 1
Other long-term benefits 3 10
Share based compensation 13 8

41 29

The compensation noted in the above table forms part of the total employee benefits expense recorded by the Company in fiscal
2015 totaling $2,350 million (2014: $1,681 million).

NOTE 23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of January 30, 2016, the Company is involved in and potentially subject to various claims by third parties arising out of the
normal course and conduct of its business. Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently
considers the Company’s exposure to such claims and litigation, tax assessments and reassessments, to the extent not covered
by the Company’s insurance policies or otherwise provided for, not to be material to the consolidated financial statements, but
may have a material impact in future periods.

NOTE 24. GUARANTEES

As part of normal operations, the Company regularly reviews its real estate portfolio and store locations. Based on the reviews
conducted in prior years, the Company has closed certain store premises that it deemed to be non-strategic. Where these premises
were leased, when possible, the Company assigned its leases to other retail operators, but remained obligated to the landlord on
those leases as the original tenant thereunder despite the assignment. If the assignee were to default on the lease agreement, the
Company would remain obligated to the landlord for payment of amounts due under the lease. The terms of these assigned leases
can extend up to the year 2024. As at January 30, 2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $94 million (January
31, 2015: $154 million), of which $68 million (January 31, 2015: $113 million) relates to leases assigned to Target, in addition
to other lease related expenses, such as property taxes and common area maintenance. The Company has a full, unconditional
and continuing guarantee and indemnity from the ultimate parent of Target, regarding all ongoing obligations related to the store
leases acquired by Target (or its affiliates), which include the assumption of all obligations and liabilities of Zellers arising under
these leases after closing of such sale. On March 6, 2015, Target Canada’s affiliates surrendered eleven leases (which Zellers
previously assigned to Target, or its affiliates) to the applicable landlords in connection with Target Canada affiliates’ proceedings
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act. In connection with such surrender of leases, the applicable landlords released
certain parties, including HBC, Zellers and their respective predecessors, from all claims arising out of or relating to, among
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other things, such leases. The Company’s obligation would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and their
obligations to the Company to comply with the assigned leases. Potential liabilities related to these guarantees may be subject
to certain defenses by the Company. The Company does not expect to make any significant payments with respect to these lease
obligations and believes that the risk of significant loss is low.

In connection with the sale of leasehold interests to Target, the Company has indemnified Target up to a maximum of $1,825
million in respect of any damages arising from any failure to comply with any representation or warranty under the transaction
agreement to be true, any failure of the Company to fulfill any of its obligations under the agreement, the use of any of the leased
properties prior to transfer to Target, environmental liabilities associated with any of the leased properties, and any liabilities
associated with the leased properties not assumed by Target.

From time to time, Saks has issued guarantees to landlords under leases of stores operated by its subsidiaries. Certain of these
stores were sold in connection with the sale of the Saks Department Store Group to Belk, Inc. in 2005 and the sale of the Northern
Department Store Group to The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc. in 2006. If the purchasers fail to perform certain obligations under the
leases guaranteed, the Company could have obligations to landlords under such guarantees. The terms of these guaranteed leases
can extend up to the year 2024. As of January 30, 2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $98 million (January
31,2015: $103 million). Based on the information currently available, the Company does not believe that its potential obligations
under these lease guarantees would be material.

In 2008, the Company assigned nine leases to Les Ailes de la Mode, Inc. (“Les Ailes”) and obtained a full, unconditional and
continuing guarantee and indemnity for the obligations thereunder from its related company, International Clothiers Inc. (“ICI”).
As of January 30, 2016, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $29 million. In December 2015, Les Ailes filed a
Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal under section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act. Subsequent to year end, on
March 23, 2016, ICI advised us that it was filing a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal under section 50.4 of the Bankruptcy
and Insolvency Act. The Company currently believes that the maximum claim against it with respect to these leases is
approximately $16 million.

Potential liabilities related to these lease guarantees may be subject to certain defences by the Company. The Company’s
obligations under the assigned leases would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and their obligations to the
Company to comply with the assigned leases.

In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into agreements pursuant to which the Company provides
indemnification commitments to counterparties. These indemnification commitments require the Company to compensate
counterparties for costs incurred as a result of breaches of representations or warranties, changes in laws or regulations or as a
result of litigation claims that may be suffered by the counterparty as a result of the transaction. The Company also has director
and officer indemnification agreements. The terms of the indemnification commitments will vary based on the contract. Given
the nature of these indemnification commitments, the Company is unable to estimate the maximum potential liability but does
not expect to make any significant payments with respect to these commitments.

NOTE 25. SEGMENTED REPORTING

The Company has four operating segments (the Department Stores Group (“DSG”) which includes Hudson’s Bay, Lord &
Taylor, Find @ Lord & Taylor and Home Outfitters; Saks Fifth Avenue; OFF 5TH; and the Kaufhof Banners) which are aggregated
into one reportable segment, Department Stores, as they have similar economic characteristics, products and services and
customers. The Department Stores segment earns revenue from the sale of fashion apparel, accessories, cosmetics and home
products to customers in a similar target market, is managed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker and supported by an
integrated shared services function.

The following summarizes retail sales, operating income, non-current assets and total assets by geographic area:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Retail sales
Canada 2,957 2,810
United States 6,336 5,359
Europe 1,869 —
11,162 8,169
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(restated -

note 9)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Operating income
Canada 148 413
United States 512 60
Europe 22 —
682 473
(restated —
note 9)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2015 2014
Non-current assets®”
Canada 806 666
United States 4,580 5,268
Europe 1,558 —
6,944 5,934
Total assets
Canada 2,189 1,983
United States 7,764 7,139
Europe 2,696 —
12,649 9,122
1) Excludes deferred tax assets, pensions and employee benefits and investments in joint ventures
NOTE 26. SALE AND LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

On February 25, 2014, the Company sold its downtown Toronto flagship retail complex and the Simpson’s Tower located at
401 Bay Street to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited for a purchase price of $650 million. The Company
has leased the entire retail and office complex back for abase term of twenty-five years with renewal options of up to approximately
twenty-five years. Proceeds of the transaction were used to retire in entirety the Junior Term Loan, which bore interest at a rate
0f 8.25%, permanently pay down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term Loan B, which bore interest at a rate of 4.75% and reduce
the outstanding balance of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

The total gain on the sale and leaseback transaction was $560 million, $308 million of which was recognized immediately in
the consolidated statements of earnings. The remaining $252 million of the gain was deferred and is being amortized over the
term of the lease as a reduction in rent expense. The deferred gain is included in non-current other liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets.

NOTE 27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 1, 2016, the Company successfully completed the acquisition of Gilt Groupe Holdings Inc. (“Gilt”) for U.S.$250
million in cash, excluding debt, subject to customary adjustments. With this acquisition (“Gilt Acquisition”), the Company has
added an online shopping destination, which offers its members special access to fashion merchandise and experiences. This
transaction reflects the Company’s ongoing focus on advancing its all-channel model, while continuing to grow its off-price
business through the integration of Gilt with Saks OFF 5TH locations. The Company does not have enough information to
complete the purchase price accounting as at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

On February 5,2016, HBC entered into a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility (“Global Revolving Credit Facility”)
with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent and collateral agent replacing the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and
the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility existing at January 30, 2016. The Global Revolving Credit Facility of U.S. $1.9 billion has
a maturity date of February 5, 2021 with key terms that are consistent with the credit facilities existing at January 30, 2016.

On March 21, 2016, HBC’s Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.05 per common share, payable on April 15, 2016 to
shareholders of record as of March 31, 2016.

On March 30, 2016, the Company announced that it sold a further portion of its investment in the HBS Joint Venture and other
joint venture to Madison International Realty for total proceeds of U.S.$50 million, reducing HBC’s ownership interest to
approximately 65%. Madison International Realty previously invested U.S.$150 million as part of the Company’s sale of a
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portion of the same investment in the HBS Joint Venture and other joint venture for proceeds of U.S.$533 million on November
17, 2015. Proceeds from the sale were used to pay down the Global Revolving Credit Facility. As a result of the transaction,
the Company expects to recognize a pre-tax gain on the equity sale of approximately U.S.$40 million ($56 million).
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Hudson's Bay Company is one of the fastest-growing department store retailers in the

world, based on its successful formula of driving the performance of high quality stores
and their all-channel offerings, unlocking the value of real estate holdings and growing
through acquisitions. Founded in 1670, HBC is the oldest company in North America.
HBC's portfolio today includes ten banners, in formats ranging from luxury to better
department stores to off price fashion shopping destinations, with more than 460 stores

and 66,000 employees around the world.

In North America, HBC's leading banners include Hudson's Bay, Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth
Avenue, Gilt, and Saks OFF 5TH, along with Find @ Lord & Taylor and Home Outfitters.
In Europe, its banners include GALERIA Kaufhof, the largest department store group in
Germany, Belgium’s only department store group Galeria INNO, as well as Sportarena.
HBC has significant investments in real estate joint ventures. It has partnered with Simon
Property Group Inc. in the HBS Global Properties Joint Venture, which owns properties in

the United States and Germany. In Canada, it has partnered with RioCan Real Estate

Investment Trust in the RioCan-HBC Joint Venture.




e vl

Cl

-y

y ¥

= ’

hbc.com « thebay.com « saksFiFthavenue_:.c's)m +lorda

. saksoff5thicom « gilt.com higal__k‘ﬁlg:—i;-u}hof._de

i il
Fa | ) o, )y

ndtaylor.com
P v




	2015 Annual Report
	A Company of Adventurers
	Shareholder Message
	Financial Highlights
	Operational Excellence
	A Proven Consolidator
	Real Estate Proprietors
	Our Innovative Culture
	Corporate Information
	2015 MD&A
	Financial Table of Contents
	HBC Company Profile



